
Summons to Meeting

Tuesday 31 October 2017

Executive
Wednesday 8 November 2017, 10.00 am

The Wave Centre, Maryport
Membership:

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Dean Devine on 01900 702502.

Agenda
1. Minutes of meeting Wednesday 6 September 2017 of Executive  (Pages 3 - 

12)

2. Minutes of meeting Thursday 28 September 2017 of Executive  (Pages 13 - 
16)

3. Apologies for Absence  

4. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

5. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

6. Members' Announcements  

Page 1



7. Planning for the right homes in the right places consultation  (Pages 17 - 
34)

8. Local Discretionary Rate Relief 2017-2021  (Pages 35 - 40)

9. Tender Evaluation Fleet  (Pages 41 - 50)

10. Quarter 2 Finance Report - April to September 2017  (Pages 51 - 100)

11. Revised Revenue & Capital Budget 2017-18  (Pages 101 - 130)

12. 2018/19 Budget Strategy & Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 to 
2020/21  (Pages 131 - 142)

Corporate Director

Date of Next Meeting:

Wednesday 24 January 2018, 10.00 am
Council Chamber, Allerdale House

Page 2



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber, Allerdale House on Wednesday 
6 September 2017 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

Staff Present

B Carlin, D Devine, A FitzGerald, I Frost, A Gilbert, N Hardy, C Holmes, J Jackson, 
K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, M Schilling, E Thompson and P Wood

Also Present

B Finlay and H Harrington

133. Minutes of meeting Wednesday 12 July 2017 of Executive 

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2017 were signed as a correct 
record.

134. Declaration of Interests 

11. Reducing Inequalities – Access to Affordable Loans and Savings

Councillor M Heaslip – disclosable pecuniary interest – Director of West 
Cumbria Credit Union

Councillor J Ellis – other registrable interest – Member of West Cumbria Credit 
Union

Councillor M Fryer – other registrable interest – Member of West Cumbria 
Credit Union

I Frost, Chief Executive – other registrable interest – Member of West Cumbria 
Credit Union

E Thompson, Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager – other registrable interest – 
Chair of Supervisory Committee of West Cumbria Credit Union

135. Questions 

None received.

136. Members' Announcements 

None received.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



137. Q1 Performance Report 2017/18 

The subject of the decision

The Senior Policy and Performance Officer submitted a report which sought to 
advise Members on the Council’s performance at the end of quarter 1 2017/18 
as measured by projects/activities and Key Performance Indicators set out in 
the Corporate Business Plan 2017/18.

The Council was on track with 60 of its 71 key projects/activities, 9 areas were 
being watched and 1 had areas of concern.

There were 51 Key Performance Indicators. 27 of those were on target, 8 were 
within agreed tolerance of target and 10 were significantly worse than target.

Members noted the report.

Councillor A Smith moved that the report be noted; this was seconded by 
Councillor M Fryer. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

None

The reason for the decision

To advise Members of the Council’s performance at the end of quarter 1 
2017/18

The decision

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

138. Quarterly Finance Report April to June 2017 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report which sought to inform 
Members on the Council’s financial performance against budget for the period 
April to June 2017 along with the forecast position to 31 March 2018.

Members noted the headline messages at the end of quarter 1 2017/18, being:

 Revenue expenditure on services, excluding projects funded from 
Earmarked Reserves, was forecast to exceed budget by £109k

 Income from Taxation & Government Grants was forecast to be £293k 
more than budget

 Additional contribution of £184k to General Fund

Page 4



 The gross projected underspend on the capital budget was £6,521k. 
After adjusting for budget carry forwards of £6,404k, to reflect the re-
profiling of expenditure across financial years, the projected outturn 
variance was £117k (favourable)

 Treasury management activities during the quarter were carried out in 
accordance with the Council’s treasury management and investment 
strategies and within the limits established by the approved treasury and 
prudential indicators for 2017/18

 No new external borrowing was undertaken during the first quarter of 
2017/18

Councillor M Fryer asked for an update on how the multi-storey car park in 
Workington was performing since the Council had taken over its operation. The 
Head of Community Services reported that the level of usage of the car park 
was consistent or slightly above similar periods in the previous year.

Councillor B Cannon moved that the report be noted; this was seconded by 
Councillor A Smith. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered:

None

The reason for the decision:

To inform Members on the Council’s financial performance against budget for 
the period April to June 2017 along with the forecast position to 31 March 2018.

The decision:

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

139. Cloud based Suite of Systems 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Development Services submitted a report which sought Members 
to award the contract for the supply, implementation, training and data migration 
to a cloud based suite of systems covering the services of Planning, Building 
Control, Planning Policy, Environmental Protection, Environmental Health and 
Housing, Land Charges and Licensing. Up to £150,000 was included in the 
Council’s budget for the project with an additional £25,000 towards third party 
assistance with data extraction and officer hardware.

Councillor K Hansen moved the recommendation set out in the report. This was 
seconded by Councillor M Fryer. The recommendation was unanimously 
agreed.

Page 5



Alternative options considered

There were two options available to Members:

To award the contract to the highest scoring supplier via the ‘Digital Market 
Place Procurement Framework’ for a cloud based suite of systems; or

To continue with existing various software without the software suppliers 
support and maintenance; and upgrade the hardware and storage that provided 
the supporting platform

The reason for the decision

To award the contract for the supply, implementation, training and data 
migration to a cloud based suite of systems covering the services of Planning, 
Building Control, Planning Policy, Environmental Protection, Environmental 
Health and Housing, Land Charges and Licensing. Up to £150,000 was 
included in the Council’s budget for the project with an additional £25,000 
towards third party assistance with data extraction and officer hardware

The decision

Resolved:

That the procurement contract for the supply, implementation, training and 
migration of a cloud based suite of systems covering Planning, Building Control, 
Environmental Health and Housing, Land Charges and Licensing be awarded to 
Supplier 1. The cost for the supply, implementation, training and migration was 
£142,500 and an annual cost of £74,000 calculated on the basis of 75 user 
licences including system support, maintenance, upgrade, enhancements and 3 
Tb data storage. Based on a capped time and materials payment approach.

140. Public Spaces Protection Order - Murray Road, Workington 

The subject of the decision:

The Head of Economic Growth and Head of Governance submitted a report 
which sought approval to make a gated Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) 
in relation to anti-social behaviour, pursuant to powers contained in sections 59 
to 65 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. The Order 
related to the rear of Murray Road and Argos on Upton Street and a plan was 
shown on the draft Order at Appendix A of the report.

The Executive had resolved to initiate the public consultation on the creation of 
the PSPO at its meeting on 15 February 2017. The consultation was attached 
as Appendix B and the responses to it were attached at Appendix C.

Members noted that the responses received through the consultation 
demonstrated that there was overall public support for a gated PSPO in the 
designated area.

Page 6



Councillor J Ellis moved the recommendations contained in the report. This was 
seconded by Councillor M Fryer. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed.

Alternative options considered:

To approve the making of a PSPO to the rear of Murray Road, as shown in the 
Draft Order at Appendix A.

Not to approve the making of a PSPO to the rear of Murray Road, as shown in 
the Draft Order at Appendix A.

The reason for the decision:

To make a gated PSPO in relation to anti-social behaviour, pursuant to powers 
contained in sections 59 to 65 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014.

The decision:

Resolved:

That:

1. The Council make a PSPO for the Designated Area to the rear of Murray 
Road, Workington, as shown in the Draft Order at Appendix A. The 
public consultation demonstrated that there is overall public support for a 
gated PSPO in the Designated Area.

2. The Council monitor and review the impact of the measures contained in 
the PSPO over the next 12 months, and in accordance with the 
legislation, conduct a formal review within three years of the date of the 
Order being made.

141. Local Listing Adoption Arrangements 

The subject of the decision:

The Head of Development Services submitted a report which sought Members 
to consider an amendment to the scope of the local listing adoption 
arrangements.

The Council had agreed to adopt a scheme for the designation of locally listed 
buildings in Allerdale at its meeting on 20 January 2016. The scope of the 
scheme was limited to buildings outside designated Conservation Areas. The 
Council had been asked by Cockermouth Civic Trust to extend the scheme to 
include provision for the local listing of buildings within Conservation Areas.

Councillor M Fryer moved the recommendation contained in the report. This 
was seconded by Councillor B Cannon. The recommendation was unanimously 
agreed.

Page 7



Alternative options considered:

To amend the scope of the local listing adoption arrangements to include 
provision for the local listing of buildings within Conservation Areas.

Not to amend the scope of the local listing adoption arrangements.

The reason for the decision:

To consider an amendment to the scope of the local listing adoption 
arrangements.

The decision:

Resolved:

That the scope of the local listing adoption arrangements be amended to 
include provision for the local listing of buildings within Conservation Areas.

142. Reducing Inequalities - Access to Affordable Loans and Savings 

Councillor M Heaslip left the meeting.

The subject of the decision:

The Corporate Director submitted a report which sought Members to support 
the development of West Cumbria Credit Union (WCCU), to support the 
development of its growth plan including the development of a new Workington 
Town Centre branch, the Allerdale Account and rebranding and marketing and 
to support WCCU with £220,300 from the Council’s Priorities Fund of £451,000 
over the next four years.

The Council Plan 2015-2019 set out that to tackle inequality the Council would 
support people to deal with money problems by working with partners such as 
the credit union to promote safe credit sources.

The West Cumbria Credit Union was a merger between the Allerdale Credit 
Union and Cleator Moor Credit Union. A background was provided in the report.

Members noted that the report set out that across the country, household debt 
had been on the increase for a number of years and significant debt was now 
seen as the norm for many households. Key issues were set out in the report. In 
response, WCCU had put forward a proposal with three main elements:

 The opening of a flagship retail quality branch in Workington Town 
Centre, the analysis completed showed that it would make it much easier 
for existing and new members to access services. Workington has been 
chosen as the major retail hub in West Cumbria with 5m visitors every 
year and was also the main retail hub across the common bond area. It 
was envisaged that it would be a Monday to Saturday retail offer.

Page 8



 The Allerdale Account – a ‘virtual workplace branch’ in partnership with 
Allerdale Borough Council, that would attract savings and loans to those 
that wished to support local and ethical alternatives to banks and credit 
cards. This was a pilot to address the rapidly growing issue of 
unaffordable debt amongst in-work families, and once successful, would 
be rolled out to other major employers.

 Rebranding and Marketing – WCCU would rebrand and remarket to 
ensure that local people knew that they had a safe, ethical and cheaper 
alternative to banks and high interest lenders.

The following outcomes were expected:

 Increase lending to £1,800,000 by end of 2021
 Increase membership to 5,200
 Total community benefit in reduced interest charges of £2.14m
 WCCU annual surplus to £93,000 by 2021
 2 new jobs created
 Empty retail unit brought back in to use

Members noted that the WCCU would need supported by people taking out 
loans and taking on interest and that those who could afford to take out a loan 
should be encouraged to. It was suggested that there could be a specific 
product offered to Allerdale Borough Council employees and Members on a 
salary reduction basis. This could be seen as a positive step by other 
businesses which could then choose to take on similar products.

Councillor A Smith moved the recommendations contained in the report. This 
was seconded by Councillor C McCarron-Holmes. The recommendations were 
unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered:

Do nothing – this was not seen as a credible option for the Council as it 
attempts to reduce inequalities across the borough.

Smaller grant funding support – given the need to drive growth forward and the 
need for a retail quality outlet and staff to support, smaller funding would not 
give WCCU the ability to create the sustainable future the Council wants and 
deliver the outcomes set out above.

The reason for the decision:

The Council has been a partner in developing Credit Unions (CU) across 
Allerdale and the wider West Cumbria area for over 20 years.

The history of CUs in Allerdale was based on a number of community based 
CUs in Workington and Maryport. In 2010 these CUs merged to create the 
Allerdale CU. In 2015, Allerdale CU and Cleator Moor CU merged to form the 
West Cumbria Credit Union (WCCU).

Page 9



The new, larger CU has ambitious plans to reduce the number of residents who 
use high interest doorstep lenders and high street organisations.

At present the total consumer debt in Allerdale alone is over £450m, the WCCU 
growth plan set out in this report aims to reduce the amount of interest paid out 
by Allerdale residents by £2.1m over the next 4 years. Enabling this money to 
be used productively in the Allerdale area.

The decision:

Resolved:

That:

1. The development of the WCCU be supported

2. The development of the WCCU’s growth plan including the development 
of a new Workington Town Centre branch, the Allerdale Account and 
rebranding and marketing be supported

3. WCCU be supported with £220,300 from the Council’s Priorities Fund of 
£451,000 over the next four years

143. Appointment of Representative to the Allerdale Disability Association 

Councillor M Heaslip returned to the meeting.

The subject of the decision

The Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer submitted a report which 
sought the Executive to appoint a Member to serve as the Council’s 
representative on the Allerdale Disability Association, to replace Councillor 
Frank Johnston.

Councillor Alan Smith moved that Councillor Billy Miskelly be appointed to serve 
on the Allerdale Disability Association until 11 July 2018, to replace Councillor 
Frank Johnston. This was seconded by Councillor K Hansen. The motion was 
unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

To appoint a representative or not to appoint a representative.

The reason for the decision

To appoint a representative to serve on the Allerdale Disability Association, 
which was a function of the Executive.

Page 10



The decision

Resolved:

That Councillor Billy Miskelly be appointed to serve on the Allerdale Disability 
Association until 11 July 2018, to replace Councillor Frank Johnston.

The meeting closed at 11.05 am

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber, Allerdale House on Thursday 
28 September 2017 at 9.00 am

Members

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor William Jefferson

Staff Present

B Carlin, D Devine, A Gilbert and C Nicholson

174. Declaration of Interests 

5. Call-in: Reducing Inequalities – Access to Affordable Loans and Savings

Councillor M Heaslip – disclosable pecuniary interest – Director of West 
Cumbria Credit Union

Councillor J Ellis – other registrable interest – Member of West Cumbria Credit 
Union

Councillor M Fryer – other registrable interest – Member of West Cumbria 
Credit Union

Councillor A Smith – other registrable interest – Member of West Cumbria 
Credit Union

175. Questions 

None received.

176. Members' Announcements 

None received.

177. Call-in: Reducing Inequalities - Access to Affordable Loans and Savings 

Councillor M Heaslip left the meeting.

The subject of the decision:

The Co-Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee submitted a report on 
the Committee’s findings on the call-in of Executive minute no. 142 – Reducing 
Inequalities – Access to Affordable Loans and Savings.

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



The Executive took a decision at its meeting on 6 September 2017 to support 
the development of the West Cumbria Credit Union with £220,300 from the 
Council’s Priorities Fund of £451,000 over the next four years.

The decision was called-in by Councillors J Cook, L Davies and N Cockburn on 
11 September 2017. The call-in request was considered by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 20 September 2017.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee had recommended that the decision 
taken by the Executive be referred back for further consideration and that the 
Executive consult the Tackling Poverty Task and Finish Group as part of its 
decision making process on the item.

The Executive considered the findings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
Members did not share the Committee’s concerns around communication 
between the Executive and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, stating that 
prior to the decision being taken it was included on the Council’s Forward Plan 
of Key Decisions, that supporting the Credit Union was part of the Council Plan 
2015-19 which was agreed by Council on 4 March 2015 and that the decision 
was taken in line with the Corporate Business Plan 2017/18, approved by the 
Executive on 5 April 2017.

Upon consideration of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s findings report 
and the minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2017, the Executive did 
not find there to be sufficient reason to alter the decision made at the Executive 
meeting on 6 September. Members remained satisfied with the decision that 
had been taken.

Councillor A Smith moved the recommendations contained in the report to the 
Executive dated 6 September 2017. This was seconded by Councillor M Fryer. 
The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered:

That the Executive consult the Tackling Poverty Task and Finish Group as part 
of its decision making process on the item.

The reason for the decision:

To provide feedback to the Executive on the outcome of the call in of Executive 
minute number 142.

The decision:

Resolved

That the decision taken at the Executive meeting on 6 September 2017 be re-
taken and decided in the same terms, being:

That:

1. The development of the WCCU be supported

Page 14



2. The development of the WCCU’s growth plan including the development 
of a new Workington Town Centre branch, the Allerdale Account and 
rebranding and marketing be supported

3. WCCU be supported with £220,300 from the Council’s Priorities Fund of 
£451,000 over the next four years

The meeting closed at 9.27 am

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 8 November 2017

DCLG Consultation- Planning for the right homes in the right places

The Reason for the Decision To seek Member’s views on and endorsed of the 
proposed response to the DCLG consultation- 
“Planning for the right homes in the right places”.

Summary of options considered Not to respond to the DCLG consultation or 

Submit the response recommended in this report

Recommendations That the proposed response appended to this 
report  forms the Council’s official response  to 
the DCLG consulation paper, “Planning for the 
right homes in the right places”

Financial /  Resource Implications Potential longer term implications for Council tax 
base and New Homes Bonus

Legal / Governance Implications None

Community Safety Implications N/A

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

N/A

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Undertaken by DCLG

Wards Affected All 

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

Tackling Inequality- the scale and scope of 
delivering affordable housing could be affected.

Strengthening our local economy- ensuring 
suitable housing is available to support economic 
growth could be undermined.

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor Mark Fryer 

Lead Officer Kevin Kerrigan
Head of Development Services
Kevin.kerrigan@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702799

Page 17

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Kevin.kerrigan@allerdale.gov.uk


Report Implications 

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) Y

Financial N Employment (internal) Y/N

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers: DCLG Planning for the right homes in the right places 
consultation paper.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Following on from the housing White Paper the Government has now 
published a consultation document entitled “Planning for the right homes in 
the right places” which proposes a number of changes to national planning 
policy. The proposed changes are aimed at delivering in four main areas that 
the Government considers requires action. These are:

Planning for the right homes in the right places- to make sure that enough 
land is released.

Building homes faster- where communities have planned for new homes, 
ensuring those plans are delivered in the timescale expected.

Diversifying the market- to address the lack of innovation and competition in 
the house-building market; and

Helping people now- tackling the impacts of the housing shortage on 
households and communities.

1.2 This report provides a summary of the consultation proposals and a 
recommended response for endorsement by Members.

2.0 Background

2.1 Standard method for calculating local housing need

The Government considers the existing approach to assessing housing need 
is too complex. At present, the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
and planning guidance ask local planning authorities to define a Housing 
Market Area and to identify the ‘objectively assessed need’ for market and 
affordable housing. It is considered that the current process leaves substantial 
room for interpretation and that a lack of a simple, standard approach to 

Page 18



assessing local housing need has led to a costly and time-consuming process 
which lacks transparency. The Government is proposing a standard 
methodology based on the following principles:

Simple- there should be an easy and transparent process for local people and 
other interests to understand.

Based on publicly available data- which includes data from the Office for 
National Statistics.

Realistic- to reflect the actual need for homes in each area, taking into 
account the affordability of homes locally.

In addition any approach must allow an understanding of the minimum 
number of homes needed across England as a whole.

2.2 The proposed methodology consists of three components:

Step 1: setting the baseline

Projections of household growth should be the demographic baseline for 
every local authority area. The most recent official projections should be used, 
with the household growth calculated for the period over which the plan is 
being made. The Government proposes that the demographic baseline should 
be the annual average household growth over a 10 year period. Household 
projections should be regarded as the minimum local housing need figure.

Step 2: an adjustment to take account of market signals

The Government considers that household growth on its own is insufficient as 
an indicator of demand since household formation is constrained to the supply 
of available properties and people may want to live in an area in which they do 
not reside currently, for example to be near to work. In addition, any 
assessment of the level of growth must address the affordability of new 
homes. Therefore it is proposed that the median affordability ratios, published 
by the Office for National Statistics at a local authority level, is used to adjust 
the assessment of housing need to reflect market signals. The Government 
proposes that each 1 per cent increase in the ratio of house prices to earnings 
above four results in a quarter of a per cent increase in need above the 
projected household growth.

Examples

Projected annual household growth of a 100 dwellings per year.

Page 19



100 if average house prices were four times local average earnings.

125 if average prices were eight times local average earnings.

150 if average house prices were twelve times local average earnings.

The Government believes that the threshold level of four, above which an 
upward adjustment in housing need is required, is appropriate as typically this 
is the amount (four times a person’s income) that can be borrowed.

Step 3 capping the level of any increase

As the methodology will lead to significant increases in potential housing need 
in some parts of the country it is proposed to cap the level of growth as 
follows:

For those that have adopted their local plan in the last five years, it is 
proposed that the new annual housing need figure is capped at 40% above 
the annual requirement figure currently set out in their local plan.

Those authorities that do not have an up to date local plan it is proposed to 
cap the housing need figure at 40% above either the projected household 
growth or the figure set out in their local plan, whichever is the higher.

For those authorities where the method leads to a fall in the housing need 
figure there is still an opportunity to plan for a higher number. In particular as a 
result of a strategic infrastructure project or through an increased employment 
ambition as a result of the Local Economic Partnership investment strategy. 
Where an authority propose a higher growth level inspectors are to assume 
that the approach adopted is sound unless there are compelling reasons to 
indicate otherwise.

2.3 Housing Data

Local planning authorities should always use the most up to date data when 
calculating their housing need. However the situation does not remain static 
through the plan preparation process and this can lead to authorities having to 
revisit their evidence and in some instances carry out additional consultation. 
To ensure stability and a consistent evidence base to inform plan preparation 
it is proposed that local planning authorities can rely on evidence used to 
justify their local housing need for a period of two years from the date on 
which they submit their plan. In addition it is proposed to amend national 
planning policy so that having a robust method for assessing local housing 
need becomes part of the tests that plans are assessed against.

Page 20



2.4 Calculating five year land supply and the housing delivery test

After 31 March 2018 the new method for calculating the local housing need 
would apply as a baseline for assessing five year land supply. It is proposed 
that this approach would also apply to assessing the housing delivery test.

2.5 Transitional Arrangements

It is proposed that where a local plan has been adopted in the last five years 
then the new standardised method would be used when updating and 
reviewing the local plan. This transitional arrangement would apply to 
Allerdale.

3.0 Statement of Common Ground

3.1 Local planning authorities need to plan together to ensure that infrastructure 
and public services are planned to meet the needs of the wider area. The 
Government believes that this is not working effectively and that the failure 
under the duty to cooperate is one of the most regular reasons why local 
plans are found unsound. Therefore the Government proposes to introduce a 
requirement for local authorities to agree a statement of common ground, 
setting out how they intend to work together to meet housing needs that cut 
across authority boundaries. The benefits of this approach are to increased 
certainty and transparency, encourage local planning authorities, regardless 
of their stage in plan-making, to co-operate effectively and help local planning 
authorities demonstrate evidence of cooperation.

The first step will be to identify key cross-boundary strategic planning issues, 
including housing and infrastructure. This will determine the geographic area 
over which the statement of common ground will apply. For housing this is 
likely to be the housing market area. It is proposed that local planning 
authorities should only be signatories to those strategic issues in which they 
have interest and that authorities can be signatories to more than one 
statement of common ground. County Councils and Marine Management 
Organisations would also be signatories to relevant issues.
It is proposed that all local planning authorities should have a statement of 
common ground in place within twelve months following publication of the 
revised National Planning Policy Framework. (NPPF) However, in order to 
ensure greater certainty at an early stage of the process, it is expected that an 
outline statement is in place within six months of the changes to the NPPF. 
This requirement will apply to local planning authorities irrespective of where 
they are in the plan making cycle. The statement of common ground should 
be kept up to date and reflect emerging agreement through the local plan 

Page 21



process; this is likely to be aligned with key milestones such as consultation, 
publication, submission and adoption.

In addition it is proposed to amend the tests of soundness to reflect this new 
requirement, although this would not be applied until 12 months after the 
revision to the NPPF.

4.0 Planning for a mix of housing needs

4.1 In addition to the right number of homes local planning authorities should also 
plan for different type, tenure and range of housing. This is currently identified 
as part of the strategic housing market assessment. However given the 
proposed method to calculate local housing need would be on a local 
authority area basis a change to national planning guidance on how to plan for 
different types of homes is required. It is proposed that plan makers should 
disaggregate need between tenure and house type so that evidenced based 
judgements can be made on the type of housing required.

4.2 Definition of older people

Annex 2 of the NPPF contains the current definition of older people reflecting 
age and needs from retirement to very frail elderly. The current definition is:

“ people over retirement age, including the active, newly-retired through to the 
very frail elderly, whose housing needs can encompass accessible, adaptable 
general needs housing for those looking to downsize from family housing and 
the full range of retirement and specialised housing for those with support or 
care needs”

The Government is reviewing this definition and welcome views on whether 
this remains up to date.

5.0 Neighbourhood Planning

When local communities embark on developing a neighbourhood plan the 
Government considers that they should have certainty on the level of housing 
they should look to plan for at the outset to allow them to progress  with 
confidence with their neighbourhood plan. It is proposed to amend national 
policy so that local planning authorities are expected to provide 
neighbourhood planning groups with a housing need figure. This could be 
done by making a reasoned judgement based on the settlement strategy and 
housing allocations in the local plan, so long as the plan is sufficiently up to 
date. Where an up to date local plan is not available it is proposed to set out in 
guidance a simple formula-based approach which apportions the overall 

Page 22



housing need figure for the relevant local authority area, based on the latest 
figures calculated under the standard approach.

6.0 Viability Assessment

6.1 The Government considers that viability assessments have expanded to a 
degree that it causes complexity and uncertainty and results in fewer 
contributions for infrastructure and affordable housing. One approach is to 
ensure there is a robust basis for assessing viability at the plan-making stage 
and thereby lessen the need for this to be revisited when planning 
applications come forward. 

It is proposed that local planning authorities should set out in local plans the 
types and thresholds for affordable housing required, the infrastructure 
needed to deliver the local plan, how these will be funded and the 
contributions developers will be expected to make.

The Government is also interested in how to make viability assessment 
simpler and more transparent. This could include clearly defined terms, 
preferred approach to calculating costs, and standard formats.

The Government intends to amend national policy so that councils should set 
out in the local plan how they will monitor, report on and publicise funding 
secured through section 106 agreements, and how it is spent, following an 
open data approach.

7.0 Planning Fees

The Government recognises that it is vital to have a well-resourced, effective 
and efficient local authority planning departments. At the best they are the 
engine room for providing new homes and economic growth in their local 
area. They work with communities to set the spatial framework and support 
the delivery of the local vision. A lack of capacity and capability in planning 
departments can act as a constraint and restrict developers’ ability to get on 
site and build. An increase in planning application fees is an important step to 
recognise and address the significant, nation-wide problem of under- 
resourced local planning authorities.

In the housing White Paper the Government set out its intention to increase 
nationally planning fees by 20% for those authorities who commit to invest the 
additional income in improving the productivity of their planning departments. 
All planning authorities made that commitment and therefore Government will 
bring forward regulation at the earliest opportunity to enable local authorities 
to increase fees.

Page 23



The housing White Paper also suggested that a further 20% increase in 
planning fees could be applied for those authorities who are delivering the 
homes that their communities need. Views are sort on the most appropriate 
criteria to enable this fee increase to be applied.

8.0 Build Out

8.1 The Government recognises that there are a number of factors that slow 
down delivery once planning permission has been granted. The White Paper 
set out a number of inventions that could help this. This includes additional 
resource for infrastructure and planning departments, tackling pre 
commencement conditions, introducing a housing delivery test and improved 
tools to hold developers to account.

9.0 Prematurity

9.1 The Government intends to amend the NPPF to set out the circumstances 
when a planning application may be refused on the grounds of prematurity. 
This will prevent emerging plans, where they are at an advanced stage, from 
being undermined by proposals that are allowed before the plan can be 
finalised. 

10.0 Customer Satisifaction and Service

10.1 Responding to Government consultation provides an opportunity to influence 
national policy.

11.0 Services Delivered as Locally as Possible

11.1 There are some aspects of the proposals in the consultation that would 
weaken the Council’s ability to develop plans and initiaitives that reflect local 
issues and opportunities. 

12.0 Finance/Resource Implications

12.1 Potential longer term implications for Council tax base and New Homes 
Bonus.

13.0 Legal Implications and Risks

13.1 None

14.0 Recommendation

14.1 That the proposed response appended to this report  forms the Council’s 
official response  to the DCLG consulation paper, “Planning for the right 
homes in the right places”

Page 24



15.0 Conclusion

15.1 This consultation contains some potentially significant implications for the 
Council’s growth agenda. Its focus is primarily aimed at addressing housing 
need in the south of England but in doing so will have the opposite effect on 
the north of England local authorities for the reasons set out in the proposed 
consultation response.  It is therefore important that the Council uses this 
opportunity to submit its views and concerns with respect to the proposed 
changes to national planning policy.

Kevin Kerrigan
Head of Development Services

Page 25



Appendix

Consultation Response

Question 1 

a) Do you agree with the proposed standard approach to assessing local 
housing need? If not, what alternative approach or other factors should be 
considered?

It takes a too simplistic approach. When arriving at the level of local housing need a 
number of considerations, in addition to household growth, are factored in. These 
include for example local growth aspirations, affordable housing need, hidden 
households due to constraint on supply and past completion rates. Allerdale’s up to 
date local plan has a housing target of 304 dwellings per year. This is based on a 
mix of population, migration patterns, past completion rates and the aspiration for 
local growth. Average completion rates alone for the last six years are around 260 
dwelling per year of which in 2016/17 112 were affordable units were delivered. This 
is compared to a 125 housing need figure using the proposed methodology. This is 
further compounded as the 260 dwelling average relates only to the area of the 
Borough outside the National Park.

The Council carried its own housing needs study 2016 which allowed the Council to 
understand the local housing market and need in order to plan and develop a 
strategy that responses to the needs of its community. The evidence gathered allows 
the Council to influence and negotiate affordable housing provision on new 
developments that are focussed on addressing the local need. This proposed 
national approach would not reflect or incorporate the local evidence of housing 
need. Allerdale’s affordable housing need alone is 175 dwellings per year with out 
taking account of open market requirements. This need can be currently broken 
down in to ward and parish levels which again can inform development on a site by 
site basis.
 
This proposed approach will still require Councils to commission additional housing 
studies to capture the local market as the proposed approach is too simplistic.

It is welcomed that there would be some flexibility to plan for a higher housing level 
of growth than the standard methodology. However, it will make it harder to promote 
a growth agenda with local communities, the development industry and inward 
investors with a backdrop of, what appears to be on the surface, a depressed 
housing need position which neither reflects past delivery nor local aspirations.

The introduction of the standard methodology will affect disportionately local 
planning authorities in the north of England going against the aims and aspirations 

Page 26



associated with the northern powerhouse and the need to rebalance the UK 
economic base. It will curtail local planning authorities ability to develop a local plan 
that responds to local issues and aspirations.

b) How can information on local housing need be made more transparent?

Consideration could be given to a standardised format to publish how the local 
housing need has been arrived at, clearly setting out additional factors/evidence that 
have been considered in addition to the national methodology. This is already 
published at part of the background evidence for examination but this could be 
improved if a more universal and consistent format was adopted.

Question 2

Do you agree with the proposal that an assessment of local housing need 
should be able to be relied upon for a period of two years from the date of a 
plan is submitted?

This is a welcome change. A lot of delay and expense is incurred when updates are 
published when a local plan is at an advanced stage of preparation. In many cases it 
is unlikely to be so significant to alter the direction of the local plan. This proposal 
provides greater certainty to the process both for plan makers, stakeholders and 
local communities. However submission is very late in the local plan process. It 
would have greater benefit if was applied at the publication stage.

Question3 

Do you agree that we should amend national planning policy so that a sound 
plan should identify local housing need using a clear and justified method?

This is already covered by the existing tests of soundness under the positively 
prepared and justified tests. The Examination process is considered sufficiently 
robust to allow interrogation of the approach and methodology issues. The proposal 
will just add another layer of requirement than adds little value to the process.

Question 4

Do you agree with our approach in circumstances when plan makers deviate 
from the proposed method, including the level of scrutiny we expect from 
Planning Inspectors?

This approach goes to the heart of the existing examination process and Inspectors  
already exercise a proportionate level of scrutiny to determine whether a local plan is 
sound. 

Page 27



Question 5

 a) Do you agree that the Secretary of State should have discretion to defer the 
period for using the baseline for some local planning authorities? If so, how 
best could this be achieved, what minimum requirements should be in place 
before the Secretary of State may exercise this discretion, and for how long 
should such deferral be permitted?

Yes there should be discretion. Factors to consider are the stage the local planning 
authority has reached in the plan making cycle and whether there are cross 
boundary issues that require agreement with adjacent authorities to ensure delivery. 
The period of deferment would depend on the individual case.

b) Do you consider that authorities that have an adopted local plan, or which 
are covered by an adopted spatial development strategy, should be able to 
assess their five year land supply and/or be measured for the purposes of the 
Housing Delivery Test, across the area as a whole?

As Allerdale also covers parts of the Lake District National Park Local Planning 
Authority, its current adopted housing growth figure would be the most appropriate 
until a review of the local plan was delivered.

c) Do you consider that authorities that are not able to use the new method for 
calculating local housing need should be able to use an existing or an 
emerging local plan figure for housing need for the purposes of calculating 
five year land supply and to be measured for the purposes of the Housing 
Delivery Test?

Yes that would be the most appropriate approach.

Question 6

Do you agree with the proposed transitional arrangements for introducing the 
standard approach for calculating local housing need?

Yes. It appears reasonable with respect to up to date local plans.

Page 28



Question 7

Do you agree with the proposed administrative arrangements for preparing the 
statement of common ground?

There are benefits to requiring a statement of common ground. Firstly it identifies 
cross boundaries issues and area of possible conflict early in the process and 
secondly it provides a clear audit trail that makes scrutiny at the examination easier 
and more transparent. The general approach is supported.

How do you consider a statement of common ground should be implemented 
in areas where there is a Mayor with strategic plan making powers?

No comment.

Do you consider there is a role for directly elected Mayors without strategic 
plan making powers, in the production of a statement of common?

No comment.

Question 8

Do you agree that the proposed content and timescales for the publication of 
the statement of common ground are appropriate and will support more 
effective co-operation on strategic cross-boundary planning matters?

Where there are up to date local plans in place the requirement to publish an outline 
statement of common ground, within six months, should be not be required. This is 
on the basis that the local plan has recently complied with the Duty to Cooperate and 
strategic cross boundary issues have been examined. It adds additional work in 
these circumstances for little benefit. 

Question 9

Do you agree with the proposal to amend the tests of soundness to include 
that:

Plans should be prepared based on a strategy informed by agreements over a 
wider area; and

Plans should be based on effective joint working on cross-boundary, strategic 
priorities, which are evidenced in the statement of common ground?

Page 29



Do you agree to the proposed transitional arrangements for amending the 
tests of soundness to ensure effective co-operation?

The approach is reasonable.

Question 10

a) Do you have suggestions on how to streamline the process for identifying 
the housing need for individual groups and what evidence could be used to 
help plan to meet the needs of particular groups?

Identifying the needs of individual groups is often complex, in particular when you 
are assessing the needs of marginalised groups.  There is no simplistic approach to 
this and therefore should be a decision of the Local Authority and housing needs 
specialist providers to determine the best approach.  A one size fits all approach may 
fail  to capture local issues.

b) Do you agree that the current definition of older people within the National 
Planning Policy Framework is still fit-for- purpose?

This definition fails to consider the needs of those who haven’t met the retirement 
age, but who may require specialist housing.

Question 11

a) Should a local plan set out the housing need for designated neighbourhood 
planning areas and parished areas within the area?

This would add certainty to the neighbourhood planning process and allow 
neighbourhood planning to concentrate on planning positively for their communities. 
This approach would ensure the strategic objectives of the local plan, in terms of 
level of growth and spatial strategy, are delivered through neighbourhood planning.

b) Do you agree with the proposal for a formula-based approach to apportion 
housing need to neighbourhood plan bodies in circumstances where the local 
plan cannot be relied on as a basis for calculating housing need?

Given the Council’s concerns regarding the suitability of a standard methodology this 
approach is considered to be too simplistic. There has to be scope for the local 
planning authority to apply local judgement and evidence to inform growth levels for 
neighbourhood plans.

Page 30



Question 12

Do you agree that local plans should identify the infrastructure and affordable 
housing needed, how these will be funded and the contributions developers 
will be expected to make?

To a large extent this is already covered by the Infrastructure Delivery Plan. There is 
difficulty at the local plan level to identify the level of detail which could pinpoint the 
requirements outlined in the question. In many cases it is not until the planning 
application stage that the true cost and extent of the local infrastructure requirement 
becomes clear. In addition the more detail required during the local plan preparation 
stage the more cumbersome the local plan process, causing delays and increasing 
the risk that infrastructure costs become out of date.

Question 13

In reviewing guidance on testing plans and policies for viability, what 
amendments could be made to improve current practice?

Introducing standard methodology and format so the information is clear and can be 
interpreted consistently.

Question 14

Do you agree that where policy requirements have been tested for their 
viability, the issue should not usually need to be tested again at the planning 
application stage?

Agree with this approach. Planning policy requirements should be taken into account 
at an early stage of developing a scheme and factored into the any land purchase. 
Although this approach is welcome it has to be recognised that local plan viability 
would have to remain a high level assessment. Any new requirements for local plan 
viability have to be proportionate to avoid undue delays and add further complexity 
into plan preparation.

Question 15

How can Government ensure that infrastructure providers, including housing 
associations, are engaged throughout the process, including in circumstances 
where a viability assessment may be required?

Introduce a requirement for more formal consultation on viability methodology and 
assumptions from these groups.

Page 31



Question 16

What factors should we take into account in updating guidance to encourage 
viability assessments to be simpler, quicker and more transparent, for 
example through a standard report or summary format?

The introduction of a more standardised approach to viability  assessments will be 
beneficial in assisting local planning authorities in assessing planning applications. 
This could include a common format and a standard methodology for calculating 
costs and values whilst recognising that it may be appropriate to take into account 
local factors and considerations. A common format, and clear guidance to 
accompany it will also assist local communities in understanding the viability issues 
that may impact on the delivery of housing development and help to build community 
support.

Question 17

a) Do you agree that the local planning authorities should set out in plans how 
they will monitor and report on planning agreements to help ensure that 
communities can easily understand what infrastructure and affordable 
housing has been secured and delivered through developer contributions?

Agree to the approach in principle. Many local authorities already report through their 
Annual Monitoring Report and include monitoring indicators in local plans on this.

b) What factors should we take into account in preparing guidance on a 
standard approach to monitoring and reporting planning obligations?

Consider a standardised format for publishing the information. 

c) How can local planning authorities and applicants work together to better 
publicise infrastructure and affordable housing secured through new 
development once development has commenced, or at other stages of the 
process? 

Introduce a requirement to publish the monitoring on Council and housing 
association websites.

Page 32



Question 18

a) Do you agree that a further 20 per cent increase should be applied to those 
local planning authorities who are delivering the homes their communities 
need? What should be the criteria to measure this?

Whilst recognising the need to support housing delivery and improve poorly 
performing planning services, as is acknowledged in the housing white paper, there 
are a range of factors which may impact on housing delivery even in circumstances 
where a local planning authority has an adopted local plan and a high performing 
development management service. Restricting the ability to increase planning 
application fees to those local planning authorities that are already meeting their 
housing delivery targets is likely to adversely impact on the ability of those local 
planning authorities that still have to meet their housing delivery targets to further 
improve their planning service and support housing delivery. This is a particular risk 
at a time where there is a recognised skills shortage in the sector and many local 
planning authorities are finding it difficult to recruit experienced planning staff. 

b) Do you think there are more appropriate circumstances when a local 
planning authority should be able to charge the further 20 per cent? If so, do 
you have views on how these circumstances could work in practice?

It is considered that local planning authorties should have the discretion to apply the 
further fee increase depending on their particular circumstances. To ensure that the 
additional fee income is invested in the productivity of planning deparments the local 
planning authority could be required to publish a statement demonstrating how the 
additional fee income will be invested to increase capacity and productivity in their 
planning department and what measures are to be taken by the planning service to 
boost housing delivery. 

c) Should any additional fee increase be applied nationally once all local 
planning authorities meet the required criteria, or only to individual authorities 
who meet them?

It is considered that nationally set planning fees should make a fair and equitable 
contribution to the costs incurred in delivering the planning service but as 
acknowledged above there may be benefits in enabling local planning authorities the 
discretion to apply a further increase where this can be demonstrated to be an 
investment in improving the planning service and supporting housing delivery. 

d) Are there any other issues we should consider in developing a framework 
for this additional fee increase?

No.

Page 33



Question 19

Having regard to the measures we have already identified in the housing White 
Paper, are there any actions that could increase build out rates?

No.

Page 34



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 8 November 2017

Local Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme 2017-2021

The Reason for the Decision To seek approval for the Local 
Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme 
2017-2021.

Summary of options considered N/A

Recommendations 1. That the local discretionary rate relief 
be approved.

2. That delegation of responsibility to 
award targeted support in Year 4 of 
the scheme to the Customer 
Operations Manager/Customer 
Accounts Manager as outlined in the 
report.  

Financial /  Resource Implications None directly relating to this report as the 
scheme will be funded by DCLG. 

Legal / Governance Implications The billing authority has responsibility for 
developing a scheme to provide 
assistance to businesses who have 
experienced large increases in business 
rates.

Community Safety Implications None

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

None

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

Assisting and supporting businesses
Encouraging business growth

Is this a Key Decision Yes

Portfolio Holder Councillor Konrad Hansen

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



Lead Officer Elizabeth Kelly
Customer Operations Manager
01900 702633
elizabeth.kelly@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety N Financial Y
Legal Y Partnership N
Social Inclusion N Asset Management N
Equality Duty N Health and Safety N
Employment (internal) N Employment 

(external to the Council)
Y

BUSINESS RATES 
LOCAL DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF SCHEME 2017-2021

1. Introduction

1.1 To approve a local discretionary rate relief scheme utilising Government 
support announced in the Spring Budget 2017 to assist those businesses 
seeing the largest increases following the recent revaluation of business 
rateable values which took effect from 1 April 2017; and

1.2 To approve delegation of responsibility to award targeted support in Year 4 of 
the scheme to the Customer Operations Manager/Customer Accounts 
Manager as outlined in the report.  

2. Background

2.1 In April 2017, as part of a national business rates revaluation, a new rating list 
came into effect, complete with changes to small business rate relief and 
transitional relief schemes.

2.2 In response to concerns about the potential impact on businesses facing 
significant increases, the Government announced a number of initiatives in 
the Spring Budget 2017 to further mitigate the impact on businesses 
including: 

2.2.1 Up to £1,000 relief for public houses with an RV of less than £100,000.

2.2.2 A cap of £600.00 increases for businesses losing Small Business Rate Relief 
or Rural Rates Relief.

2.2.3 A national £300m discretionary rate relief fund over the next 4 years which 
would be subject to public consultation.

Page 36



2.3 The Government has stated that Councils are best placed to judge the 
particular circumstances of local business rate payers and direct discretionary 
rate relief funding to where it is most needed to support local economies.

2.4 All billing authorities must develop their own local discretionary rate scheme 
with a requirement to consult with other recipients of business rate income (in 
our case with Cumbria County Council).

2.5 For the avoidance of doubt, under the consultation guidelines, discretionary 
relief or local newspaper relief must be awarded before the application of the 
local discretionary rate relief scheme.

3. Preferred Option 

3.1 The national amounts have been allocated to each billing authority based on 
the total increase in business rate bills (excluding the impact of transitional 
relief and other reliefs), for every business rateable property in the Council’s 
area that satisfies both of the following conditions:

 The property has a RV for 2017/18 that is less than £200,000.
 The increase in the property’s 2017/18 bill is more than 12.5% compared 

to the 2016/17 bill (before reliefs).
 

3.2 Based on these criteria, Allerdale Borough Council as billing authority has 
been allocated £611,000 over the 4 years as follows: 

Discretionary Relief
2017/18 £356,000
2018/19 £173,000
2019/20 £71,000
2020/21 £10,000

3.3 It is proposed awards of local discretionary rate relief in the Council’s scheme 
should be based on the following principles:

3.3.1 Awards are time limited for 12 months and the amount of relief may be varied 
in the year following a change in circumstances.

3.3.2 Awards take into consideration any other reliefs (e.g. transitional relief, 
mandatory and other discretionary relief, pubs and newspaper relief) and are 
based on amounts payable after those reliefs.

3.3.3 Awards do not breach EU state aid limits.

3.3.4  Awards support the businesses most affected by the revaluation.

Page 37



3.3.5 Total awards are limited by the Council’s allocation.

3.3.6 No awards will be made in respect of the first:

 £200 of increase in relation to Small businesses (rateable value up to and 
including £20,000).

 £300 of increase in relation to medium or large businesses (rateable value 
above £20,000).

3.3.7 The maximum award will be capped at £3000 in financial year 2017/2018.

3.3.8 Where there is a change in occupancy, the award will terminate and be            
recalculated based upon a pro rata basis.

3.3.9 Relief in 2017/2018 will be applied at the rate of 60% of the eligible increase 
in charge from 31 March 2017 to 1 April 2017. Maximum award of £3000.00. 
No application required.

3.3.10 Relief in 2018/2019 will be applied at the rate of 50% of the relief granted in 
2017/18. No application required.

3.3.11 Relief in 2019/2020 will be applied at the rate of 20% of the relief granted in 
2017/18. No application required.

3.3.12 Relief in 2020/2021 will be determined based upon individual applications. All 
decisions to be delegated to Customer Operations Manager/Customer 
Accounts Manager.

3.3.13 De-minimus rule. Where the above calculations would result in an award of 
less than £10, the award will be rounded up to £10.

3.4 It is proposed the following properties and organisations would not be classed 
as qualifying properties and therefore excluded from entitlement to a local 
discretionary rate relief scheme:

3.4.1 Properties with a RV of more than £200,000 which is consistent with the 
Government basis of allocation to billing authorities but also including these 
businesses is more likely to result in State Aid issues.

3.4.2 Empty properties and properties that have benefited from empty property 
relief in the last 3 months (or 6 months in the case of industrial property) on 1 
April 2017.

3.4.3 Properties that are in receipt of the 80% mandatory relief.

Page 38



3.4.4 Properties who have not had an increase in their bill (following the application 
of all relevant reliefs).

3.4.5 Public sector funded bodies. This will include (but not limited to) town, parish, 
district and county council properties including schools and academies; 
colleges and Universities; police and fire properties; NHS properties including 
GP surgeries, and Government properties.

4. Recommendations

4.1 That the local discretionary rate relief be approved.

4.2 That delegation of responsibility to award targeted support in Year 4 of the 
scheme to the Customer Operations Manager/Customer Accounts Manager 
as outlined in the report.

Paul Wood
Head of Customer, Transformation and Commissioning

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 8 November 2017

Tender Evaluation Fleet

The Reason for the Decision The Council needs to replace white fleet 
vehicles. Some are leased vehicles at 
the end of existing lease agreements, 
some are owned vehicles at the end of 
life.    Approval is sought to appoint a 
new 5 year contract for Contract Hire of 
fleet to the successful tenderer (Supplier 
A). 

Summary of options considered There are 2 options available to 
members

 Option 1 Award the Contract to 
the highest scoring supplier for 
Contract Hire. The potential for 
fixed costs with minimal internal 
expertise is a key benefit for the 
council 

 Option 2 Seek external borrowing 
and separate the supply from 
maintenance of council vehicles. 
This is considered to be high risk 
for the council. 

Recommendations 1. Recommend that the council leases 
the replacement fleet. This has been 
identified as the best funding option 
for the council when considering the 
risks of ownership.  Contract hire has 
been identified as the best way of 
meeting the council’s fleet 
requirements at this time.  The 
potential for fixed costs with minimal 
internal expertise is a key benefit for 
the council.  

2. Recommend that the Executive 
accepts the decision to award the 
Contract for white fleet vehicles to 
Supplier A, which was the highest 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



scoring tenderer on price and quality.  
The five year contract is valued at 
£196,939.77.

Financial /  Resource Implications Total expenditure over 5 years for leased 
vehicles is £196,939.77 (possible 
expenditure up to £254,966.97 this is to 
‘call-off’ the requirement from the 
successful supplier as and when they 
are needed.  Using a Framework 
agreement means we can call off less 
but not more than the number of 
vehicles we stipulate).  The Funding of 
fleet is through existing budgets for 
council vehicles.  A growth bid has been 
submitted for the owned vehicles that 
are being replaced by a lease.  The 
growth bid is for an additional £11,245.   

Legal / Governance Implications The procurement was carried out using 
Halton Housing Trust Framework which 
is open to public sector and not for profit 
third sector organisations. Official Journal 
of European Union (OJEU) references. 
Contract notice reference number 2016/S 
219-398789. Contract award notice 
reference number
2017/S 010-014700 

Community Safety Implications N/A 

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

Improved safety for lone workers and 
improved duty of care through better 
understanding and deployment of 
vehicles by the use of tracking and 
telematics.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

The decision is not considered to have 
any adverse negative impacts on any 
group with a protected characteristic.  

Wards Affected None 

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

Creating a Sustainable Business, 
Strengthening our Economy, Improving 
Health and Wellbeing 

Page 42



Is this a Key Decision  Yes 

Portfolio Holder Councillor Konrad Hansen 

Lead Officer Elaine Ridings 
Commissioning Manager
elaine.ridings@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety N Financial Y
Legal Y Partnership N
Social Inclusion N Asset Management N
Equality Duty N Health and Safety Y
Employment (internal) N Employment 

(external to the Council)
Y

1.0 Background

1.1 The existing Council fleet consists of 22 vehicles which includes, 10 leased 
vehicles and 12 owned vehicles.  All owned vehicles are at least 3 years old 
with a number approaching 10 years old, 8 of the leased vehicles are coming 
to the end of their lease period. All but 1 vehicle run on diesel fuel.

1.2 A review of existing arrangements for fleet management has highlighted that 
the existing arrangements do not provide robust, control or effective utilisation 
of council vehicles.  There is a proliferation of spend due to different lease 
arrangements with a variety of different prices and support for leased vehicles. 
 

1.3 There is no fleet manager role within the council to ensure effective utilisation 
and management of the fleet.  There is no way of measuring or understanding 
driver behaviours, skills and driving to ensure vehicles are being driven as 
safely, economically and sustainably as possible.

1.4 At present there is no consistent branding on council vehicles (some vehicles 
with Allerdale Borough Council logos and some without).  Old vehicles cause 
greater levels of pollution and are unreliable increasing the downtime of 
council vehicles and impacting on service delivery.

Page 43

mailto:elaine.ridings@allerdale.gov.uk


2.0 Content (to include alternative options considered)

This report provides the background and context to the procurement process 
undertaken for the fleet procurement and summaries the key stages in the 
procurement cycle:

 Analysis 
 Plan
 Do 
 Review   

2.1 Analysis of need 

2.1.1 In order to understand the council’s requirement for fleet there has been 
engagement with key stakeholders. All departments with council vehicles have 
been involved in discussions about the procurement of vehicles.  
Representatives from services have been asked their views and invited to 
meet potential suppliers.

2.1.2 A Discovery Day with fleet suppliers to look at options was held on the 14th 
June 2017.   There has been an opportunity to trial a number of vehicles 
including electric vehicles.  There have been meetings with a range of 
suppliers.  There has been consultation with all staff on proposed changes to 
fleet including what vehicles are required for their service area now and in the 
next 5 years.  

2.1.3 A procurement scoping report on Fleet went to SMT on the 20th July where it 
was agreed that only ‘white fleet’ would be included in the tender.  That is 
existing and replacement vans/cars used mainly by Community Services.    
‘Grey fleet’ drivers and use of ‘pool cars’ for services requiring regular travel, is 
to be investigated as a later phase of this project. 

2.2 Plan 

2.2.1 An options appraisal has been carried out to determine the right method to use 
to procure vehicles.  There has also been an appraisal of how to fund the 
vehicles i.e. whether to lease or buy. This has taken into account ‘whole life 
costs’ for the vehicles.  In most options appraisals a ‘do nothing option’ would 
be considered.  However this was not an option as most leased vehicles are 
coming to the end of contract and owned vehicles are approaching end of life. 

2.2.2 When looking at how best to procure it was decided to use a public sector 
framework agreement. Framework agreements enable the public sector to 
benefit from shared sourcing and procurement strategies.  This is particularly 
valuable where there is no existing expertise in a specific category such as 
fleet, which has particular risks.  The public sector buying groups who 

Page 44



administer the frameworks have access to buyers with fleet category expertise 
and best practice sourcing as well as discounts by aggregating demand.  

2.2.3 When looking at the various public sector frameworks available to use it was 
decided to use the Halton Housing Trust Contract Hire Framework, whilst 
almost identical in most respects to a number  of other public sector 
frameworks (OJEU compliant and free for the council to use) has two distinct 
advantages from the other frameworks in that they (i) provide disclosure of 
information required to determine whether lease qualify as an operating lease 
under regulations with supply certificates (ii) they provide assistance with 
competitions.  They also had access to more suppliers on their framework than 
some similar frameworks.  

2.2.4 Once prices were identified in the tender a comparison of the whole life costs 
was carried out by Capita to enable the council to decide whether the contract 
hire option offers Value for Money when compared to buying the vehicles.  The 
advice by Capita is part of our ongoing contract with them and includes advice 
on lease arrangements. 

2.3 Do 

2.3.1 In choosing to use an existing public sector framework the procurement had 
already undergone an OJEU compliant tender.  A ‘call off’ from the framework 
for a mini completion with suppliers on the framework went out on the 14th 
August with a closure date of 25th August. 

2.3.2 An evaluation panel consisted of Darren Sewell, Operations Manager 
Community Services, Sandra Sedgwick Assistant Accountant, Elaine Ridings, 
Commissioning Manager, and Barbara Watson Procurement Officer. 

 
2.3.3 The weighting of the criteria in the mini competition was as follows:

Table 1
Criteria Value 
Quality/Technical Skills 60% 
Environmental/social value 10% 
Price 30% 

 
2.3.4 In the environmental /social value method statement suppliers were requested 

to show how they would use local suppliers for supply and maintenance of 
vehicles to reduce environmental damage by reducing unnecessary journeys 
and to support local SMEs.   ISO 14001 certification was a necessary quality 
standard for all bidders on the framework1.  

1 ISO 14000 is a family of standards related to environmental management that exists to help organisations (a) minimise how 
their operations (processes, etc.) negatively affect the environment (b) comply with applicable laws, regulations, and other 
environmentally oriented requirements, and (c) continually improve in the above

Page 45



2.3.5 The council received five bids in the framework competition (scores Appendix 
2).  Key strengths of the successful tenderer (Supplier A)   were:

 They offered the best price overall. 

 They can offer mobile repairs to avoid unnecessary downtime.  

 They operate a ‘Driver line’ which is a 24/7 facility for all drivers 
accessed via an App, website or phone.  

 They are integrated with the AA breakdown systems so can track any 
breakdowns and monitor progress.  

 They provide as part of the contract a driver web based dash board 
giving live information which will:

o Track status of vehicles being delivered / serviced. 
o Traffic light system to manage downtime of vehicles 
o Enable us to view due and overdue accounts/invoices/click on 

invoices to check details 
o Provide reports to the council from the Dash board that can be 

converted into excel reports 

 They offer regular updates and advice on driver legislation and any 
changes relevant to drivers in fleet.   

 2.3.6 Two main options considered for the funding of vehicles were lease and buy 
options.  The whole life appraisal of costs is described in Appendix 1.  In the 
contract hire option the vehicles are purchased by a lessor. Over the lease 
period the council pays the lessor fixed rentals for the use of those assets. At 
the end of lease the council can return the assets, extend the lease or 
purchase the assets. The options appraisal looked at Pros and Cons of 
contract hire and who this option might suit.  

  
2.3.7 External Borrowing as an option is where assets are purchased utilising 

external borrowing.  The options appraisal in appendix 1 compared costs 
using PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) borrowing compared to lease costs 
over the period. 

2.4 Review

2.4.1 The procurement activities leading up to a contract award are only the 
beginning; effective contract management is where many of the business 
benefits from the new fleet will be achieved.  Although the Contract Hire 
requires little internal expertise the contract with the successful supplier once 
agreed, needs to me managed and monitored on a quarterly basis.  

Page 46



2.4.2 The Operational Manager in Community Services will manage the contract and 
ensure it is delivering what is set out in the contract.  There are a number of 
Performance Indicators built into the framework agreement, which will 
measure performance to ensure objectives are met.

3.0 Customer Satisfaction and Service

3.1 Public sector vehicles underpin the provision of public services, and more 
efficient operation of vehicles means the delivery of better services for 
Allerdale residents at a reduced cost and by limiting the impact of vehicles on 
the environment.  

3.2. Fleet acquisition best (or good) practice involves having a clear concept of the 
objectives of the business for the Council.  This means ‘running the right 
vehicles, for the right people at the right time and at the optimum cost’ within a 
recording system, which provides transparency and accountability. 

3.3 The procurement of contract hire means that downtime of vehicles will be 
reduced and that officers will have access to the right vehicles to ensure they 
can deliver services out in the community. 

4.0 Services Delivered as Locally as Possible

4.1 Social value has been included in the tender exercise.  In the environmental 
/social value method statement suppliers were requested to show how they 
would use local suppliers for supply and maintenance of vehicles to reduce 
environmental damage by reducing unnecessary journeys and to support local 
SMEs.

5.0 Finance/Resource Implications

5.1 The whole life cost of the winning supplier for a 5 year contract for supply and 
maintenance of 20 vehicles is £254,966.97 this is to ‘call off’ all vehicles in the 
specification.  Using a Framework agreement means we can call-off the 
requirement from the successful supplier as and when it is needed, less but 
not more than the number of vehicles we stipulate in the specification.  

5.2 The actual call off is likely to be 16 vehicles but the council will have additional 
capacity should services need additional vehicles.  Therefore the 5 year cost 
of the contract is £196,939.77. Some existing leases are in place for another 2 
years so these existing vehicles will remain until leases expire otherwise we 
would be liable for early surrender payments.  Asset Management Services 
also wish to keep a number of owned vehicles until 2019 as services are 
reviewed.  Depending on their requirements after 2019 will determine the 
number of vehicles they call off from the framework.  

5.3 Funding for the contract will be from the existing budgets for fleet.  A growth 
bid has been submitted by the Head of Service for Community Services who 

Page 47



will oversee the fleet budget.  The additional funding is to replace owned 
vehicles.  The growth bid is for £11,245.   

6.0 Legal Implications and Risks

6.1 In deciding to use contract hire for the fleet there is a risk of discontinuation of 
services by the service provider which can cause disruptions in the day to day 
operations if the leasing contract is cancelled for any reason, the organisation 
may have to make heavy investments in vehicle purchases or temporary hire 
to ensure business continuity. 

6.2 In the options appraisal Capita identified that there is a potential saving to 
utilise PWLB borrowing for the vehicle acquisition rather than contract hire 
depending upon which vehicle is ordered. Using contract hire also means that 
the council would also miss out on any residual value there is in the vehicles 
at the end of the 3 or 5 year period.  However overall using contract hire the 
lessor carries most of the risks.  If the council lease separately it may be more 
cost effective but if the managed service is separate from the finance it will be 
less attractive to a provider.

6.3 The option of whether to buy vs lease needs to be considered alongside the 
additional risks and costs that the council would take on if it were to purchase 
and separate the supply of vehicles from maintenance.  If funding with PWLB 
borrowing the council would incur the additional costs of procuring the vehicle 
assets. The council would also carry the associated ownerships risks, namely 
in-life maintenance and asset disposal. This will mean that should the assets 
sell for less than the anticipated sales proceeds, there will be an adverse 
budget impact in 5 years’ time to the authority (and vice versa).  

6.4 Using a Contract Hire contract the managed service provider is taking the risk 
on the suitability and longevity of the use of the vehicle.  Having the supply 
and managing of the contract together however, allows the maximum 
opportunity for the provider and therefore the most attractive for potential 
providers. The council may not be an attractive customer if servicing and 
maintenance is separate from supply of vehicles for what is a relatively small 
fleet. 

6.5 On deciding whether to buy or lease it is as always striking a balance between 
what’s affordable, the best deal and what the provider needs to make the offer 
attractive and viable and there not always mutually agreeable.

6.6 There are a number of anticipated savings in the new contract.  There will be 
up to 3 electric vehicles deployed and newer vehicles are more energy 
efficient so this will reduce overall fuel usage.  At the moment the council is 
paying high maintenance costs for old owned vehicles.  There are also a 
number of costs that are not covered under existing leases that will be 
covered in the new contract hire maintenance such as ‘no quibble’ tyre 

Page 48



change.  Many fleets have found savings in fuel costs and utilisation of 
vehicles when using telematics, avoiding down time, which is often a hidden 
cost of a poorly deployed fleet. 
   

6.7 Monitoring the total spend of fleet has been difficult when it has been across a 
number of departments and different budget codes.  All leases that are about 
to expire will move to the new provider and there will be one budget for all 
lease vehicles managed by the Head of Service for Community Services.  
This ensures less proliferation of spend and greater accountability.  

7.0 Recommendations

7.1 Recommend that the council leases the replacement fleet. This has been 
identified as the best funding option for the council when considering the risks 
of ownership.  Contract hire has been identified as the best way of meeting 
the council’s fleet requirements at this time.  The potential for fixed costs with 
minimal internal expertise is a key benefit for the council.  

7.2 Recommend that the Executive accepts the decision to award the Contract for 
white fleet vehicles to Supplier A, which was the highest scoring tenderer on 
price and quality.  The five year contract is valued at £196,939.77.

Paul Wood 
Head of Service, Customer, Transformation and Commissioning

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 8 November 2017

Quarterly Finance Report April to September 2017

The Reason for the Decision Quarterly Finance Report April to September 
2017 [Quarter 2]

Summary of options considered This report informs members of the Council’s 
financial performance against budget for the 
period April to September 2017 along with the 
forecast position to 31 March 2018.

Recommendations That the contents of the report are noted.
Financial / Resource Implications Financial issues and implications are included 

within the main body of this report.

Legal / Governance Implications None directly

Community Safety Implications None directly

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

Regular monitoring of financial performance 
forms an integral part of the framework of 
financial controls and procedures used by the 
Council to manage financial risks.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

N/A

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision 
would make to the Council’s 
priorities

Sound financial management is essential to 
successful delivery of the Council’s financial 
plans, achievement of value for money and the 
stewardship and safeguarding of public money.

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor Barbara Cannon

Lead Officer Catherine Nicholson
Head of Financial Services
Ext No. 20600
catherine.nicholson@allerdale.co.uk

Page 51

Agenda Item 10

mailto:catherine.nicholson@allerdale.co.uk


Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the 

Council)

N

Financial Y Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

1. Introduction

1.1 The Council’s financial regulations require the Section 151 Officer (Head of 
Financial Services) to report regularly, (at least quarterly), to Executive the latest 
financial position against budget.

1.2.1 This report outlines for both the Council’s Revenue budget (section 2) and Capital 
budget (section 6) the position based on an assessment of net expenditure to the 
end of September 2017 and the projected net expenditure to the 31st March 2018.

1.2.2 Reasons for significant variances (+/- £30k) between the full year forecast and the 
approved estimates (budget) for 2017/18 have been provided under the relevant 
section. 

1.3 This report also provides:

 details of forecast expenditure on projects funded from Earmarked 
Reserves (section 4).

 a summary forecast income from business rates, council tax and non- 
specific (un-ringfenced) grants (section 5) 

 a summary of the impact of the forecast outturn position on earmarked 
reserves and general fund balances (section 7)

 details of treasury management activity and confirmation of compliance 
with the Treasury and Prudential Indicators included in the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (sections 8)

 an overview of insurance activity during the period (section 9)

 performance information relating to sundry debtors income and write offs, 
payment of creditor invoices and the collection of council tax and 
business rates income (section 10)

Page 52



Key Messages
1.4 The headline messages at the end of quarter 2 of 2017/18 are that:

(i) Revenue expenditure on services, excluding projects funded from 
Earmarked Reserves, is forecast to exceed budget by £127k 

(ii) This is offset by an anticipated increase in business rates income (NNDR)
(iii) This change has been addressed as part of the revised budget.

(iv) During the Star Chamber process a number of other potential variances 
were acknowledged but have not led to additional budget requests. 
The budget holders for these areas are looking at alternative plans to 
ensure the variances can be reduced or eliminated and these have not 
been identified as a variance within this report, but have been highlighted 
separately as being an area of risk for not achieving the approved budget.
These potential variances will continue to be monitored and reported on as 
part of the regular monitoring reports.

(i) After taking account of re-profiling adjustments the gross projected 
overspend on the capital budget is £183k, which has been addressed as 
part of the revised budget.

(ii) Treasury management activities during the quarter were carried out in 
accordance with the Council’s treasury management and investment 
strategies and within the limits established by the approved treasury and 
prudential indicators for 2017/18 
No new external borrowing was undertaken during the first quarter of 
2017/18

1.5 Within this report the budgeted use of Reserves has been adjusted to reflect their 
current projected use. This represents a change to the approved budget of £435k to 
take into account underspends and additional contributions made to reserves in 
2016/17. 

Page 53



2. Summary of Projected Revenue Outturn Position
2.1 Table 1 shows the Council's overall projected outturn position:

Expenditure on Services
 The revenue budget is £14,502k
 The projected outturn including contributions to reserve is £14,629k

 This gives a projected overspend of £127k

Table 1 - Summary of Projected Outturn against Annual Budget

Budget
£’000

Projected
Outturn

£’000

Variance
£’000

Report 
Ref.

Net Expenditure on Services 12,588 12,715 127

Parish Precepts 1,914 1,914 0

Total Net Revenue Expenditure 14,502 14,629 127 Section 3

Earmarked Reserves to be used in year 2,684 2,684 0 Section 4 

Total Outturn 17,186 17,313 127
Funding:

Taxation & Government Grants 12,588 12,715 127 Section 5

Parish Precepts 1,914 1,914 0

Earmarked Reserves 2,684 2,684 0 Section 4

Contribution from/to General Fund 0 0 0 Section 7

Total Funding 17,186 17,313 127

2.2 After recognising a forecast increase from business rates income there is no impact 
on the Councils General Fund balances.

2.3 A breakdown – by portfolio - of the projected outturn variances is shown by portfolio 
in Table 2. Details of significant variances on services are detailed in sections 3 to 5 
of this report. 

Page 54



3. Analysis of Net Expenditure on Services against Budget

3.1 Projected outturn for expenditure on services for the financial year is £14,629 
(£14,428 projected outturn plus £201k unplanned contributions to reserve) against 
approved budget of £14,502k.

This will result in a forecast adverse variance of £142k for the financial year. A 
summary of variances by portfolio is provided in the following table.

Table 2 – Summary of variance by Portfolio

Service Annual 
Budget 

Projected 
Outturn

 Projected 
Variance

Un-planned 
Contributions 
to Reserves

Net
 Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Leader of the Council 561 533 (28) 0 (28)
Economic Growth (298) (480) (182) 201 19
Corporate Resources 4,590 4,517 (73) 0 (73)
Housing, Health & Well-being 1,078 1,067 (11) 0 (11)
Locality & Environmental Quality 2,991 3,057 66 0 66
Governance & People Resources 1,461 1,492 31 0 31
Tourism & Culture 260 300 40 0 40
Transformation 1,945 2,028 83 0 83
Parish Precepts 1,914 1,914 0 0 0

Total 14,502 14,428 (74) 201 127

3.2 A breakdown and analysis of significant variances (i.e. full year forecast of +/- £30k) 
by portfolio area is set out in the following paragraphs.

Page 55



Economic Growth Portfolio

3.3 The forecast net variance against the Economic Growth Portfolio budget is £34,542 
(adverse). Significant variances underlying the current forecast position are 
summarised in the following table.

Table 3 – Economic Growth significant variances

Service

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Para.

Caravan & Camping Site (41,369) 0 (41,369) 3.4

Economic Regeneration 30,000 0 30,000 3.6
Anti-Poverty (37,500) 0 (37,500) 3.7
Building Control Pay Group 78,349 0 78,349 3.9
Corporate Priorities (201,000) 201,000 0 3.10
Sub Total (171,520) 201,000 29,480  

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (9,938) 0 (9,938)  
Total variance (181,458) 201,000 19,542  

Caravan & Camping Sites: (favourable variance £41,369)
3.4 Income due to the Authority from this site is based on a share of the profit generated 

by the tenant. The favourable variance being forecast is based on:

 £22,903 additional income received from 2016/17 (this had been estimated 
as £476,114 compared with the actual income of £499,017)

 £18,446 additional income forecast for 2017/18 (the net budget is 
£564,000 and forecast net income is £582,446)

3.5 This remains a volatile income stream but work with the tenant has improved our 
ability to forecast the income due to the Authority from this site.

This has been offered as a saving as part of the revised budget. 
Economic Regeneration (adverse variance £45,000)

3.6 Cost of external advice associated with examining the potential use of alternative 
delivery models for the delivery of major schemes.  This exercise will consider the 
risks and opportunities associated with various options and make recommendations 
on their application.
Budget provision has been requested as part of the revised budget setting process. 
Anti-Poverty (favourable variance £37,500)

3.7 A £50,000 budget was initially allocated to the creation of a reducing Inequalities 
post. Following a review of the Strategy, Policy and Performance structure this post 
will no longer be required and the budget will contribute to the creation of this new 
structure. 

Page 56



3.8 As this new structure will not be in place until January 2018 there is a one-off saving 
of £37,500 from this budget not being required for the majority of the financial year. 
This has been identified as a saving as part of the revised budget. 
Building Control Pay Group (adverse variance £78,349)

3.9 Additional costs of agency staff to cover vacancies pending recruitment. This is a 
non-recurring issue and does not need action taken to address this on an on-going 
basis. Budget provision has been requested as part of the revised budget setting 
process. 
Corporate Priorities: (underspend of £201,000 to be carried forward to 
2018/19)

3.10 This is a non-recurring budget of £451k for the support of Council Priorities. The 
timing of expenditure from some of this budget is not known and there is a 
possibility that the budget may not be fully utilised in 2017/18. If this is the case the 
underspend will be contributed to a reserve to ensure this is available in 2018/19 to 
deliver on Council Priority schemes.
£220k of this budget has now been allocated towards the development of the West 
Cumbria Credit Union - in line with the Council Priority of Tackling Inequalities - and 
will be paid over the four years (2017/18 to 2020/21)

Corporate Resources
3.11 The forecast net variance against the Corporate Resources is £73,292 (adverse). 

Significant variances underlying the current forecast position are summarised in the 
following table.

Table 4 – Corporate Resources significant variances

Service

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Para.

Banking and Interest (42,118) 0 (42,118) 3.12

Sub Total (42,118) 0 (42,118)  
Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (31,173) 0 (31,173)  
Total variance (73,292) 0 (73,292)  

Page 57



Banking and Interest (favourable variance £42,118)
3.12 An overall favourable position due to the following two items: 

 £68k reduction in PWLB borrowing costs to reflect changes to the expected 
timing of capital expenditure (funded from borrowing) across financial years 
and associated changes to external borrowing requirements. This is a non-
recurring reduction and has been offered as part of the revised budget

 (£26k) Anticipated reduction in interest received from investments as a result 
of declining trends in investment rates since January 2017. This is a recurring 
issue as interest rates are not currently forecast to increase in the near 
future. 

3.13 This has been addressed via a growth bid as part of the revised budget.  

Locality & Environmental Quality

3.14 The forecast net variance against the Locality & Environmental Quality Portfolio 
budget is £65,326 (adverse). Significant variances underlying the current forecast 
position are summarised in the following table.

Table 5 – Transformation significant variances

Service

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Para.

Off-street – Owned Car Parks 56,617 0 56,617 3.15
Community Service Pay-group (32,215) 0 (32,215) 3.16
Sub Total 24,402 0 24,402  
Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k 40,924 0 40,924  
Total variance 65,326 0 65,326  

Off-street – Owned Car Parks (adverse variance of £56,617)
3.15 This adverse variance comprises:

 £40k Additional NNDR costs. The budget was based on the draft 2017/18 
valuations. The Valuation Office have since undertaken a revaluation 
exercise for Car Park which has increase the rates payable for these 
premises. This is a recurring items and budget provision has been submitted 
as part of the revised budget. 

 £15k Use of consultants to review the commercial use of car parks. This is a 
one-off piece of work and will not require any additional budget after 2017/18, 
non-recurring growth has been submitted as part of the revised budget.

Community Service Pay-group (favourable variance of £32,215)

3.16 Previously vacant posts have been filled by staff on a lower scale point than had 
been budgeted for. This has been dealt with as part of the revised budget.

Page 58



Tourism & Culture

3.17 The forecast net variance against the Tourism & Culture budget is £40,101 
(adverse). Significant variances underlying the current forecast position are 
summarised in the following table.

Table 6 – Tourism & Culture

Service

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Para.

Museums 40,155 0 40,155 3.18

Sub Total 40,155 0 40,155  

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (54) 0 (54)  

Total variance 40,101 0 40,101  

Museums (adverse variance £40,155)

3.18 This adverse variance relates to water ingress into the Keswick Museum’s collection 
storage room and comprises:

 £25k for site investigation works which are required to establishing the cause 
of water ingress, non-recurring growth has been submitted as part of the 
revised budget. In the event that this identified third party liability it may be 
possible to recover this cost.

 £15k for off site storage costs for the collection which has been moved until 
the outcome of an investigation into the cause of the ingress is complete, 
non-recurring growth has been submitted as part of the revised budget. In the 
event that this identified third party liability it may be possible to recover this 
cost.

Other portfolios

3.19 At quarter 1 there were no significant variances (i.e. variances of +/- £30k) to report 
within the following portfolios:

 Leader of the Council
 Housing, Health & Well-being 
 Governance & People Resources
 Transformation

Potential Variances 

3.20 Details are provided in this section of the report in relation to service areas which 
are not currently reporting a variance, but which are not on target to achieve the 
approved budget. 

Page 59



3.21 A number of these variances were acknowledged during the Star Chamber process, with 
the budget holders for these areas looking at alternative plans to ensure the variances can 
be reduced or eliminated. 

3.22 As there is a risk that these will contribute to an adverse variance details have been 
included below. 

Table 7 – Potential Variances 

Service

Potential 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£’000

Planning and Development: Potential costs of a planning public inquiry 
following appeal of a planning decision (provision of barrister/planning 
consultant costs). 

55

Pest Control: Potential for income to be lower than budget. A review of the 
service is being undertaken after which a business case will be produced to 
provide a plan for the future of this service. 

17

Off-street parking (PCN’s): Potential shortfall in income. This is being 
reviewed with a view to address the situation, but this may not be fully resolved 
in the current financial year

38

Off-street parking (Otley Road): Delay in the purchase of Otley Road in 
2017/18. A review is being undertaken to identify alternative savings to off-set 
this variance.

32

Off-street parking (Managed): Potential shortfall in income. The base budget 
for this service will be further reviewed as part of the 2018/19 budget setting 
process. 

13

Bereavement Services: Anticipated reduction in income as a result of a fall in 
the number of burials in the current year. The position is being monitoring and 
alternative ways of income generation are being explored.

10

Revenues (recovery of court costs): Following increased flexibility in the 
payment methods now available for Council Tax the need for court summons 
has reduced. This in turn has reduced the income received from the recharge 
of administrative costs associated with this action. We will continue to monitor 
the situation and where necessary address the base budget as part of the 
2018/19 budget setting process. 

24

Communications and Marketing (corporate advertising) The Budget for this 
service is to achieve £35k income from the sale of advertising. To date only a 
small amount of income has been identified but work will continue to be 
undertaken to identify any further opportunities where this saving may be 
achieved

34

Total Potential variance 223

3.23 These will continue to be monitored and reported on as part of the regular monitoring 
reports.

Page 60



4. Projects funded from Earmarked Reserves 
4.1 The balance in Earmarked Reserve of £5,201k, which can be split as follows:

 £3,695k held for service expenditure
 £1,506k held for accounting purposes or as contingency against specified 

risks

4.2 The original budgeted use of reserves is set before the 2016/17 outturn position and 
before the approval of carry forwards requests. 

4.3 Following the publication of the draft outturn position the budgeted use of Reserves 
has been increased to reflect the available balance of reserves. 

4.4 Against the balance of £3,695 (reserves held for service expenditure) the projected 
spend during 2017/18 is £2,684k. 

4.5 The remaining £1,010k will be held in reserve to cover expenditure plans in later 
financial years, or is under review with the potential for this to be released or re-
allocated.

4.6 Table 6 provides a summary of how the £435k original budget and £3,695 reserves 
held for service expenditure is split between portfolios as well as how this is 
currently being projected.

Table 6 - Summary of projected expenditure from earmarked reserves

Original  
Budget

Reserve  
Balance

Projected 
outturn
2017/18

Retained  
for future 

use / reviewReserve Funded projects 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Leader of the Council 0 379 379 0
Economic Growth 81 471 370 101
Corporate Resources 225 866 683 183
Housing, Health & Well-being 0 858 291 567
Locality & Environmental Quality 39 208 195 13
Governance & People Resources 34 675 554 121
Tourism & Culture 0 30 30 0
Transformation 56 207 182 25
Total Reserves 435 3,694 2,684 1,010

4.7 All earmarked reserves are currently being reviewed to ensure they are held in-line 
with Council priorities and that the balance remains at the appropriate level. Further 
details of this review will be reported in future budget monitoring reports.

Page 61



5. Taxation and Non-specific grant income

5.1 Details of the Council’s taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure for 
the year compared with budget are shown in the following table. This includes 
income received from:

 Non-ring fenced government grants such as Revenue Support Grant and 
New Homes Bonus  

 Council tax and Non Domestic Rates (NNDR)

Table 8 -Taxation and Non-specific grant income

Budget 
£’000

Forecast 
Outturn
 £’000

Variance

 £’000
Para

Revenue support grant 1,060 1,060 0

Rural Services Delivery Grant 261 261 0

New Homes Bonus 1,604 1,604 0

Council tax – excluding parish element 4,920 4,920 0

Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - Council Tax 139 139 0

NNDR funding 4,604 4,731 (127)

12,588 12,715 (127)

5.2 Details of the anticipated increase in business rates income (NNDR) of £142k is included 
in the revised budget and comprises the following elements:

 £15k increase in Council’s share of business rates income (NNDR), 
 £405k increase in the amount of s31 grant credited to the general fund (net of 

transfer to volatility reserve)
 £70k reduction in the anticipated levy payment 
 £(363)k net transfer to the NNDR s31 and NNDR volatility reserves. 

Page 62



6. Capital budget

6.1 The Capital Outturn for 2016/17 is summarised in table 8. In particular this shows:

 the approved budget is £9,401k
 the budget carry forwards (c/f) are £3,391k
 a current budget (approved budget plus budget c/f) of £12,792k 
 a projected  outturn position of £5,935k
 an underspend compared to the budget of £6,857k 
 budget re-profiling of £7,040k

 a remaining overspend of £183k

Table 10 – Overview of Variances by Portfolio
Current 
Budget

Outturn Outturn 
Variance

Re-
profiled

Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Capital Expenditure
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 2,499 2,180 (319) 319 0

Corporate Resources 447 447 0 0 0
Localities & Environmental 462 478 16 167 183
Transformation 150 150 0 0 0
Economic Growth 8,750 2,500 (6,250) 6,250 0
Tourism & Culture 484 180 (304) 304 0
Total - Capital Expenditure 12,792 5,935 (6,857) 7,040 183
Capital Financing      
Capital Grants 8,600 2089 (6,511) 6511 0
Capital Receipts 280 280 0 0 0
Earmarked Reserves 231 231 0 0 0
Revenue Budget 13 13 0 0 0
General Fund Balances 730 730 0 0 0
Borrowing 2938 2592 (346) 529 183
Total - Capital Funding 12,792 5,935 (6,857) 7,040 183
Total - Projected Variance 0 0 0 0 0

Key Variances

6.2 Details of key variances are set out in the following paragraphs.

Page 63



Localities & Environmental Quality

6.3 The Localities & Environmental portfolio is currently reporting an overspend of 
£183k, with one significant variance causing this position.

MSCP equipment (Overspend of £183k)

6.4 Following the decision to bring responsibility for management of the Multi Storey 
Car Park in-house a number of capital purchases have been necessary (pay on foot 
parking system, CCTV system and shutters) to ensure the safe and effective 
operation of the facility.

6.5 These items will be funded from borrowing and the cost of this will charged against 
the revenue budget over the life of the assets (estimated to be 12 years at £18k per 
year). This revenue implications of this expenditure was taken in to account when 
assessing the financial implications of the decision to take over the management of 
the Multi Storey Car Park. As a consequence this overspend has no impact on the 
savings expected to be achieved from the decision to take over management of this 
facility.

6.6 This is in line with the Executive report which was approved prior to this decision 
and means that over the medium term we are projecting a saving against the 
approved budget.

Re-profiling 

6.7 In year monitoring procedures have identified a number of changes affecting the 
profiling of previously approved expenditure across financial years. These re-
profiling adjustments involve the transfer of expenditure budgets and associated 
financing from 2017/18 to 2018/19 to reflect current expenditure forecasts.

Housing, Health & Well-being

The Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) (re-profiling of £144,362)

6.8 Budget for the provision of adaptations to disabled people’s homes to help them to 
live independently for longer. The Authority has a statutory duty to provide 
adaptations to the homes of disabled people who qualify for a mandatory DFG.

6.9 The expenditure on these grants is volatile due to being demand led. The approved 
capital budget for 2017/18 is £750,000. Although the Housing team are taking steps 
to increase our provision of these grants, projected expenditure for the year is 
expected to fall below the budget. The current forecasted outturn expenditure of  
£646,564  will result in an underspend of £144,362. This underspend will be re-
profiled to subsequent financial years for use against either the mandatory or 
discretionary DFG schemes.

Page 64



Discretionary Grants (re-profiling of £125,000)

6.10 The processing of Discretionary Grants started in July 2017 with a number of grant 
applications now in the system. Further communications about the grants is 
programmed to start in September  2017, but the full budget may not be  'spent' until  
2018/19.

Health Homes (Empty Homes) (re-profiling of £50,000)

6.11 Letters have been sent to property owners whose properties have been empty for 
over two year to promote grants, but take up has been slow.  

6.12 A number of cases are currently progressing, however previous experience has 
shown that these can be complex and therefore difficult to get to approval and then 
final payment stage which may mean that some of the budget is not 'spent' until 
2018/19.

Localities & Environmental Quality

Harrington reservoir (re-profiling of £167,000)

6.13 The budget of £167k is to be partially financed by a variety of external funding 
providers: This scheme is now expected to be delayed until 2018/19 to allow 
sufficient time to secure all of the targeted funding. This delay is due to an 
unsuccessful funding bid of £40k, a plan is now in place to secure this balance but 
we will not have a decision on this until late in the financial year.

Economic Growth

Lillyhall – Development (underspend of £4.8m to be re-profiled)

6.14 The 2017/18 capital programme includes a budget of £5m for the development of 
Lillyhall North to support economic growth within the borough. A number of 
development options are currently under consideration and any decision to proceed 
with these options is subject to completion of a full business case and financial 
appraisal. 

6.15 Whilst the precise timing of this expenditure is not yet known, it unlikely that the 
budget will be fully spent in 2017/18. The existing budget has consequently been re-
profiled to 2018/19 to reflect current expectations around the timing of expenditure 
on this scheme. This budget is to be financed from external grant funding from the 
Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Growth Deal, meaning this funding 
would also need to be carried forward.

Page 65



Reedlands Road - Industrial Development (underspend of £1.45m to be re-
profiled)

6.16 The announcement of the funding is expected later in the financial year, which 
means that if the scheme does go ahead it is unlikely that any significant work would 
be undertaken until 2018/19. The previously approved budget has been re-profiled 
to reflect this. 

Tourism 

6.17 The Tourism  portfolio is currently reporting an underspend of £304k, expected 
budget carry forwards of £304k – leaving no variance. 

Solway coast multi-user pathway (underspend of £304k to be re-profiled)

6.18 This scheme relates to the creation of a multi-user coastal pathway linking Silloth-
on-Solway and the West Cumbria Cycle network and the Hadrian’s cycle route. The 
overall scheme was expected to cost £1.7m (profiled over two financial years 
2017/18 and 2018/19) to be fully financed from a bid to the Coastal Communities 
Fund (CCF). 

6.19 This bid was only able secure £1m. To deal with this funding gap the scheme has 
been reviewed and cost savings identified, with the current projected cost being 
£1.250m. Work is currently on-going to secure the additional £250k from the RDPE 
Tourism Infrastructure Fund (which has successfully passed the Expression of 
Interest stage). 

6.20 The profiling of scheme expenditure across financial years 2017/18 and 2018/19 
has been adjusted to reflect the revised scheme costs and expected delivery 
timetable.  

Page 66



7. Impact on General Fund and Earmarked Reserve Balances

7.1 The impact of current budget forecasts on the Council’s general fund and 
earmarked general fund balances (Earmarked Reserves) is summarised in the 
following tables.

General Fund Balances

7.2 The position on general fund balance is more favourable than the position estimated 
during the budget setting process, due to the favourable 2016/17 outturn position. 

Table 12 - Estimated General Fund (GF) balances 
Original 
Budget

Revised 
Budget Change

£'000 £'000 £'000
Opening Balances 3,801 3,801 0
Adjustment to reflect the 2016/17 outturn position 0 1,298 1,298
Audited Balance at 1 April 2017 0 5,099 5,099
Add: Release of Earmarked Reserves to GF 0 0 0
Less: Approved use for 2017-18 capital programme 
(including carry-forwards) 0 (730) (730)

Less: Use of GF to support 2017-18 Revenue Budget  0 0 0
Forecast balance at 31 March 2018 3,801 4,369 568
Committed to finance 2018-19 capital programme  0 (250) (250)
Retained - Minimum Balance 2,700 2,700 0

Available for Use 1,101 1,419 318

Earmarked General Fund balances

7.3 The Earmarked Reserve Balance of £5,201 can be split as follows:
 £3,695k held for service expenditure
 £1,506k held for accounting purposes or as contingency against specified 

risks

Page 67



7.4 It is expected that £2,535k will be used is 2017/18 and that £578 will be added to 
the reserve, leaving a balance of £2,362 at the end of the year:

Table 13 - Estimated Earmarked General Fund balances 
Original 
Budget Forecast Change

£'000 £'000 £'000

Opening Balances 1 April 2016 3,575 3,575 0

Projected movement in 2016/17 (1,465) - 1,465
Adjustment to reflect 2016/17 revenue outturn 1,626 1,626
Balance at 1 April 2017 2,110 5,201 3,091
Less: Release to General Fund

Add planned Contributions to Earmarked Reserves 35 35 0

Contributions to Volatility Reserve 345 345

Less: Planned use in 2017-18 - revenue (435) (2,454) (2,019)

Less: Planned use in 2017-18 - capital 0 (230) (230)
Forecast balance at 31 March 2018 1,710 2,897 1,187
Potential un-planned Contributions to Earmarked 
Reserves 0 201 201

Un-planned Contributions to Earmarked Reserves 1,710 3,098 1,388

7.5 The forecast Earmarked Reserves balance at 31st March 2018 of £3,098k 
comprises:

 £1,506k held for accounting purposes or as contingency against specified risks
 £1,010k of the opening reserve balance to be held in reserve to cover 

expenditure plans in later financial years, or is under review with the potential for 
this to be released or re-allocated.

 £35k additional planned Contributions to Earmarked Reserves to be held in 
reserve to cover expenditure in later financial years

 £345k additional un-planned Contributions to Volatility Reserves to be held in 
reserve to be release in later financial years

 £201k potential un-planned Contributions to Earmarked Reserves to be held in 
reserve to cover expenditure in later financial years

7.6 Earmarked reserves are currently being reviewed to ensure they are held in-line 
with Council priorities and that the balance remains at the appropriate level. Further 
details of this review will be reported in future budget monitoring reports. 

Page 68



8. Treasury Management

Investments

8.1 At 30th September 2017 the Council’s investment balances (excluding current 
account balances) totalled £12.1m. This compares with a balance of £7.7m at 30th 
June 2017, £8.1m at 31st March 2017 and £12.3m at 30th September 2016.

8.2 A summary of the Council’s investments transactions in the three months to 30th 

September 2017 is shown in the following table: 
Table 14 - Investment activity quarter 2 2017-18

Investments
1 July 
2017 Made Repaid

30 Sept. 
2017 Credit 

Rating

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Specified Investments 
Call Accounts  AA- 2,095 4,890 (4,870) 2,115
Call Accounts  A / A- 1,578 8,470 (8,584) 1,464
Notice Accounts A 0 0 0 0
Money Market Funds AAA 3,980 19,690 (15,150) 8,520

Non Specified Investments
Equity Shares Not rated 11 0 0 11
  7,664 33,050 (28,604) 12,110

8.3 The average level of funds available for investment purposes during the quarter 
ending 30th September 2017 was £13.7m. This compares with an average of 
£15.8m during the same 3 month period last year and an average investment 
balance over the course of 2016/17 of £16m.

8.4 Movements in investment balances during the period are largely attributable to the 
timing of cash flows associated with precept payments, income from grants and 
local taxation (council tax and business rates) and the Council’s capital programme.

8.5 The Council’s Annual Investment Strategy was approved by members in March 
2017. In accordance with that strategy all investments made during the period were: 

 restricted to approved investment instruments (MM funds, call and notice 
accounts) 

 made only with high credit quality counterparties holding a minimum long-
term rating across all three of the main credit ratings agencies (Fitch, 
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s) of A- or equivalent (AA+ or equivalent 
for non-UK sovereigns) 

 made for periods not exceeding the maximum permitted durations 
determined by reference to the relative creditworthiness of the 
counterparty. 

Page 69



Borrowing (gross debt)

8.6 Details of borrowing transactions in the three months to 30th September 2017 are 
summarised in the following table:
Table 15 - External borrowing activity quarter 2 2017-18 

1 July    
2017

New 
Borrowing

Principal 
Repaid

30 Sept
2017 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Long-term     
PWLB – fixed rates 13,580 0 (86) 13,494

Short-term  

Local Bonds 31 0 0 31

Trust Funds 54 0 0 54

 13,665 0 (86) 13,579

8.7 No new borrowing or rescheduling of existing loans took place during the 3 months 
to 30th September 2017.  PWLB principal of £85,427was repaid during the quarter.

8.8 By utilising cash from reserves, revenue balances and favourable cash flow the 
Council has been able to meet its liquidity requirements without the need to borrow. 
This has allowed the Council to minimise borrowing costs and reduce treasury risk 
by reducing its external investment balances.

8.9  The Council’s 2017-18 Budget and Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
anticipate additional PWLB borrowing during 2017/18 of up to £4.7m to fund the 
Council’s capital programme. This includes £3m of borrowing deferred from 
2016/17. The decision to draw down additional PWLB loans will be determined in 
accordance with the borrowing strategy set out in the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement with the timing and amount of any additional 
borrowing reflecting:

 future liquidity (cash flow) requirements including in particular funds required 
to fund the Council’s capital programme

 expected future movements in interest rates 
 management of treasury risk.

8.10 At 30th September 2017 the Council’s PWLB loan portfolio consisted of fixed rate: 
 maturity loans totalling £8.0m (30th June 2017: £8m)
 fixed rate annuity loans totalling £1.734m (30th June 2017: £1.740m)
 equal instalment of principal loans of £3.76m (30th June 2017: £3.84m).

8.11 Interest rates applying to individual loans within the Council’s PWLB loan portfolio 
range from 2.6% to 9.5%. The weighted average interest rate on the PWLB loan 
portfolio currently stands at 5.86% (30th September 2016: 5.83%). This compares 
with the following PWLB rates applying to maturity and annuity loans at 30th 
September 2017 (table 16):

Page 70



Table 16 - PWLB new loan & premature repayment rates at 30th September 2017 
Certainty1 Premature repayment2

Term Annuity
 %

Maturity 
%

EIP 
  %

Annuity 
%

Maturity 
%

EIP  
 %

Over 4½ Years not over 5 1.32 1.59 1.31 0.37 0.3 0.37

Over 9½ Years not over 10 1.63 2.18 1.62 0.67 1.21 0.67

Over 24½ Years not over 25 2.48 2.79 2.42 1.54 1.87 1.48

Over 49½ Years not over 50 2.75 2.52 2.79 1.83 1.6 1.86

1 Certainty rates are calculated by subtracting 0.2% from standard new loan rates. They apply to new loans taken 
out by authorities who provided DCLG with required information on their long-term borrowing and capital 
spending plans. 

2 Premature repayment rates apply to loans which are being repaid early. 

8.12 The rates of interest on loans within the Council’s PWLB loan portfolio are 
significantly higher than those currently available on new PWLB borrowing. This 
reflects both the historic nature of this debt and the exclusive use of fixed rate loans. 
However the differential between new borrowing rates (certainty rate) and the 
PWLB’s premature redemption rates makes rescheduling unviable at the present 
time. At 30th September 2017 the premium that would payable to repay the 
Council’s PWLB loans prematurely was £13.1m (30th June 2017: £13.5m). The 
decrease of £0.4m reflects the increase in gilt yields and the corresponding increase 
in premature redemption rates during the quarter. 

8.13 The graph below shows that after peaking in early July PWLB rates were on a 
downward trend through the middle of the quarter before rising sharply during 
September. At 30th September 2017June the 50 year PWLB certainty rate for new 
loans closed at 2.52% (30th June 2017 2.46%). The 25 year rate ended the quarter 
at 2.79% (30th June 2017: 2.73%).

Page 71



Maturity Structure of borrowings

8.14 The maturity structure of external borrowing at 30th September 2017 (principal only) 
is shown in table 17.

Table 17 - Maturity profile of external borrowing
At 30 sept 

2017
At 30 June 

2017
At 31 March 

2017
At 30 June 

2016
At 31 March 

2016
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Less than 1 year 315 315 312 317 316
Between 1 & 2yrs 236 236 233 230 227
Between 2 & 5yrs 753 751 742 729 720
Between 5 & 10yrs 1,447 1,442 1,419 1,389 1,368
Between 10 & 20yrs 2,268 2,281 2,346 2,433 2,492
Between 20 & 30yrs 560 640 640 800 800
Between 30 & 40yrs 8,000 8,000 7,000 4,000 2,000
Between 40 & 50yrs 0 0 1,000 4,000 6,000

13,579 13,665 13,692 13,898 13,922

8.15 At 30th September 2017 the weighted average time to maturity of the Council’s 
PWLB debt portfolio was approximately 31 years. The weighted average life of the 
PWLB debt portfolio at 30th September 2017 was 27 years.

Interest charged on Borrowings and Income Received on Investments

8.16 Interest charged or received on the Council’s borrowing and investments in the 
three months to 30th September 2017 is summarised in the following table:

Table 18 - Interest payable and investment income receivable 
Budget 
2017-18

Actual 
3 months to 

30 June 

Actual 
3 months 
to 30 Sept 

Forecast 
 1 Oct to 

31 Mar 18

Projected 
Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Borrowing 892 26 175 623 (68)

Investment income (46) (3) (5) (12) 26

Net 846 23 170 611 42

8.17 Investment rates available in the market were on a slight declining trend during most 
of the quarter but, apart from the seven day rate, moved up sharply after the MPC 
meeting of 14 September abruptly raised expectations of how soon the Bank Rate 
was likely to go up.

Page 72



8.18 At 30th September 2017 the approximate rate of return (yield) on the Council’s 
investments was 0.18%. This compares favourably with the Council’s benchmark 
return rate (7-day LIBID rate) of 0.11%. 

Table 19 - Money Market Rates (London Interbank Bid Rate - LIBID)
Period 1 July 

to 30 Sept 
2017

At 30 Sept 
2017

At 30 June 
2017

At 31 March 
2017

Rate % Rate % Rate % Rate %
7 days’ notice 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.11

1 month fixed 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13

3 months fixed 0.17 0.21 0.18 0.21

6 months fixed 0.30 0.37 0.34 0.37

1 year fixed 0.51 0.60 0.56 0.59

Treasury and Prudential Indicators

8.19 The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to determine and keep under 
review limits on how much money it can afford to borrow by way of loans and other 
forms of credit (for example finance leases). The processes the Council must follow 
in setting these limits (the ‘Authorised Limit for External Debt’) is set out in the 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities to which the Council is 
required to ‘have regard to’ under provisions contained in the 2003 Act.

8.20 In addition to the Authorised Limit CIPFA’s Prudential and Treasury Management 
Codes and accompanying sector guidance include a number of other key treasury 
management indicators designed to ensure the Council operates its treasury 
activities within well-defined limits.

8.21 The Council’s Authorised Borrowing Limit (the statutory limit on borrowing under the 
Local Government Act 2003), Operational Boundary (the limit beyond which external 
debt is not expected to exceed) and other indicators and limits required by CIPFA’s 
Prudential and Treasury Management Codes are set out in the Council’s Treasury 

Page 73



Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy for 2017-18. This was 
approved by the Full Council on 1st March 2017.

8.22 During the quarter ended 30th September 2017 the Council has operated within the 
limits established by the treasury and prudential indicators set out in the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2017-18.  

9. Insurance 

9.1 A summary of claims lodged and settled between 1st April 2017 and 30th September 
2017 is set out in table 20.

Table 20 - Insurance claims 6 months to 30th September 2017
No. 

Claims
b/f

No. Settled
to date

No. Lodged
to date

No. Claims
Outstanding

Public Liability 13 8 4 9

Employers Liability           3 3 0 0
Other 1 0 0 1
Property Damage and Motor 4 0 2 6
Municipal Mutual (1974 to 1993) 2 0 0 2

23 11 6 18

9.2 The cost of claims settled during the financial year to date £5,245, this is below our 
insurance excess meaning the full £5,245 is payable by Allerdale.

9.3 The estimated cost of outstanding claims is estimated at £145,962, Allerdale's 
liability is limited by our insurance excess meaning the cost to Allerdale is £28,083. 

9.4 This gives an estimated cost to Allerdale in 2017/18 of £33,328 against a provision 
of £127,239 set aside to meet the Authority’s liabilities arising from insurance claims 
(including insurance ‘excess’ payable). 

This leaves a remaining unallocated provisions balance of £93,911. This balance is 
expected to be sufficient to meet liabilities arising from additional claims that may be 
received in relation to incidents incurred but not reported (IBNRs).

Page 74



10. Working Capital Management

Sundry Debtors and Write-offs

10.1 The outstanding sundry debt (including Trade Refuse) at 30th September 2017, was 
£566,384, which is detailed in the following table.

Table 21 - Outstanding Debtors at 30th September 2017
Total debt 

outstanding 
Not past 

due
30 Days 
past due

60 Days 
past due

>90 Days 
past due

£ £ £ £ £

At 30th Sept 2016 1,279,126 150,419 26,501 21,707 1,080,500

% debt 100% 12% 2% 2% 84%
At 31st March 2017 1,478,658 540,490 9,137 12,956 916,076
% debt 100% 37% 1% 1% 62%
At  30th June 2017 1,262,266 843,647 9,896 237,485 171,239
% debt 100% 67% 1% 19% 14%
At 30th Sept 2017 591,732 236,614 143,730 24,595 186,793
% debt 100% 40% 24% 4% 32%

10.2 Approximately £186,793 or 32% of the outstanding debt is over 90 days old which 
compares favourably when compared to the same time last year and with the 
position at the end of last financial year.

10.3 A total of 87 sundry debtor/trade waste invoices amounting to £7,709 have been 
written off between April and September 2017.

Table 22 - Write off of debtors
2015/16

(Apr – Sept)
2016/17

(Apr – Sept)
2017/18

(Apr – Sept)
No 

invoices
Total 

£
No 

invoices
Total 

£
No 

invoices
Total 

£

Sundry Debtors 132 11,367 35 13,903 41 5285

Trade Waste 115 4,472 113 (3,053) 46 2424
TOTAL 247 15,839 148 10,850 87 7,709

Payment of Creditor Invoices

10.4 The Authority has a target to pay 98% of Allerdale supplier invoices within 14 days 
and 98% of non-Allerdale supplier invoices within 30 days.

10.5 For quarter 2 of this financial year 1,494 supplier invoices were paid, 452 were from 
Allerdale suppliers and 1,042 were from non-Allerdale suppliers.

10.6 383 of the Allerdale supplier invoices were paid within 14 days (or 85%). The 
performance against this target has improved since quarter 1. 

Page 75



Table 23 – Summary of Allerdale supplier invoices paid quarter 2
Invoices paid 

within 14 days

Service Area

Invoices 
Received

Qtr 2

Invoices 
paid in 
14 days

Qtr 2 Qtr 2 Qtr 1

No No % %
Leader of the Council 10 9 90% 80%
Economic Growth 38 32 84% 83%
Corporate Resources 153 148 97% 65%
Governance & People Resources 65 56 86% 96%
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 52 49 94% 72%
Locality & Env. Quality 92 61 66% 57%
Tourism & Culture 17 14 82% 57%
Transformation 25 14 56% 54%
Total 452 383 85% 79%

10.7 999 of the non Allerdale supplier invoices were paid within 30 days (or 96%). The 
performance against this target has improved since quarter 1.

Table 24 – Summary of non Allerdale supplier invoices paid quarter 2
Invoices paid 

within 30 days

Service Area

Invoices 
Received

Qtr 2

Invoices 
paid in 
14 days

Qtr 2 Qtr 2 Qtr 1
No No % %

Leader of the Council 8 8 100% 92%
Economic Growth 106 105 99% 88%
Corporate Resources 344 341 99% 96%
Governance & People Resources 102 96 94% 87%
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 96 96 100% 95%
Locality & Env. Quality 176 157 89% 69%
Tourism & Culture 34 31 91% 95%
Transformation 176 165 94% 93%
Total 1,042 999 96% 90%

Page 76



10.8 Reasons for delays in the payment of the invoices include goods/service not being 
receipted within the purchase order system in a timely manner, invoices received 
without a valid Purchase Order and invoices being sent directly to the department 
rather than the Invoice Section. A summary of the reasons for delays in payment is 
set below.

Table 25 - Reasons for delay in payment of supplier invoices (Q2 2017/18)
Reasons for delay Number of 

invoices

Invoices received without a valid purchase order 12
Price discrepancy between invoice and purchase order requiring  authorisation 
prior to payment 10
Purchase order was not goods receipted prior to receipt of invoice 72
Manual authorisation required (purchase order not required) 7
Other one-off instances which would not be a recurring issue. 0
Invoices sent directly to department or individual instead of the Invoice Section 11
Total number subject to delayed payment 112

10.9 This target will continue to be monitored and where any relevant issues are 
identified these will be addressed and reported in future monitoring reports. 

Council Tax and NNDR – collection statistics

10.10 During the three months to 30th September collection rates for Council tax and NNDR 
were broadly in line with expectations.

Table 26 – Council Tax and NNDR collection rates as at 30th September
Council Tax 
Collection

%

NNDR 
Collection

%

Q2 CTAX and NNDR as % of Full 
Year Collectable income

Q2 2017/18 57.62% 57.51% 57.58% -£46.8m (out of £81.3m)
Q2 2016/17 57.62% 57.45% 57.56% -£45.1m (out of £78.4m)
Q2 2015/16 57.95% 57.59% 57.81% - £43.9m (out of £76.1m) 

Catherine Nicholson
Head of Financial Services

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



Appendix A1
Summary of Draft Outturn by Portfoliio

Portfolio

Net

Approved
budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross Outturn Gross Variance YE contr to

reserve
Projected
Outturn Variance

REVENUE
Leader of the Council 560,570 560,570 533,322 (27,248) 0 533,322 (27,248)
Economic Growth (273,020) (298,020) (479,478) (181,458) 201,000 (263,478) 19,542
Corporate Resources 4,299,367 4,589,913 4,516,621 (73,292) 0 4,516,621 (73,292)
Housing, Health & Well-being 1,050,560 1,077,860 1,066,689 (11,171) 0 1,066,689 (11,171)
Locality & Environmental Quality 3,322,370 2,991,473 3,056,799 65,326 0 3,056,799 65,326
Governance & People Resources 1,409,790 1,461,041 1,492,217 31,176 0 1,492,217 31,176
Tourism & Culture 260,100 260,100 300,201 40,101 0 300,201 40,101
Transformation 1,958,260 1,945,060 2,027,859 82,799 0 2,027,859 82,799

REVENUE Sub Total 12,587,997 12,587,997 12,514,230 (73,767) 201,000 12,730,230 127,233

Parish Precepts 1,913,535 1,913,535 1,913,535 0 0 1,913,535 0

TOTAL REVENUE 14,501,532 14,501,532 14,427,765 (73,767) 201,000 14,643,765 127,233

Portfolio

Net

Approved
budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross Outturn Gross Variance

Retained  for
future

use / review
Projected
Outturn Variance

RESERVE  FUNDED PROJECTS
Leader of the Council 0 379,058 379,058 0 0 379,058 0
Economic Growth 80,746 471,499 370,040 (101,459) 101,459 471,499 0
Corporate Resources 225,362 866,215 683,002 (183,213) 183,213 866,215 0
Housing, Health & Well being 0 857,848 290,703 (567,145) 567,145 857,848 0
Locality & Environmental Quality 39,360 207,971 194,377 (13,594) 13,594 207,971 0
Governance & People Resources 33,745 675,162 554,211 (120,951) 120,951 675,162 0
Tourism & Culture 0 29,638 29,638 0 0 29,638 0
Transformation 55,585 207,375 182,299 (23,228) 25,076 207,375 0

TOTAL RESERVES 434,798 3,694,766 2,683,328 (1,009,590) 1,011,438 3,694,766 0

TOTAL 14,936,330 18,196,298 17,111,093 (1,083,357) 1,212,438 18,338,531 127,233

P
age 79



Appendix A2
PORTFOLIO : LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross

Outturn

Gross
Variance

YE contr
to reserve

Projected
Outturn Variance

REVENUE
1100 Grants to Voluntary Organisation 72,130 72,130 72,329 199 0 72,329 199
1152 Leaders Portfolio 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 10,000 0
5040 Heads of Service 34,360 34,360 31,361 (2,999) 0 31,361 (2,999)
5660 Director of Resources & PA 128,550 129,750 118,050 (11,700) 0 118,050 (11,700)
5680 Chief Executive 172,040 170,840 173,328 2,488 0 173,328 2,488
5860 Strategy, Policy and Performance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5720 Policy & Performance 143,490 143,490 128,254 (15,236) 0 128,254 (15,236)

Total Revenue 560,570 560,570 533,322 (27,248) 0 533,322 (27,248)

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross

Outturn

Gross
Variance

Retained
for future

use /
review

Projected
Outturn Variance

RESERVES
6150 Corporate Transformation 0 379,058 379,058 0 0 379,058 0
6121 Leaders Portfolio 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Reserves 0 379,058 379,058 0 0 379,058 0

TOTAL 560,570 939,628 912,380 (27,248) 0 912,380 (27,248) 

P
age 80



Appendix A3
PORTFOLIO : ECONOMIC GROWTH

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

YE contr
to reserve

Projected
Outturn

Variance

REVENUE
1018 Tenanted Properties (199,590) (199,590) (202,373) (2,783) 0 (202,373) (2,783)
1019 Industrial Units (230,800) (218,800) (222,700) (3,900) 0 (222,700) (3,900)
1020 Other Land & Buildings (50,000) (50,000) (52,305) (2,305) 0 (52,305) (2,305)
1025 Camping & Caravan Sites (564,000) (564,000) (605,369) (41,369) 0 (605,369) (41,369)
1027 Workington Town Centre (527,000) (558,000) (561,197) (3,197) 0 (561,197) (3,197)
1028 Circuses & Fairs (10,000) (5,000) (4,830) 170 0 (4,830) 170
1054 Building Control - Chargeable (293,090) (315,590) (309,392) 6,198 0 (309,392) 6,198
1058 Planning and Development (521,150) (521,150) (529,469) (8,319) 0 (529,469) (8,319)
1073 Markets (79,000) (79,000) (79,108) (108) 0 (79,108) (108)
1098 Economic Regeneration 102,920 79,670 109,670 30,000 0 124,670 30,000
1101 Planning Policy 44,250 44,250 47,547 3,297 0 47,547 3,297
1105 The Hub Workington Town Centre 0 0 (4) (4) 0 (4) (4)
1119 Allerdale Investment Partnership 0 0 186 186 0 186 186
1121 Anti-Poverty 50,000 50,000 12,500 (37,500) 0 12,500 (37,500)
1122 Building Control - Non-Chargeable (5,740) (5,740) 2,957 8,697 0 2,957 8,697
1137 Delivering Jobs & Growth 0 0 3,000 3,000 0 3,000 3,000
1142 Corporate Property (40,000) (26,000) (26,274) (274) 0 (26,274) (274)
1143 Corporate Priorities 451,000 451,000 251,000 (200,000) 201,000 452,000 1,000
1147 Town Centres 80,000 80,000 80,000 0 0 80,000 0
1157 Maryport Shop Front Improvements 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 50,000 0
1161 MSCP Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5260 Building Control Pay Group 290,640 290,640 368,989 78,349 0 368,989 78,349
5300 Planning and Development Pay Group 531,390 528,890 508,308 (20,582) 0 508,308 (20,582)
5440 Regeneration Pay Group 172,200 172,200 169,530 (2,670) 0 169,530 (2,670)
5600 Head of Development Services 64,010 64,010 65,292 1,282 0 65,292 1,282
5740 Business Support Unit, Devt Services 168,490 168,490 176,282 7,792 0 176,282 7,792
5750 Head of Economic Growth 63,010 63,010 65,591 2,581 0 65,591 2,581
5800 Estates 164,440 164,440 164,440 0 0 164,440 0

P
age 81



Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

YE contr
to reserve

Projected
Outturn

Variance

6503 Moot Hall Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6504 Apprentices Scheme 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6507 Industrial Communities Alliance 0 3,250 3,250 0 0 3,250 0
6510 Town Centre Management 0 15,000 15,000 0 0 15,000 0
6528 Contribution to LEP 0 5,000 5,000 0 0 5,000 0
6535 Disposal of Allerdale Sites 15,000 15,000 15,000 0 0 15,000 0
6544 Heat Exchange Network 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6548 BEC Social Investment Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6552 Coastal Community Teams 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6556 LEP Flood Recovery Events Funding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue (273,020) (298,020) (479,478) (181,458) 201,000 (263,478) 19,542

Appendix A3
PORTFOLIO : ECONOMIC GROWTH

P
age 82



Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

Retained
for future

use /
review

Projected
Outturn Variance

RESERVES
6005 Planning Serv. Delivery Improvement 50,746 50,746 50,746 0 0 50,746 0
6007 Local Development Framework 0 50,742 0 (50,742) 50,742 50,742 0
6100 MSCP Maint Fund 0 47,756 47,756 0 0 47,756 0
6101 Planning Policy 10,000 52,454 35,000 (17,454) 17,454 52,454 0
6122 Town Centres 0 20,000 20,000 0 0 20,000 0
6123 Town Centre Management 0 400 400 0 0 400 0
6125 Disposal of Allerdale Sites 0 8,427 8,427 0 0 8,427 0
6145 Building Control Services Improvement 0 14,795 14,795 0 0 14,795 0
6146 Maryport Shop Front Scheme 0 4,881 4,881 0 0 4,881 0
6521 Enterprise Coaches 0 33,263 0 (33,263) 33,263 33,263 0
6701 Corporate Priorities 20,000 32,825 32,825 0 0 32,825 0
6703 Financial Planning & Economic Growth 0 155,210 155,210 0 0 155,210 0
6704 Strategic Acquisition Works 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Reserves 80,746 471,499 370,040 (101,459) 101,459 471,499 0

TOTAL (192,274) 173,479 (109,438) (282,917) 302,459 208,021 19,542

Appendix A3
PORTFOLIO : ECONOMIC GROWTH

P
age 83



Appendix A4
PORTFOLIO : CORPORATE RESOURCES

Cost
Centre Description

Net
Approved

Budget
Current
Budget

Projected Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

YE contr to
reserve

Projected
Outturn Variance

REVENUE
1004 Corporate Management (148,000) (128,000) (131,975) (3,975) 0 (131,975) (3,975)
1015 Corporate Property Maintenance 562,640 562,640 562,742 102 0 562,742 102
1023 Footways 124,940 124,940 127,434 2,494 0 127,434 2,494
1024 Coastal Protection and Inland Flooding 45,200 45,200 45,229 29 0 45,229 29
1032 Harrington Harbour 9,000 9,000 9,036 36 0 9,036 36
1034 Banking and Interest 974,147 952,347 910,229 (42,118) 0 910,229 (42,118)
1035 MRP & Finance Charges 645,520 645,520 622,653 (22,867) 0 622,653 (22,867)
1036 Insurances 254,300 193,639 190,946 (2,693) 0 190,946 (2,693)
1037 Risk Management 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
1038 Parish Councils 91,120 68,120 68,340 220 0 68,340 220
1041 Contingencies 111,780 111,780 111,780 0 0 111,780 0
1069 Public Building Cleaning 72,110 72,110 69,158 (2,952) 0 69,158 (2,952)
1070 Public Convenience Cleaning 119,040 119,040 116,947 (2,093) 0 116,947 (2,093)
1118 Car Parks Inspection & Maintenance 30,300 30,300 30,495 195 0 30,495 195
1123 Pension Deficit Employer Contribution 985,560 949,300 934,300 (15,000) 0 934,300 (15,000)
1125 Section 106 Town & Country Plan Act 1990 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1126 Revenue Financing for Capital Programme 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1128 Self Sufficiency Programme (350,000) (22,733) (22,733) 0 0 (22,733) 0
1166 Multi Store Car Park Utility & Maintenance 0 88,000 103,000 15,000 0 103,000 15,000
5100 Property Services Pay Group 244,520 244,520 247,370 2,850 0 247,370 2,850
5120 Finance and Accounting Pay Group 454,770 454,770 449,833 (4,937) 0 449,833 (4,937)
5520 Head of Financial Services 69,420 69,420 71,338 1,918 0 71,338 1,918
6553 Flood Costs 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6554 Flood Grants (2015 Flood) 0 0 500 500 0 500 500
6555 Flood Resilience Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue 4,299,367 4,589,913 4,516,621 (73,292) 0 4,516,621 (73,292)

Parish Precepts 1,913,535 1,913,535 1,913,535 0 0 1,913,535 0

P
age 84



Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

Retained  for
future

use / review
Projected
Outturn Variance

RESERVES
6018 Emergency Maintenance Fund 0 2,000 2,000 0 0 2,000 0
6021 Excess Insurance Costs 0 90,928 13,000 (77,928) 77,928 90,928 0
6075 Asset Mgt & Capital Accounting System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6084 Allerdale House - Internal Works 0 10,130 10,130 0 0 10,130 0
6105 Revenue Financing for Capital Programme 0 237,531 230,840 (6,691) 6,691 237,531 0
6115 Emergency Planning-Flooding 0 28,260 0 (28,260) 28,260 28,260 0
6126 Car Park Markings 0 5,000 0 (5,000) 5,000 5,000 0
6136 Advertising Vacancies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6138 Section 31 NNDR 171,559 226,582 226,582 0 0 226,582 0
6719 Direct Debits & System Development 32,000 42,952 42,952 0 0 42,952 0
6720 Footway Lighting Scheme 21,803 70,998 7,498 (63,500) 63,500 70,998 0
6724 new Lighting Columns 0 1,834 0 (1,834) 1,834 1,834 0
6725 Pension Scheme Auto Enrolment 0 150,000 150,000 0 0 150,000 0

Total Reserves 225,362 866,215 683,002 (183,213) 183,213 866,215 0

TOTAL 6,438,264 7,369,663 7,113,158 (256,505) 183,213 7,296,371 (73,292) 

Appendix A4
PORTFOLIO : CORPORATE RESOURCES

P
age 85



Appendix A5
PORTFOLIO : Governance & People Resources

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

YE contr
to reserve

Projected
Outturn Variance

REVENUE
1001 Training 55,450 83,010 83,010 0 0 83,010 0
1002 Corporate Recruitment 13,350 13,350 16,779 3,429 0 16,779 3,429
1003 Pensions 164,000 164,000 164,100 100 0 164,100 100
1005 Transformation re-structure 0 38,661 38,701 40 0 38,701 40
1007 Mayoral Services 13,570 13,570 16,585 3,015 0 16,585 3,015
1008 Mayor's Fund 3,250 3,250 6,905 3,655 0 6,905 3,655
1009 Members Services 270,300 270,300 274,190 3,890 0 274,190 3,890
1010 Leaders Services 30,000 30,000 29,973 (27) 0 29,973 (27)
1011 Electoral Registration 60,000 60,000 60,000 0 0 60,000 0
1012 Elections 42,500 40,200 39,550 (650) 0 39,550 (650)
1013 Corporate Advertising Statutory 1,550 1,550 1,550 0 0 1,550 0
1146 Referral Centre 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
1062 Licensing Service (172,160) (172,160) (171,094) 1,066 0 (171,094) 1,066
1063 Land Charges Service (99,640) (99,640) (97,911) 1,729 0 (97,911) 1,729
1064 Community Safety 10,000 10,000 9,676 (324) 0 9,676 (324)
5000 Human Resources Pay Group 179,770 179,770 156,149 (23,621) 0 156,149 (23,621)
5060 Democratic Services Pay Group 109,880 109,880 124,633 14,753 0 124,633 14,753
5080 Internal Audit Pay Group 94,810 94,810 103,521 8,711 0 103,521 8,711
5320 Licensing Pay Group 83,240 80,820 77,707 (3,113) 0 77,707 (3,113)
5340 Land Charges Pay Group 250 0 0 0 0 0 0
5480 Legal Services 234,260 244,260 221,438 (22,822) 0 221,438 (22,822)
5540 Head of Governance 69,420 69,420 101,066 31,646 0 101,066 31,646
5790 Governance Support Assistants 65,550 65,550 72,694 7,144 0 72,694 7,144
5810 Elections - Pay Group 88,440 88,440 90,994 2,554 0 90,994 2,554
6515 Apprentices & Graduates 72,000 72,000 72,000 0 0 72,000 0
6558 Police & Crime Commissioner Election 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6559 EU Referendum 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6562 County Elections 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue 1,409,790 1,461,041 1,492,217 31,176 0 1,492,217 31,176

P
age 86



Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

Retained
for future

use /
review

Projected
Outturn Variance

RESERVES
6017 Legal Counsel 0 67,491 32,491 (35,000) 35,000 67,491 0
6053 Prov for Elections (Elect Reg) 0 35,000 0 (35,000) 35,000 35,000 0
6081 Members Training 0 9,000 9,000 0 0 9,000 0
6082 IER work -Elections 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6103 Legal Costs 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
6135 Allerdale Options 3,745 6,745 6,745 0 0 6,745 0
6137 Community Safety (ABC) 0 7,900 7,900 0 0 7,900 0
6144 External Legal Services 0 465,887 465,887 0 0 465,887 0
6706 Community Safety (Funded) 0 50,951 0 (50,951) 50,951 50,951 0
6730 Licensing Service Re-design 0 16,100 16,100 0 0 16,100 0
6739 Young People/Apprentices 0 16,088 16,088 0 0 16,088 0

Total Reserves 33,745 675,162 554,211 (120,951) 120,951 675,162 0

TOTAL 1,443,535 2,136,203 2,046,428 (89,775) 120,951 2,167,379 31,176

Appendix A5
PORTFOLIO : Governance & People Resources

P
age 87



Appendix A6
PORTFOLIO : HOUSING, HEALTH & WELL-BEING

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross

Outturn

Gross
Variance

YE contr
to reserve

Projected
Outturn

Variance

REVENUE
1065 Emergency Planning 18,700 18,700 20,400 1,700 0 20,400 1,700
1072 Pest Control (32,690) (32,690) (32,690) 0 0 (32,690) 0
1078 Health and Safety 1,500 1,500 1,500 0 0 1,500 0
1080 Food and Occupational Health 230 230 192 (38) 0 192 (38)
1081 Environmental Protection (9,700) (9,700) (9,738) (38) 0 (9,738) (38)
1089 Housing Strategic Function (3,120) (3,120) (3,120) 0 0 (3,120) 0
1092 Homelessness 6,750 6,750 6,746 (4) 0 6,746 (4)
1093 Assistance - Housing Services (52,000) (52,000) (54,932) (2,932) 0 (54,932) (2,932)
1096 Gypsy & Traveller Sites 18,000 18,000 18,000 0 0 18,000 0
1155 Housing Needs Survey 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1163 GP Scheme 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5560 Head of Housing & Health 64,010 64,010 65,703 1,693 0 65,703 1,693
5760 Housing & Health Pay Group 1,038,880 1,066,180 1,054,628 (11,552) 0 1,054,628 (11,552)
6130 Housing Needs Survey 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6551 Health & Wellbeing Group 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6733 Npower Energy Efficiency Programme 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue 1,050,560 1,077,860 1,066,689 (11,171) 0 1,066,689 (11,171)

P
age 88



Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross

Outturn

Gross
Variance

Retained
for future

use /
review

Projected
Outturn Variance

RESERVES
6127 Housing Strategic Function 0 835 835 0 0 835 0
6128 Homelessness 0 1,383 1,383 0 0 1,383 0
6142 Community Housing Fund 0 762,272 195,127 (567,145) 567,145 762,272 0
6147 Major Incident Response 0 73,177 73,177 0 0 73,177 0
6148 GP Accommodation Scheme 0 8,760 8,760 0 0 8,760 0
6149 Health & Wellbeing Group 0 731 731 0 0 731 0
6718 Coastal Works 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6734 Water Quality Signage 0 10,690 10,690 0 0 10,690 0

Total Reserves 0 857,848 290,703 (567,145) 567,145 857,848 0

TOTAL 1,050,560 1,935,708 1,357,392 (578,316) 567,145 1,924,537 (11,171) 

Appendix A6
PORTFOLIO : HOUSING, HEALTH & WELL-BEING

P
age 89



Appendix A7
PORTFOLIO : LOCALITY & ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross

Outturn
Gross Variance YE contr

to reserve
Projected
Outturn Variance

REVENUE

1051 Confidential Waste 3,600 3,600 3,600 0 0 3,600 0
1053 Bereavement Services (114,270) (114,270) (115,967) (1,697) 0 (115,967) (1,697)
1067 Parks and Grounds Maintenance 482,560 482,560 516,005 33,445 0 516,005 33,445
1068 Street Cleansing 1,133,880 1,133,880 1,144,957 11,077 0 1,144,957 11,077
1071 Animal Welfare 46,740 46,740 45,704 (1,036) 0 45,704 (1,036)
1074 Parks Development 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1075 Domestic Waste 1,608,710 1,608,710 1,613,402 4,692 0 1,613,402 4,692
1076 Trade Waste (461,110) (461,110) (471,467) (10,357) 0 (471,467) (10,357)
1077 Recycling 543,750 543,750 560,028 16,278 0 560,028 16,278
1079 Environmental Initiatives 104,120 104,120 71,500 (32,620) 0 71,500 (32,620)
1083 Off-street - Owned (2,054,900) (2,265,640) (2,209,023) 56,617 0 (2,209,023) 56,617
1085 Multi-storey Car Park 171,000 (14,880) (14,961) (81) 0 (14,961) (81)
1086 Off-street - Managed (60,000) (60,000) (60,100) (100) 0 (60,100) (100)
1103 Localities & Partnerships 12,000 12,000 11,634 (366) 0 11,634 (366)
1112 Sports & Leisure Centres 496,900 496,900 504,527 7,627 0 504,527 7,627
1114 Sports Development 15,000 15,000 14,807 (193) 0 14,807 (193)
1115 Maryport Wave 233,940 229,083 229,085 2 0 229,085 2
1116 Festivals & Events 104,080 104,080 104,200 120 0 104,200 120
1136 Supporting Leisure Activity across Aller 15,000 15,000 20,000 5,000 0 20,000 5,000
1144 Carnegie Trust Contribution 120,000 120,000 120,000 0 0 120,000 0
1153 Workington Nature Partnership 17,100 17,100 16,961 (139) 0 16,961 (139)
1168 Workington Nature Partnership 0 0 6,600 6,600 0 6,600 6,600
5240 Bereavement Services Pay Group 78,930 0 0 0 0 0 0
5360 Environmental Services Pay Group 52,180 0 0 0 0 0 0
5400 Parking Services Pay Group 35,770 0 0 0 0 0 0
5580 Head of Community Services 63,010 63,010 65,682 2,672 0 65,682 2,672
5820 Comm Serv Paygroup 674,380 911,840 879,625 (32,215) 0 879,625 (32,215)

Total Revenue 3,322,370 2,991,473 3,056,799 65,326 0 3,056,799 65,326

P
age 90



Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross

Outturn
Gross Variance

Retained
for future

use /
review

Projected
Outturn Variance

RESERVES
6139 Parks & Grounds Maintenance 0 5,000 5,000 0 0 5,000 0
6140 Parks Development 0 1,000 1,000 0 0 1,000 0
6141 High Level Stewardship 0 6,366 6,366 0 0 6,366 0
6151 Off Street Parking-System Upgrade 0 19,000 19,000 0 0 19,000 0
6152 Bereavement Services-System Upgrade 0 10,446 10,446 0 0 10,446 0
6540 Weekly Collection Support Scheme 0 125,594 112,000 (13,594) 13,594 125,594 0
6707 Festivals & Community Events 10,000 17,915 17,915 0 0 17,915 0
6708 Leisure Activites 29,360 22,650 22,650 0 0 22,650 0

Total Reserves 39,360 207,971 194,377 (13,594) 13,594 207,971 0

TOTAL 3,361,730 3,199,444 3,251,176 51,732 13,594 3,264,770 65,326

Appendix A7
PORTFOLIO : LOCALITY & ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

P
age 91



Appendix A8
PORTFOLIO : TOURISM & CULTURE

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross

Outturn

Gross
Variance

YE contr
to reserve

Projected
Outturn Variance

REVENUE
1056 Silloth TIC 10,180 10,180 10,180 0 0 10,180 0
1106 AONB Contribution 29,000 29,000 29,000 0 0 29,000 0
1110 Museums 51,570 51,570 91,725 40,155 0 91,725 40,155
1113 Carnegie 0 0 (56) (56) 0 (56) (56)
1111 Arts Development 16,850 16,850 16,850 0 0 16,850 0
1158 Tourism Incentive 100,000 100,000 100,002 2 0 100,002 2
5840 Economic Dev & Tourism Paygroup 52,500 52,500 52,500 0 0 52,500 0
6501 Solway Coast AONB Core Funding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6517 Solway Wetlands Project 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6529 Cumbria Tourism 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6531 Solway AONB Other Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6550 High Level Stewardship 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6533 Rolling Mill 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue 260,100 260,100 300,201 40,101 0 300,201 40,101

P
age 92



Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross

Outturn

Gross
Variance

Retained
for future

use /
review

Projected
Outturn Variance

RESERVES
6119 Museums 0 540 540 0 0 540 0
6155 Solway AONB 0 29,098 29,098 0 0 29,098 0

Total Reserves 0 29,638 29,638 0 0 29,638 0

TOTAL 260,100 289,738 329,839 40,101 0 329,839 40,101

Appendix A8
PORTFOLIO : TOURISM & CULTURE

P
age 93



Appendix A9
PORTFOLIO : TRANSFORMATION

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross

Outturn

Gross
Variance

YE contr to
reserve

Projected
Outturn Variance

REVENUE
1000 Communications and Marketing 34,100 (900) 9,246 10,146 0 9,246 10,146
1046 Corporate Improvement Team 9,970 9,970 9,659 (311) 0 9,659 (311)
1047 IT Services 497,730 389,730 413,154 23,424 0 413,154 23,424
1048 Shared Revs & Bens IT Costs 59,300 72,300 96,009 23,709 0 96,009 23,709
1050 Multi-functional Printers 35,530 20,530 20,530 0 0 20,530 0
1059 Revenue (351,600) (386,600) (396,746) (10,146) 0 (396,746) (10,146)
1060 Benefits (529,190) (551,190) (549,291) 1,899 0 (549,291) 1,899
1061 Shared Revs & Bens 117,000 117,000 117,000 0 0 117,000 0
1140 Shared ICT Costs 54,600 54,600 53,948 (652) 0 53,948 (652)
1165 Corporate Postage & Stationery 0 142,530 142,653 123 0 142,653 123
5140 Document Management Pay Group 85,530 0 (0) (0) 0 (0) (0)
5160 Shared IT Services Pay Group 352,870 322,870 335,390 12,520 0 335,390 12,520
5280 Customer Services Pay Group 425,640 446,640 453,126 6,486 0 453,126 6,486
5500 Head of Org Dev & Transformation 63,010 63,010 64,417 1,407 0 64,417 1,407
5700 Customer & Transformation Programme 99,460 99,460 94,918 (4,542) 0 94,918 (4,542)
5710 Communications 105,710 105,710 104,907 (803) 0 104,907 (803)
5730 Commissioning Support Pay Group 64,520 101,320 105,892 4,572 0 105,892 4,572
5770 Housing Benefits Pay Group 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5780 Revenues Pay Group 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5850 Revs, Bens & Recovery Paygroup 894,080 873,080 872,925 (155) 0 872,925 (155)
6004 IT - New Initiatives 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6561 Universal Credit (60,000) (60,000) (44,877) 15,123 0 (44,877) 15,123
6557 Ferris Maintenance Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6564 Project X 0 125,000 125,000 0 0 125,000 0

Total Revenue 1,958,260 1,945,060 2,027,859 82,799 0 2,027,859 82,799

P
age 94



Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Current
Budget

Projected
Gross

Outturn

Gross
Variance

Retained
for future

use /
review

Projected
Outturn Variance

RESERVES

6050 New Technology Fund 0 7,842 7,842 0 0 7,842 0
6077 Customer Operations Projects 48,585 58,743 58,743 0 0 58,743 0
6092 IT Project 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6104 Anti Poverty 0 1,848 0 0 1,848 1,848 0
6114 Purchase of Equipment (Envelope Stuffer) 7,000 9,797 9,797 0 0 9,797 0
6120 New Ways of Working 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6153 Comms & Marketing 0 94,850 94,850 0 0 94,850 0
6154 IT Service-Corporate Printers 0 30,000 6,772 (23,228) 23,228 30,000 0
6543 Business Support Scheme - Flooding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6738 Shared ICT Costs 0 4,295 4,295 0 0 4,295 0

Total Reserves 55,585 207,375 182,299 (23,228) 25,076 207,375 0

TOTAL 2,013,845 2,152,435 2,210,158 59,571 25,076 2,235,234 82,799

Appendix A9
PORTFOLIO : TRANSFORMATION

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 96



Appendix B1

Capital Budget Monitoring Overview

Forecast Capital Expenditure and Financing against budget 2016/17

Projected Budget
Carry

Forward
Current Projected Outturn Projected

16/17 Budget Outturn  Variance  Variance
£ £ £ £ £

Spend Against Budget 
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 2,499,024 2,179,662 (319,362) 319,362 0
Corporate Resources 447,480 447,480 0 0 0
Localities & Environmental 461,915 477,915 16,000 167,000 183,000
Transformation 150,000 150,000 0 0 0
Economic Growth 8,750,000 2,500,000 (6,250,000) 6,250,000 0
Tourism & Culture 484,150 180,000 (304,150) 304,150 0

TOTAL - Capital Budget Monitoring 'Spend' 12,792,569 5,935,057 (6,857,512) 7,040,512 183,000

Financing

External Funding Sources
DFG Housing Grant 1,345,926 1,076,564 (269,362) 269,362 0
SCP Housing Grant 318,985 318,985 0 0 0
Central Heating Fund Grant 494,113 494,113 0 0 0

ERDF grant 1,020,000 0 (1,020,000) 1,020,000 0
LEP Growth Deal funding 5,000,000 200,000 (4,800,000) 4,800,000 0
Coastal Communities Fund grant 304,150 0 (304,150) 304,150 0
Other grants and contributions - Harrington Reservoir 117,000 0 (117,000) 117,000 0
Total - External Funding Sources 8,600,174 2,089,662 (6,510,512) 6,510,512 0

ABC Resources
Capital Receipts 280,339 280,339 0 0 0
Revenue Earmarked Reserves 230,840 230,840 0 0 0
Revenue Receipt 12,860 12,860 0 0 0
General Fund Balances 729,856 729,856 0 0 0
Prudential Borrowing 2,938,500 2,591,500 (347,000) 530,000 183,000
Total - ABC Resources 4,192,395 3,845,395 (347,000) 530,000 183,000

TOTAL - Capital Budget Monitoring 'Financing' 12,792,569 5,935,057 (6,857,512) 7,040,512 183,000

Total Net Projected Outturn:

Expenditure 12,792,569 5,935,057 (6,857,512) 7,040,512 183,000
Financing 12,792,569 5,935,057 (6,857,512) 7,040,512 183,000

0 0 0 0 0

P
age 97



Appendix B2

Capital Budget Monitoring - Spend Against Budget

Actual
Commitments

Projected
Original Budget  Budget C/F Virements / Current Year Department Projected Outturn Forecast Projected

Cost 17/18 Budget 16/17 Budget Adjustments 17/18 Budget to Date  Forecast Outturn  Variance Budget C/F  Variance
 Centre Description £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Housing, Health & Wellbeing
8001 Disabled Facilities Grants 750,000 40,926 0 790,926 261,316 0 385,248 646,564 (144,362) 144,362 0
8011 Discretionary Grants 225,000 430,000 (180,000) 475,000 10,743 0 339,257 350,000 (125,000) 125,000 0
8003 Health Homes (Empty Homes) 0 100,000 0 100,000 0 0 50,000 50,000 (50,000) 50,000 0
8004 Securing Affordable Homes 10,000 40,000 0 50,000 0 0 50,000 50,000 0 0
8107 Housing Improvement Projects 0 257,626 0 257,626 8,575 5,000 244,051 257,626 0 0
8301 Cluster of Empty Homes 0 51,359 0 51,359 4,500 0 46,859 51,359 0 0
8302 Central Heating Fund 0 494,113 180,000 674,113 494,113 0 180,000 674,113 0 0
8014 Flood resilience 100,000 0 0 100,000 15,000 0 85,000 100,000 0 0

TOTAL - Housing & Health 1,085,000 1,414,024 0 2,499,024 794,247 5,000 1,380,415 2,179,662 (319,362) 319,362 0

 Corporate Resources
8509 Public Toilets Review Works 75,000 74,860 0 149,860 (8,750) 31,584 127,026 149,860 0 0
8007 Demolition Moorclose Sport Centre 0 225,650 9,256 234,906 167,517 64,865 2,524 234,906 0 0
8008 Evo Centre Works (Food Bank) 0 3,339 (3,339) 0 (277) 277 0 0 0 0
8009 WTC Coast Line Feature 0 12,714 0 12,714 4,755 7,959 0 12,714 0 0
8501 Resurfacing works (Brow Top Car Park) 0 55,917 (5,917) 50,000 0 49,489 511 50,000 0 0
8511 Flooding/Landslip Works 0 0 0 0 (1,500) 8,221 (6,721) 0 0 0

TOTAL - Finance Services and Asset Management 75,000 372,480 0 447,480 161,745 162,395 123,340 447,480 0 0 0

Localities & Environmental
8505 Workington Hall Repair Scheme 50,000 0 0 50,000 0 0 50,000 50,000 0 0
8615 Fleming Sq restorati 30,000 0 0 30,000 0 0 30,000 30,000 0 0
8616 Harrington resevoir 167,000 0 0 167,000 0 0 0 0 (167,000) 167,000 0
8512 Replacement Pay and Display Machines (inc. signage) 0 121,033 0 121,033 0 0 121,033 121,033 0 0
8906 New Leisure Facility 0 93,882 0 93,882 49,860 5,773 38,249 93,882 0 0
8514 MSCP equipment 0 0 0 0 168,118 18,163 (3,281) 183,000 183,000 183,000

TOTAL - Community Services 247,000 214,915 0 461,915 217,977 23,936 236,002 477,915 16,000 167,000 183,000

OD & Transformation
8701 IT Equipment (ABC Only) 40,000 0 0 40,000 15,134 124 24,742 40,000 0 0
8706 Refurbishment of customer service area 0 110,000 0 110,000 201 0 109,799 110,000 0 0

TOTAL - OD & Transformation 40,000 110,000 0 150,000 15,335 124 134,541 150,000 0 0 0

Economic Growth
8012 Lillyhall Development 5,000,000 0 0 5,000,000 0 0 200,000 200,000 (4,800,000) 4,800,000 0
8013 Reedlands Rd Ind Dev 1,700,000 0 0 1,700,000 0 0 250,000 250,000 (1,450,000) 1,450,000 0
8005 Strategic Acquisitions 950,000 0 0 950,000 0 0 950,000 950,000 0 0
8006 Lilly Hall - Land Purchase 0 1,100,000 0 1,100,000 0 0 1,100,000 1,100,000 0 0

TOTAL - Economic Growth 7,650,000 1,100,000 0 8,750,000 0 0 2,500,000 2,500,000 (6,250,000) 6,250,000 0

Tourism & Culture
8109 Solway Coast Pathway 304,150 0 0 304,150 0 0 0 0 (304,150) 304,150 0
8601 Helena Thompson Museum Development 0 180,000 0 180,000 0 0 180,000 180,000 0 0

TOTAL - Economic Growth 304,150 180,000 0 484,150 0 0 180,000 180,000 (304,150) 304,150 0

9,401,150 3,391,419 0 12,792,569 1,189,305 191,455 4,554,297 5,935,057 (6,857,512) 7,040,512 183,000

P
age 98



Appendix B3

Capital Budget Monitoring - Financing

Original Budget  Budget C/F Current Projected Forecast Projected
17/18 Budget 16/17 Budget 17/18 Budget Outturn Budget C/F  Variance

Description £ £ £ £ £

External Funding Sources
DFG Housing Grant 975,000 370,926 1,345,926 1,076,564 269,362 0
SCP Housing Grant 10,000 308,985 318,985 318,985 0 0
Central Heating Fund Grant 0 494,113 494,113 494,113 0 0

ERDF grant 1,020,000 0 1,020,000 1,020,000 0
LEP Growth Deal funding 5,000,000 0 5,000,000 200,000 4,800,000 0
Coastal Communities Fund grant 304,000 0 304,150 304,150 0
Other grants and contributions - Harrington Reservoir 117,000 0 117,000 117,000 0

TOTAL - External Funding 7,426,000 1,174,024 8,600,174 2,089,662 6,510,512 0

ABC Resources
Capital Receipts 0 280,339 280,339 280,339 0

Revenue Earmarked Reserves 0 230,840 230,840 230,840 0
Revenue Receipt 0 12,860 12,860 12,860 0

General Fund Balances 0 729,856 729,856 729,856 0

Prudential Borrowing 1,975,000 963,500 2,938,500 2,591,500 530,000 183,000

TOTAL - ABC Resources 1,975,000 2,217,395 4,192,395 3,845,395 530,000 183,000

TOTAL - 'FINANCING' 9,401,000 3,391,419 12,792,569 5,935,057 7,040,512 183,000

P
age 99



Appendix B4

Capital Resources Overview

Capital receipts and grants available to fund the capital programme

Current Capital Resources Capital Receipts Grants & Contributions
Housing Other

Balances:
Balance as at 31st March 2017 (377,592) (1,371,871) (191,212)
Actually received during 2017-18 (85,000) (1,039,046)
Forecast to be received during 2017-18 0 (200,000)
Forecast to be received during 2018-19 (re-profiled) (6,241,150)
Available for allocation (462,592) (2,410,917) (6,632,362)

Allocation:
Financing proposed capital budget 17-18 280,339 1,889,662 200,000
Financing proposed capital budget 17-18  (re-profiled) 269,362 6,241,150
Financing budget >17-18 0 163,000 0
Ring-fenced resources not yet brought into budget* 45,000 88,893 191,212
Not currently allocated or ring-fenced (137,253) 0 0

 *The items identified as 'Ring-fenced resources not yet brought into budget’ are:
 - £45,000 relating to the proceeds from the sale of Workington Hall Lodge and ring-fenced for improvements to the Hall
Park.
 - £191,212 relates to a number of specific capital grants. These can only be applied to the purposes for which they were
received. 
 - £88,893 additional DFG grant was received over and above the £950,000 estimated at budget setting, this will be
considered as part of the 2018/19 budget report. 

Forecast Capital Receipts

Asset Disposal Type Status
Potential
Capital

Receipts
Braithwaite Public Toilets Sale Complete and awaiting

proceeds
10,000

Sale of Keswick Public Toilets Sale Complete and awaiting
proceeds

75,000

85,000

Potential Capital Receipts
There are a number of asset disposals currently on-going, which if seen to completion will result in addition capital
receipts, these will only be shown in the above table when the disposal is complete:

Asset Disposal Type Status
Potential
Capital

Receipts
Moot Hall Sale We are currently undertaking

repair works before the sale
can be progressed.

210,000

5 Dora Crescent Sale Initial 12 month lease for £9K
p.a. with an option to
purchase.

175,000

385,000

Note: The above table excludes any capital receipts arising from the repayment of Allerdale Investment Partnership LLP
secured loan notes. 

Page 100



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 8 November 2017

Revised Revenue & Capital Budget 2017-18

The Reason for the Decision To seek approval for the revised revenue and 
capital budgets for 2017-18.

Summary of options considered The Revenue Budget was approved in March 
2017.  Monitoring of the actual position against 
the budget has identified additional budget 
pressures.  Additional savings have been 
identified and earmarked reserves have been 
reviewed.
Approval is now sought for a revised 2017-18 
budget.

Recommendations It is recommended that Council:
 approve the revised net Revenue Budget 

requirement of £14,629k
 approve the Revised Capital Budget 

(including proposed financing) of £23,641k 
comprising £5,935k in 2017-18, £15,516k 
in 2018-19 and £2,190k in 2019-20

 note the revised position on earmarked 
and general fund balances. 

Financial /  Resource Implications As outlined in the report

Legal Implications Statutory requirement to set (and maintain) a 
balanced budget.

Community Safety Implications None

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

There are risks that the Council will not be able to 
operate within agreed budgetary provisions but 
this can be minimised by the financial monitoring 
process and by the prudent policy on the level of 
reserves and balances.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

As part of the budget growth bids and savings 
bids process 

Wards Affected All

Page 101

Agenda Item 11



The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The revenue budget is set to support the Council 
in achieving its priorities as set out in the Council 
Plan and to facilitate control of expenditure on its 
activities.

Is this a Key Decision Yes

Portfolio Holder Cllr Barbara Cannon 

Lead Officer Catherine Nicholson, Head of Financial Services, 
01900 702503
catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial Y Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council has a statutory responsibility (Local Government Finance Act 1992) to set a 
balanced budget for each financial year. This means that the Council’s expenditure on 
services must be contained within the available funding envelope. The Council’s 2017-18 
(original) revenue and capital budgets were approved by Council on 1st March 2017.

1.2 The financial management approach agreed by Members in 2012-13 also requires the 
Council to prepare a revised budget that takes into consideration the outputs and findings 
of in-year financial monitoring procedures and quarterly financial reporting to the Council’s 
Executive. This approach allows for more accurate monitoring of expenditure and enables 
the Council’s Executive to approve revisions and supplementary estimates.

1.3 As in previous years, the Executive have continued with their approach of holding Star 
Chambers where the relevant Portfolio Holder and Head of Service discuss performance 
against budget in their areas.

1.4 During these discussions the monitoring of the budget is discussed in detail with the 
emphasis on key volatile areas and significant variances.  

1.5 A key message from the Star Chambers is that whilst the authority has strong financial 
reserves, there needs to be a greater focus on the savings programme and use of 
resources to deal with future challenges both known and unknown.  

Page 102



1.6 There is a growing awareness that the council needs to change its approach to risk 
acceptance and that there is a need to act more commercially and explore more 
commercial opportunities and projects.

1.7 The bids submitted and recommended as part of this revised budget are those that are 
non- discretionary and those that are additional pressures to existing council priorities. 

1.8 A number of other potential variances were acknowledged but have not led to additional 
budget requests.  The budget holders for these areas are looking at alternative plans to 
ensure the variances can be reduced or eliminated.  These will continue to be monitored 
and reported on as part of the regular monitoring reports.

1.9 This report sets out the Council’s proposed:
 revised revenue budget for 2017-18 (sections 2 to 5), and
 revised capital budget for the three year period 2017-18 to 2019-20 (section 6)

Page 103



2.0 Revised revenue budget 2017-18

2.1 The proposed revised revenue budget for 2017-18 and the associated increase in the 
Council’s net budget requirement of £127k is summarised in table 1.

Table 1: 2017-18 Revised Revenue Budget
2017/2018

Net Expenditure Budget Original 
Budget

Revised
Budget Change Para

£000 £000 £000
Base Budget 12,213 12,213 0
Pension increase - deficit funding (62) (62) 0
Change in salary costs - recurring 137 78 (59) 3.6
Recurring growth 771 875 104 3.2
Recurring savings (414) (434) (20) 3.2
Self-sufficiency savings (738) (738) 0 3.4
Recurring (base) budget 11,907 11,932 25
Change in salary costs - non-recurring 0 (13) (13) 3.6
Non-recurring growth 746 990 244 3.3
Non-recurring savings (65) (194) (129) 3.3
Net Service Expenditure budget 12,588 12,715 127
Expenditure on earmarked priorities 435 2,684 2,249 7.5
Proposed budget (excl. parish precepts) 13,023 15,399 2,376
Parish Precepts 1,914 1,914 0
Proposed Budget (incl. parish precepts) 14,937 17,313 2,376
Less: Planned use of earmarked balances (435) (2,684) (2,249) 7.5
Net Budget Requirement 14,502 14,629 127

2.2 The Council’s revised net budget requirement is funded as follows:

Table 2: 2017-18 Revised Revenue Funding
2017/2018

Original 
Budget

Revised
Budget Change Para

£000 £000 £000
Government Grants & Taxation 14,502 14,629 127 5.1
Use of/(contribution to) General Fund 0 0 0

Total funding 14,502 14,629 127

Page 104



2.3 Changes to the Net Service Expenditure Budget of £127k comprise:

 recurring changes to the approved 2017-18 budget of £25k consisting of:
- a reduction in the salary budget of £(59k)
- recurring growth bids of £104k
- recurring savings bids of £(20)k

 non-recurring adjustments of £102k comprising: 
- a reduction to the salary budget of £(13)k
- non-recurring growth bids of £244k
- non-recurring savings bids of £(129)k.

2.4 These changes increase: 
 the Council’s recurring (base) budget from £11,907k to £11,932k; an increase 

of £25k, and
 the Net Service Expenditure budget for 2017-18 from £12,588k to £12,715k; an 

increase of £127k. 
Further details of the growth and saving bids underlying these increases are set out in 
section 3 of this report.

2.5 The increase in net service expenditure of £127k is off-set by an anticipated increase in 
business rates income (NNDR) of £127k comprising:

 £15k increase in Council’s share of business rates income (NNDR) 
 £405k increase in the amount of s31 grant credited to the general fund (net of 

transfer to volatility reserve)
 £70k reduction in the anticipated levy payment 
 £(363)k net transfer to the NNDR s31 and NNDR volatility reserves. 

Further details of these funding changes are set out in section 5 of this report.

Page 105



3.0 Changes to the Net Service Expenditure Budget

3.1 A summary of the proposed changes to the net service expenditure budget is set out in 
table 3. 

Table 3: Summary of Net Service Expenditure by Portfolio
Portfolio Original 

budget1
Salary 

changes
Recurring 
growth & 
savings

Self-
sufficiency 
adjustment

Non- 
recurring 
growth & 
savings 

Revised  
budget 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Corporate Resources 4,590 (2) 26 0 (91) 4,523
Economic Growth (268) (85) (19) 0 81 (291)
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 1,078 (31) 2 0 0 1,049
Leader of the Council 561 107 0 0 0 668
Locality & Env.  Quality 2,991 (23) 64 0 22 3,054
Governance & People Res. 1,461 28 0 0 0 1,489
Tourism & Culture 230 (3) 0 0 40 267
Transformation 1,945 (63) 11 0 63 1,956
Net Service Expend. 12,588 (72) 84 0 115 12,715

1 Adjusted for in-year virements and revised portfolios 

Recurring Growth and Savings bids

3.2 Details of recurring growth of £104k and savings bids of £(20)k (net total £84k) included 
as adjustments to the Council’s base budget are summarised in table 4 and 5. If 
approved, these changes will impact on the base budget for 2018-19 and future financial 
years.

Table 4: Recurring growth
Portfolio/Service Description Growth

£000
Corporate Resources
Banking & Interest Anticipated reduction in interest received from investments 

as a result of declining trends in investment rates since 
January 2017.  This is off-set by a separate one-off saving 
on interest payable on borrowing (see table 5).

26

Economic Growth
Camping & Caravan Site Increase in the annual lease cost for Walker Park (part of 

the Derwent Water Camping & Caravan site) following a 
rent review. 

1

Housing Health & Wellbeing
Emergency Planning Increase in cost of Service Level Agreement & contribution 

to Cumbria Local Resilience Forum Secretariat. 2

Locality & Environmental Quality
Waste Services (Domestic, 
Recycling, Trade and Street 
Cleansing)

Risen Costs (Contractual inflationary increase);
The original budget included an estimate of the inflationary 
uplift required to contractual payments as the actual 

18

Page 106



Portfolio/Service Description Growth
£000

inflation index (March RPI) was not available at that time.  
This estimate was lower than the actual increase required.

Sport/Leisure Centres Risen Costs (Contractual inflationary increase)
The original budget included an estimate of the inflationary 
uplift required to contractual payments as the actual 
inflation index (March RPIx) was not available at that time.  
This estimate was lower than the actual increase required.

6

Off-street Owned Car Parks Additional NNDR costs; The budget was based on the draft 
2017-18 valuations. The Valuation Office has since 
undertaken a revaluation exercise on Car Parks which has 
increased the rates payable on these premises.

40

Transformation
Benefits Reduction in DCLG administration grant for delivery of the 

Council tax reduction scheme. This grant is provided by 
central government and the final allocation was only 
confirmed after the budget had been set. 

4

Customer Operations shared  
IT Costs

Annual support and maintenance for the new Total Mobile 
solution. This system will provide field based benefits 
officers with remote access to information, enabling them to 
make informed decisions. 
This has been agreed with Carlisle CC at the Joint 
Operations Board

7

Total recurring growth 104

Table 5: Recurring savings
Portfolio/Service Description Saving

£000
Camping & Caravan Site Increase in expected levels of rental income to reflect 

historic trends in income (including the amounts received in 
the last financial year) and estimates for the current year.

(20)

Total recurring savings (20)

Non-recurring growth and savings bids

3.3 Non-recurring growth of 259k and savings bids of £(129)k (net value £130k) submitted as 
part of this report are summarised in tables 6 and 8.  If approved these will impact on the 
2017-18 budget but will not impact on the base budget for future financial years.

3.4 A further non-recurring growth of £150k is also identified within Table 7 which does not 
require a change to the budget. This will be financed from existing earmarked reserves 
meaning no additional resource is required. 

Page 107



Table 6: Non – non-recurring growth
Portfolio/Service Description Growth

£000
Corporate Resources
Multi Storey Car Park Utility & 
Maintenance

Replacement of emergency lighting installations at the Multi 
Storey Car Park. This cost is in addition to the routine 
maintenance budget. 

15

Economic Growth
Camping & Caravan Site Backdated lease charge arising from an increase in the 

annual lease cost for Walker Park (part of the Derwent 
Water Camping and Caravan site) following a rent review. 

1

Building Control Pay Group Additional costs of agency staff to cover vacancies pending 
recruitment. This is partially off-set by a forecast increased 
income as a result of fee increases from 1 October 2017. 

65

Economic Regeneration External advice associated with examining the potential use 
of alternative delivery models for the delivery of major 
schemes.  This exercise will consider the risks and 
opportunities associated with various options and make 
recommendations on their application.

30

Building Control Non 
Chargeable

Increase in budget to accommodate cost pressures 
associated with an increase in dangerous structure work 
involving properties where it is difficult to recover the cost 
from the owner of the property. 

8

Locality & Environmental Quality
Off-street Owned Car Parks Use of consultants to review the commercial use of car 

parks. 15

Allerdale Fleet Non-recurring conversions costs associated with 
replacement of the existing Allerdale fleet with new vehicles 
(roof vents, racking and logos). 

7

Tourism & Culture
Museums Site investigation works at Keswick Museum and Art 

Gallery to establish the cause of water ingress into the 
museum’s collection storage room. Should this establish 
third party liability it may be possible to recover this cost.

25

Museums Off-site storage costs for the Keswick Museum and Art 
collection which has been moved due to water ingress 
issues within the museum’s storage rooms.

15

Transformation
IT Costs Additional licence costs associated with BT One phone, BT 

Cloud Contact and Office 365 due to increased user 
numbers. 

25

Customer Operations shared  
IT Costs

A one-off cost to upgrade CITRIX software (used to access 
the Revenue and Benefits system). The upgrade will 
enhance cyber security and ensure compliance with current 
legislation.

18

Universal Credit Loss of grant income from the DWP for work on localised 
support for Universal Credit. Details of this change were not 
released by the DWP until after the original 2017-18 budget 
was set. 

20

Total Non-recurring growth 244

Page 108



Table 7: Non- Non-recurring Growth – no additional resources required
Service Description Saving

£000
Contractual disputes Earmarked Reserve to be set aside to cover the cost of 

contractual disputes
150

Total Non-recurring growth 409

Table 8: Non – Non-recurring savings
Portfolio/Service Description Saving

£000
Corporate Resources
Banking &Interest Reduction in PWLB borrowing costs to reflect changes 

made to the expected timing of capital expenditure funded 
from borrowing across financial years and the associated 
changes to external borrowing requirements.

(68)

MRP & Finance Charges Reduction in Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) charge for 
2017-18 in respect of 'unfinanced' capital expenditure 
incurred in 2016/17. This reduction reflects the re-profiling 
of expenditure from 2016-17 to 2017-18 and the resulting 
deferral of MRP.

(23)

Pension Deficit The original budget includes £50k to cover the additional 
pension costs associated with the required auto-enrolment 
of employees, who are not currently members of the LGPS. 
The Council’s staging date for auto enrolment is October 
2017 and the estimated cost for the period October 2017 to 
March 2018, in respect of all staff not currently in the 
scheme, is £35,000.

(15)

Economic Growth
Camping & Caravan Site Excess of actual income received in relation to the 2016-17 

financial year over the estimated income included in the 
2016-17 revenue outturn position. 

(23)

Total Non-recurring savings (129)

Page 109



Self-sufficiency adjustments 

3.5 To ensure that the Council remains financially sustainable and delivers a balanced budget 
in 2017-18, the original revenue budget for the year included self-sufficiency savings of 
£738,000 (summarised in Table 9 below).   

Table 9: 2017-18 Self-Sufficiency Programme
Original   
Budget 

Budget 
adjustment

Revised  
Budget Service

£000 £000 £000
Economic Development Initiatives 
Tenanted Properties (car park) (65) 0 (65)
 (65) 0 (65)

Operational Efficiencies
Corporate Advertising (10) 0 (10)
IT Services (40) 0 (40)
Planning and Development (3) 0 (3)
Parks and Grounds Maintenance (42) 0 (42)
Domestic Waste (50) 0 (50)

 (145) 0 (145)
Service Delivery
Off-street - Owned (75) 0 (75)
Sports & Leisure Centres (103) 0 (103)
Corporate & Service Reviews (350) 0 (350)
 (528) 0 (528)
  
Total self-sufficiency savings (738) 0 (738)

3.6 Transformational plans are currently being reviewed, as they are slightly being target in 
achieving savings of £350k during this financial year.

3.7 However, a number of initiatives have been agreed that will ensure that the target will be 
over achieved in future years – e.g. treasury decisions to pay in advance pension fund 
contributions will deliver cash savings of £158k over the coming two years.

3.8 As work commences on drawing up the 2018/19 budget the Self-Sufficiency programme 
will be extended to ensure that the Council’s strategy and future capital programme can 
be delivered.

Page 110



Change in salary costs (Pay Groups)

3.9 Details of the recurring and non-recurring salary cost adjustments made to net service 
expenditure are included in table 10.  They include: 

 recurring savings of £59k; these changes will impact on the base budget for 
2018-19 and future financial years.

 non-recurring changes of £13k; these changes will not impact on the base 
budget for future financial years.

Table 10: Changes to salary costs
Recurring Non-

Recurring
£000 £000

Proposed structure changes associated with portfolio alignment (8)
Change in structures (hours/grades) (1)
Posts filled on different SCP/Hours (impacting NI) (55)
Additional costs associated with staff joining the pension scheme 10
Other minor changes to staff costs (5)
Additional costs of temporary structures in Audit and HR 8
Reducing Inequalities Post unfilled (35)
Interim arrangements to cover for Head of Governance post 14

(59) (13)

4.0 Use of Contingencies

4.1 The original approved budget included a contingency amount of £111,780 to cover 
expenditure outside the normal budget process for example unforeseen expenditure.

4.2 To date the following allocations have been made from Contingencies:

Table 11: Allocation of contingency sums

£

Opening Balance 111,780
Released to services 0
Repairs to the retaining wall (45,000)
Remaining Balance 66,780
Earmarked to meet ongoing contractual disputes (66,780)
Other expected use in 2017-18 (revenue) 0
Remaining Unallocated Balance 0

Page 111



5.0 Government Grants and Taxation Financing

5.1 Proposed changes to the financing element of the 2017-18 budget - including income from 
non-ring fenced government grants and business rates (NNDR) are summarised in table 
12.

Table 12- Taxation and non-specific grant income
2017/2018

Original 
Budget

Revised
Budget Change

£000 £000 £000 Para
Revenue support grant 1,060 1,060 0
Rural Services Delivery Grant 261 261 0
Other government grants (New Homes Bonus) 1,604 1,604 0
Council tax – including parish element 6,834 6,834 0
Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - Council Tax 139 139 0
NNDR funding 5,227 5,603 376 5.2
Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - NNDR (623) (872) (249) 5.2
Use of / (contribution to) General fund Balances 0 0 0
Total funding 14,502 14,629 127

5.2 A summary of the changes underlying the projected increase in funding from National Non 
Domestic Rates (NNDR) is set out in table 13.

Table 13 - NNDR funding 2017-18
2017-2018

Funding element Budget 

£000
Revised 

£000
Change 

£000
Fixed Elements:
Allerdale Share of NNDR Income 11,541 11,805 264
Net tariff payable to Central Government (6,931) (6,931) 0
Share of estimated collection fund deficit at 31.3.17 (623) (872) (249)
‘Fixed’ element of NNDR income 3,987 4,002 15
Variable Elements:
Section 31 grant 819 1,224 405
Levy payable (net of reduction under pool arrangements) (432) (362) 70
Variable element of NNDR income 387 862 475

4,374 4,864 490
Release of s31 Flood grant from Earmarked Reserve 230 227 (3)
Transfer of NNDR s31 funding to volatility reserve 0 (360) (360)
Total estimated income from NNDR 4,604 4,731 127

Page 112



5.3 The amount of NNDR income available to the general fund and taken into account when 
setting the budget each year is based on the figures contained in the government return - 
NNDR1. 

5.4 This return is completed in January preceding the start of the financial year and sets outs 
the Council’s estimate of business rate income to be collected during the forthcoming 
year. It also takes into account the estimated amount of surplus or deficit on the Council’s 
Collection Fund - resulting from differences between previous estimates of business rates 
income and the actual amount of business rates collected - to be paid to or recovered 
from the Council’s general fund during the forthcoming year. 

5.5 In addition to fixing the amount of NNDR income available to the Council’s general fund 
the NNDR 1 return also fixes the amount the Council pays over to central government and 
the County Council. 

5.6 In the 2017-18 budget report, it was noted that completion of the Council’s NNDR 1return 
for 2017-18 had been delayed because of technical difficulties nationally with the software 
required to produce the NNDR 1 return. As a consequence, in order to meet the timetable 
for preparing and approving the Council’s revenue budget, it was necessary to prepare 
the revenue budget using provisional estimates of the Council’s NNDR income. The net 
adjustment of £15k to the ‘fixed’ element of NNDR income consequently comprises of the 
differences between these estimates and the amounts included in the NNDR 1 return 
submitted to central government. It also includes any statutory adjustments arising from 
differences between the NNDR1 and collection fund outturn position for the preceding 
year. These adjustments are not confirmed until after the end of the previous financial 
year. 

5.7 Although the NNDR1 form fixes a significant portion of NNDR income available to the 
Council’s general fund it does not fix the amount of: 

 levy the Council pays to the Cumbria business rates pool, 
 retained levy that the Council receives back from the pool or 
 grant it receives from central government to compensate for certain business 

rate reliefs (section 31 grant).

5.8 Amounts relating to levy payments and section 31 grant are based on the Collection Fund 
outturn position rather than on the estimates included in the NNDR 1 return. As a 
consequence the amount of income the Council receives and pays in relation to these 
items is subject to change over the course of the financial year. 

5.9 The change in the variable elements of NNDR income of £475k reflects:
 an increase of £405k in the amount of section 31 grant the Council expects to 

receive to compensate it for the loss of business rates income that results from 
the award of certain reliefs and other changes to the business rates system 
made by central government in 2017-18 and previous years

 a £70k reduction in the estimated amount of levy (net of reduction under pool 
arrangements) the Council expects to pay, based on current forecasts of the 
Collection Fund outturn positions of pool members. 

Page 113



6.0 Capital budget

6.1 The current capital budget for 2017-18 is £12,792 569. This includes:

 the approved budget figure of £9,401,147
 approved capital budget carry forwards from 2016/17 of £3,391,422.

6.2 The proposed revised three year capital budget is summarised in table 14

Table 14 Revised Capital Budget
Financial year 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Capital Scheme £000 £000 £000 Para

Original Budget 12,792 7,715 2,190
Re-profiling adjustments (7,040) 7,040 0
Capital Growth and Savings 183 761 0
Revised Budget 5,935 15,516 2,190

6.3 Changes to the Capital Budget comprise:

 re-profiling adjustments of £7,040k

 capital bids of £183k
Further details of these changes are set out below.

Page 114



Re-profiling adjustments 

6.4 In year monitoring procedures have identified a number of changes affecting the profiling 
of previously approved expenditure across financial years. 

6.5 These re-profiling adjustments involve the transfer of £7.04m of expenditure and 
associated financing from 2017-18 to 2018-19 to reflect current expenditure forecasts. 

Table 15: Re-profiling adjustments to capital programme 
2017-18 2018-19

£000 £000
Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants (144) 144
Discretionary Grants (125) 125
Health Homes (Empty Homes) (50) 50
Harrington Reservoir (167) 167
Solway Coast Pathway (304) 304
Lillyhall Development (4,800) 4,800
Reedlands Road Development (1,450) 1,450
Total reprofiling adjustment (7,040) 7,040

Financed by
Capital grants and contributions (6,510) 6,510
Borrowing (unfinanced expend.) (530) 530

(7,040) 7,040

Capital Growth and Savings 

6.6 A number of new capital expenditure bids have been submitted for approval as part of the 
2017-18 revised budget proposals. These are summarised in table 16 with additional 
information provided in Tables 17 and 18. 

Table 16: Summary of Capital Bids 
Financial year 

2017-18 2018-19 Total bid
Capital Scheme £000 £000 £000
Multi-storey car park (MSCP equipment) 183 0 183
Lilly Hall - Land Purchase (347) 0 (347)
Strategic Acquisitions 347 0 347
Highfield Community Centre 0 140 140
Reedlands Road Development 0 850 850
Solway Coast Multi-User Pathway 0 (479) (479)
Capital Contingency 0 250 250

183 761 944

Page 115



Table 17: Capital Bids 2017-18
Portfolio/Service Description Bid

£000
Multi Storey Car Park 
equipment

A number of capital purchases have been necessary to 
ensure the safe and effective operation of the facility. 

This expenditure will be funded from borrowing and the cost 
charged against the revenue budget over the life of the 
assets. This was taken into account as part of the decision 
to take over management of the Multi Storey Car Park and 
as such the savings the Council expects to achieve from 
assuming responsibility for management of this facility are 
unaffected by this bid. 

183

Lillyhall - Land Purchase The cost of the land purchase is now expected to be 
significantly lower than the budget (347)

Strategic Acquisitions To enhance the Council’s capacity to take advantage of 
property acquisition and development opportunities that 
support achievement of Council Priorities, it is proposed 
that the reduction of £347k in the Lillyhall land purchase 
budget is allocated to the strategic acquisitions budget

347

Total bid 2017/18 183

Table 18: Capital Bids 2018-19
Portfolio/Service Description Bid

£000
Highfield Community Centre To support construction of an extension to the Community 

Centre at Highfield. This expenditure, expected to be 
incurred in 2018-19. 

140

Reedlands Road 
Development

A budget of £1.7m was approved for the development of 
additional industrial units. Changes to the proposed scheme 
have resulted in an increase to the overall cost of the 
scheme and the contribution required from the ERDF and 
Allerdale.
The current estimated cost of the scheme is £2.55m, with 
external funding (ERDF) being sought for £1.5m.The 
balance of expenditure (£1.05m) is to be met from 
borrowing (an increase of £370k.)

850

Solway Coast Multi-User 
Pathway

This scheme was contingent on funding from the Coastal 
Communities Fund (CCF). The funding secured was lower 
than had been sought. 
The scheme has been revised to reduce the overall cost 
and work is currently on-going to secure remaining funding 
gap of £250k from the RDPE Tourism Infrastructure Fund. 

(479)

Capital Contingency A capital contingency funded from the Council’s general 
fund balances is required in the event that funding 
application for Capital Schemes are unsuccessful and 
alternative funding cannot be found 

250

Total bid 2018/19 761

Total bid 944

Page 116



Proposed revised capital programme

6.7 The original three year capital budget is £22,697,569 (comprises planned expenditure of 
£12,792 569 in 2017-18, £7,715,000 in 2018-19 and £2,190,000 in 2019-20)

6.8 The revised three year capital budget is £23,641,419 (£22,697,569 plus capital bids 
totalling £943,850), with the profiling identified in Table 19

Table 19: Proposed revised capital programme 
Revised expenditure profile

Current 
budget 

Budget 
change 

(new bids)
Revised 
Budget 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Gross expenditure  
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 6,799 0 6,799 2,180 2,469 2,150
Corporate Resources 447 0 447 447 0 0
Localities & Environmental 462 323 785 478 307 0
Transformation 230 0 230 150 40 40
Economic Growth 12,850 850 13,700 2,500 11,200 0
Tourism & Culture 1,909 (229) 1,680 180 1,500 0
Total Expenditure: 22,697 944 23,641 5,935 15,516 2,190
Financed by:  
External grant funding:
Disabled Facilities Grant (BCF) 3,346 0 3,346 1,077 1,269 1,000
SCP Housing grant 382 0 382 319 50 13
ERDF grant 1,020 480 1,500 0 1,500 0
LEP Growth Deal 5,000 0 5,000 200 4,800 0
Coastal Communities Fund 1,729 (479) 1,250 0 1,250 0
Other grants & contributions 611 0 611 494 117 0
ABC resources & borrowing
Capital Receipts 280 0 280 280 0 0
Earmarked Reserves 230 0 230 230 0 0
Revenue Budget 13 0 13 13 0 0
General Fund 730 250 980 730 250 0
Borrowing (unfinanced expend.) 9,356 693 10,049 2,592 6,280 1,177
Total financing 22,697 944 23,641 5,935 15,516 2,190

Page 117



Financing of Capital Expenditure 

6.9 The capital bids of £943,850 outlined above include £693,000 funded from borrowing. 
This brings the total unfinanced expenditure over the three years covered by the capital 
programme to £10.1m. This expenditure will be met from additional loans from the Public 
Works Loan Board (PWLB) and from use of the Council’s cash and investment balances 
(internal borrowing).

6.10 Expenditure which is unfinanced (and funded either from PWLB loans or internal 
borrowing) will require the Council to make an annual charge to its general fund meet the 
capital cost of this expenditure.

6.11 This charge, known as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is calculated in accordance 
with the Councils approved MRP policy and is normally charged from the financial year 
following the one in which the expenditure is incurred.

6.12 Any expenditure which is unfinanced - met from borrowing - will therefore generate an 
increase in the amount of MRP included in the revenue budget.

6.13 The draw-down of additional PWLB loans will also increase the amount of interest 
payable. The estimated impact of the revised capital programme on the Council’s MRP 
and interest costs in shown in table14.

6.14 Based on interest rate forecasts provided by the Council’s Treasury advisors and 
estimated additional PWLB borrowing of up to £11.2m over the three years to March 
2020, it shows that between 2016/17 and 2020/21 interest and MRP costs are forecast to 
increase from £1.2m to £2.2m.

Table 20: Impact of revised capital programme on Interest and MRP costs 
2016/17 
actual 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Original budget  
MRP 411 646 714 947 1,018
Interest 772 892 1,017 1,120 1,063
Total revenue charge 1,183 1,538 1,731 2,067 2,081
Revised Budget 
MRP 411 623 713 992 1,063
Interest 772 817 1,008 1,107 1,096
Total revised revenue charge 1,183 1,440 1,721 2,099 2,159
Increase/(decrease) in MRP & Interest 
charge (98) (10) 32 78

Page 118



Capital Resources

6.15 The impact of the revised capital programme and proposed funding on the levels of capital 
resources (capital receipts and capital grants) available to the Council is summarised in 
table 21. The impact of the Council’s General Fund and Earmarked (General Fund) 
balances is set out in section 7 of this report.

Table 21: Capital receipts and grants available to fund the capital programme
Grant & contributionsCapital 

Receipts Housing Non-housing
£000 £000 £000

Balance as at 31 March 2017 377 1,372 191
Received during 2017-18 85 1,039 0
Forecast to be received in 2017-18a 0 0 200
Available for allocation 462 2,410 391
Allocation:
Financing proposed capital budget 2017-18 (280) (1,889) (200)
Financing budget after 2017-18 0 (521) 0
Ring-fenced resources not yet brought into 
budget (45) - (191)

Balance unallocated 137 0 0
a: Subject to satisfactory outcome of funding applications currently in progress 

6.16 The items identified as 'Ring-fenced resources’ comprise:
 £45,000 relating to proceeds from the sale of Workington Hall Lodge, ring-fenced 

for improvements to Hall Park

 £191,213 relating to a number of specific capital grants that can only be applied to 
the purposes for which they were received.

6.17 Capital receipts included in table 21 do not include anticipated receipts from disposals 
expected to be completed in 2017-18. 

6.18 The Council is currently progressing disposal of a number of properties. These will 
generate capital receipts that may - once received - be applied to finance capital 
expenditure or repay borrowing. However, until such time as these disposals are 
completed, the associated receipts are not allocated to finance the capital programme.  
This avoids the potential impact on the Council’s general fund if the anticipated capital 
receipts are not received and the past financing decisions need to be unwound.

6.19 Any additional capital receipts received after the date of this report will be considered as 
part of the 2018-19 budget setting process. 

Page 119



7.0 Impact on General Fund and Earmarked Reserve Balances

General Fund balances 

7.1 The impact of the proposed revisions to the 2017-18 revenue and capital budgets on the 
Council’s general fund and earmarked general fund balances (Earmarked Reserves) is 
summarised the following tables.

Table 22 - Estimated General Fund (GF) balances 
Original 
Budget

Revised 
Budget Change

£'000 £'000 £'000
Opening Balances 3,801 3,801 0
Adjustment to reflect the 2016/17 outturn position 0 1,298 1,298
Audited Balance at 1 April 2017 0 5,099 5,099
Add: Release of Earmarked Reserves to GF 0 0 0
Less: Approved use for 2017-18 capital programme 
(including carry-forwards) 0 (730) (730)

Less: Use of GF to support 2017-18 Revenue Budget  0 0 0
Forecast balance at 31 March 2018 3,801 4,369 568
Committed to finance 2018-19 capital programme  0 (250) (250)
Retained - Minimum Balance 2,700 2,700 0

Available for Use 1,101 1,419 318

Review of Earmarked Reserves 

7.2 The Council has a number of earmarked reserves, all of which have been created for a 
specific purpose.  They include amounts: 

 set aside to meet planned future expenditure 
 retained for service departmental use – including budgets carried forward from 

prior years to meet know commitments 
 relating to unspent revenue grants where there are restrictions on use 
 set aside as a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or 

transactions. 

7.3 The original budgeted use of reserves (£435k) was set before the 2016-17 outturn 
position and before the approval of carry forward requests. 

7.4 The revised budget therefore includes adjustments to reflect the available balance of 
reserves and the expected timing of expenditure from those reserves. 

7.5 The Earmarked Reserve Balance of £5,201k can be split as follows:

 £3,695k held for service expenditure
 £1,506k held as held for accounting purposes or as contingency against 

specified risks.

Page 120



7.6 The balance at 31 March 2017 is currently forecast to be spent as follows: 

Table 23 - Estimated Earmarked General Fund balances 
Original 
Budget

Revised 
Budget Change

£'000 £'000 £'000
Opening Balances 1 April 2016 3,575 3,575 0
Projected movement in 2016/17 (1,465) - 1,465
Adjustment to reflect 2016/17 revenue outturn 1,626 1,626
Balance at 1 April 2017 2,110 5,201 3,091
Less: Release to General Fund
Add planned Contributions to Earmarked Reserves 35 35 0
Contributions to Volatility Reserve 360 360
Less: Planned use in 2017-18 - revenue (435) (2,454) (2,019)
Less: Planned use in 2017-18 - capital 0 (230) (230)
Forecast balance at 31 March 2018 1,710 2,912 1,202

7.7 Earmarked reserves are currently being reviewed to ensure they are held in-line with 
Council priorities and that the balance remains at the appropriate level. Further details of 
this review will be reported in future budget monitoring reports. Further details of the 
planned use of earmarked reserves are set out in Appendix C.

8.0 Updated Medium Term Plan

8.1 The Council’s medium term financial plan (MTFP) 2017-18 to 2020-21 has been updated 
to incorporate this revised budget. A copy of the updated plan is set out in the 2018-19 
Budget Strategy and Medium Term Financial Plan Update report presented as a separate 
item on this Agenda.

Catherine Nicholson
Head of Financial Services 

Page 121



Supporting Appendices:
Appendix A - Revised position on Earmarked Reserves
Appendix B - Reconciliation of 2017-18 original capital budget to revised 2017-18 capital budget 
Appendix C - Detailed current and revised capital budgets – 2017-8 to 2019-20
Appendix D-– Re-profiling adjustments to capital budget

Page 122



Appendix J

Movement in Earmarked Reserves 2017/18

Reserve Reserves Balance
at 01/04/17

Transfers
Between
Reserves

Balance After
Transfers

Proposed
2017/18

Contributions
to Earmarked

Reserves

Proposed 2017/18
Revised Revenue

Budget

Proposed
2017/18
Revised
Capital
Budget

Proposed
Balance to carry

forward to 2018/19

Portfolio:  Corporate Resources
Planned Maintenance - Buildings (2,000) (2,000) 0 2,000 0
Excess Insurance /Risk Management (90,928) (90,928) 0 13,000 (77,928)
Allerdale House - Internal Works (10,130) (10,130) 0 10,130 0
Emergency Planning - Flooding (28,260) (28,260) 0 0 (28,260)
Car Park Markings (5,000) (5,000) 0 0 (5,000)
Section 31 NNDR (226,582) (226,582) (360,000) 226,582 (360,000)
Financial System Improvements (42,953) (42,953) 0 42,953 0
Footway Lighting Scheme (70,998) (70,998) 0 7,498 (63,500)
New Lighting Columns (1,834) (1,834) 0 0 (1,834)
Pension Scheme Auto Enrolment (150,000) 150,000 0 0 0 0
Contractual Disputes 0 (150,000) (150,000) 0 150,000 0
NNDR Rate Pool Volatility Fund (101,714) (101,714) 0 0 (101,714) *
Business Rate Income (621,000) (621,000) 0 0 (621,000) *
AIP Loan Note Interest (552,799) (552,799) 0 0 (552,799) *
AIP Loan Notes (222,000) (222,000) 0 0 (222,000) *
Hugh Barbour Bequest (8,661) (8,661) 0 0 (8,661) *

(2,134,859) 0 (2,134,859) (360,000) 452,163 0 (2,042,696)

Portfolio:  Governance and People Resources
Legal Counsel (22,029) (45,462) (67,491) 0 32,491 (35,000)
Provision for Elections (35,000) (35,000) (35,000) 0 (70,000)
Member Training (9,000) (9,000) 0 9,000 0
Legal costs (45,462) 45,462 0 0 (0) 0
Allerdale Options (6,745) (6,745) 0 6,745 0
Community Safety (Governance) (7,900) (7,900) 0 7,900 0
Legal Services (465,887) (465,887) 0 465,887 0
Community Safety (50,951) (50,951) 0 0 (50,951)
Licensing Service Re-design (16,100) (16,100) 0 16,100 0
Young People/Apprentices (16,088) (16,088) 0 16,088 0

(675,162) 0 (675,162) (35,000) 554,210 0 (155,951)

P
age 123



Appendix J

Portfolio:  Economic Growth
Planning Service Delivery Improvements (50,746) (50,746) 0 50,746 0
Local Development Framework (50,742) (50,742) 0 0 (50,742)
MSCP Maintenance (47,756) (47,756) 0 47,756 0
Planning Policy (52,454) (52,454) 0 35,000 (17,454)
Town Centres (20,000) (20,000) 0 20,000 0
Town Centre Management (400) (400) 0 400 0
Disposal of ABC Sites (8,427) (8,427) 0 8,427 0
Building Control - service improvement (scanning) (14,795) (14,795) 0 14,795 0
Maryport Shop Front Improvements (4,881) (4,881) 0 4,881 0
Enterprise Coaches (WISE) (33,264) (33,264) 0 0 (33,264)
Corporate Priorities (32,825) (32,825) 0 32,825 0
Financial Planning & Economic Growth (155,211) (155,211) 0 155,210 (1)

(471,500) 0 (471,500) 0 370,040 (101,460)

Portfolio:  Housing, Health & Wellbeing
Housing Strategic Function (835) (835) 0 835 0
Homelessness (1,383) (1,383) 0 1,383 0
Community Housing Fund (762,272) (762,272) 0 195,127 (567,145)
Major Incident Response (73,177) (73,177) 0 73,177 0
GP Scheme (8,760) (8,760) 0 8,760 0
Health & Wellbeing Group (731) (731) 0 731 (0)
Water Quality Signage (10,690) (10,690) 0 10,690 0

(857,848) 0 (857,848) 0 290,703 0 (567,145)

Portfolio:  Leader of the Council
Corporate Transformation (379,058) (379,058) 0 379,058 0

(379,058) 0 (379,058) 0 379,058 0 0

Reserve Reserves Balance
at 01/04/17

Transfers
Between
Reserves

Balance After
Transfers

Proposed
2017/18

Contributions
to Earmarked

Reserves

Proposed 2017/18
Revised Revenue

Budget

Proposed
2017/18
Revised
Capital
Budget

Proposed
Balance to carry

forward to 2018/19

P
age 124



Appendix J

Portfolio:  Locality & Env Quality
Parks & Grounds Maintenance (5,000) (5,000) 0 5,000 0
Parks Development (1,000) (1,000) 0 1,000 0
High Level Stewardship (6,366) (6,366) 0 6,366 0
Off-street - Owned Car Parks - signage (19,000) (19,000) 0 19,000 0
Bereavement Services - system upgrade (10,446) (10,446) 0 10,446 0
Weekly Collection Support Scheme (125,594) (125,594) 0 112,000 (13,594)
Festivals & Community Events (17,915) (17,915) 0 17,915 0
Leisure Activities (22,650) (22,650) 0 22,650 0

(207,971) 0 (207,971) 0 194,377 0 (13,594)

Portfolio:  Tourism & Culture
Museums (540) (540) 0 540 0
Solway  AONB Core (29,098) (29,098) 0 29,098 0

(29,638) 0 (29,638) 0 29,638 0 0

Reserve Reserves Balance
at 01/04/17

Transfers
Between
Reserves

Balance After
Transfers

Proposed
2017/18

Contributions
to Earmarked

Reserves

Proposed 2017/18
Revised Revenue

Budget

Proposed
2017/18
Revised
Capital
Budget

Proposed
Balance to carry

forward to 2018/19

P
age 125



Appendix J

Portfolio:  Transformation
Coastal Works (2) (2) (2)
New Technology Fund (7,842) (7,842) 0 7,842 0
Customer Operations (58,742) (58,742) 0 58,742 0
Anti Poverty (1,849) (1,849) 0 (1,849)
Purchase of Equipment (Enveloper) (9,797) (9,797) 0 9,797 (0)
Comms & Marketing (94,850) (94,850) 0 94,850 0
IT Services - corporate printers (30,000) (30,000) 0 6,772 (23,228)
ICT Costs (4,295) (4,295) 0 4,295 0

(207,378) 0 (207,378) (0) 182,298 0 (25,080)

REVENUE EARMARKED RESERVES (4,963,413) 0 (4,963,413) (395,000) 2,452,486 0 (2,905,927)

Capital Reserves - Corporate resources 
Revenue Financing for Capital Programme (237,530) (237,530) 230,840 (6,690)

CAPITAL EARMARKED RESERVES (237,530) 0 (237,530) 0 0 230,840 (6,690)

TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES (5,200,944) 0 (5,200,944) (395,000) 2,452,486 230,840 (2,912,617)

* held for accounting purposes or as contingency against specified risks

Reserve Reserves Balance
at 01/04/17

Transfers
Between
Reserves

Balance After
Transfers

Proposed
2017/18

Contributions
to Earmarked

Reserves

Proposed 2017/18
Revised Revenue

Budget

Proposed
2017/18
Revised
Capital
Budget

Proposed
Balance to carry

forward to 2018/19

P
age 126



Summary of changes to existing 3 year Capital programme 

Proposed Proposed Proposed 
Budget Budget Budget
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

£ £ £

Expenditure

TOTAL EXPENDITURE - 2017/18 original budget 12,792,569 7,715,000 2,190,000

Proposed Changes 

Reprofiling of existing expenditure:
The Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant (144,362) 144,362
Discretionary Grants (125,000) 125,000
Health Homes (Empty Homes) (50,000) 50,000
Harrington resevoir (167,000) 167,000
Solway Coast Pathway (304,150) 304,150
Lillyhall Development (4,800,000) 4,800,000
Reedlands Road Development (1,450,000) 1,450,000

(7,040,512) 7,040,512

New Bids 
MSCP equipment 183,000
Lilly Hall - Land Purchase (347,000)
Strategic Acquisitions 347,000
Highfield Community Centre 140,000
Capital Contingency 250,000
Reedlands Road Development 850,000
Solway Coast Pathway (479,150)

183,000 760,850

Total change to expenditure (6,857,512) 7,801,362 0

TOTAL EXPENDITURE - proposed 2017/18 budget 5,935,057 15,516,362 2,190,000

Financing

TOTAL FINANCING - 2017/18 Original budget 12,792,569 7,715,000 2,190,000

Proposed Changes: 

Reprofiling of existing expenditure:
External Grant Funding:
DFG Housing Grant (269,362) 269,362
ERDF grant - Reedlands Road (1,020,000) 1,020,000
LEP Growth Deal funding (4,800,000) 4,800,000
Solway Coast Pathway grants (304,150) 304,150
Other grants and contributions - Harrington Reservoir (117,000) 117,000

Allerdale BC Resources
Prudential Borrowing - Reedlands Road (430,000) 430,000
Prudential Borrowing - Harrington Reservoir (50,000) 50,000
Prudential Borrowing - Health Homes (Empty Homes) (50,000) 50,000

New Bids 
External Grant Funding:
ERDF grant - Reedlands Road 480,000
Solway Coast Pathway grants (479,150)

Allerdale BC Resources
Prudential Borrowing - MSCP equipment 183,000
Prudential Borrowing -Highfield Community Centre 140,000
Prudential Borrowing -Reedlands Road Development 370,000
General Fund -Capital Contingency 250,000

Total change in financing (6,857,512) 7,801,362 0

TOTAL FINANCING - proposed 2017/18 budget 5,935,057 15,516,362 2,190,000

Page 127



Current and Revised Capital Budget 2017/18 to 2019/20

Current Budget Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed
Budget Changes Revised

Budget 
Budget Reprofile Growth Savings Budget Budget Reprofile Growth Savings Budget Budget Reprofile Growth Savings Budget 

(new bids) 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19
Description £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Housing, Health & Wellbeing
The Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant 2,290,926 0 2,290,926 790,926 (144,362) 646,564 750,000 144,362 894,362 750,000 750,000
Discretionary Grants 975,000 0 975,000 475,000 (125,000) 350,000 250,000 125,000 375,000 250,000 250,000
Health Homes (Empty Homes) 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 (50,000) 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0 0
Health Homes 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 0 0 1,000,000 0 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 1,000,000
Securing Affordable Homes 150,000 0 150,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Housing Improvement Projects 257,626 0 257,626 257,626 257,626 0 0 0 0
Cluster of Empty Homes 51,359 0 51,359 51,359 51,359 0 0 0 0
Central Heating Fund 674,113 0 674,113 674,113 674,113 0 0 0 0
Flood resilience 300,000 0 300,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
TOTAL - Housing, Health & Wellbeing 6,799,024 0 6,799,024 2,499,024 (319,362) 0 0 2,179,662 2,150,000 319,362 0 0 2,469,362 2,150,000 0 0 0 2,150,000

 Corporate Resources
Public Toilets Review Works 149,860 0 149,860 149,860 149,860 0 0 0 0
Flooding/Landslip Works 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Demolition Moorclose Sport Centre 234,906 0 234,906 234,906 234,906 0 0 0 0
Evo Centre Works (Food Bank) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
WTC Coast Line Feature 12,714 0 12,714 12,714 12,714 0 0 0 0
Resurfacing works (Brow Top Car Park) 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 0 0
TOTAL -  Corporate Resources 447,480 0 447,480 447,480 0 0 0 447,480 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Localities & Environmental Quality
Workington Hall Repair Scheme 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 0 0
Replacement Pay and Display Machines (inc. signage) 121,033 0 121,033 121,033 121,033 0 0 0 0
MSCP equipment 0 183,000 183,000 0 183,000 183,000 0 0 0 0
Harrington resevoir 167,000 0 167,000 167,000 (167,000) 0 0 167,000 167,000 0 0
Fleming Sq restorati 30,000 0 30,000 30,000 30,000 0 0 0 0
New Leisure Facility 93,882 0 93,882 93,882 93,882 0 0 0 0
Highfield Community Centre 0 140,000 140,000 0 140,000 140,000 0
TOTAL -Localities & Environmental 461,915 183,000 784,915 461,915 (167,000) 183,000 0 477,915 0 167,000 140,000 0 307,000 0 0 0 0 0

Tourism & Culture
Solway Coast Pathway 1,729,150 (479,150) 1,250,000 304,150 (304,150) 0 1,425,000 304,150 (479,150) 1,250,000 0 0
Capital Contingency 0 250,000 250,000 0 0 0 250,000 250,000 0 0
Helena Thompson Museum Development 180,000 0 180,000 180,000 180,000 0 0 0 0
TOTAL - Corporate Management Team 1,909,150 (229,150) 1,680,000 484,150 (304,150) 0 0 180,000 1,425,000 304,150 250,000 (479,150) 1,500,000 0 0 0 0 0

OD & Transformation
IT Equipment (ABC Only) 120,000 0 120,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
Refurbishment of customer service area 110,000 0 110,000 110,000 110,000 0 0 0 0
TOTAL - OD & Transformation 230,000 0 230,000 150,000 0 0 0 150,000 40,000 0 0 0 40,000 40,000 0 0 0 40,000

Economic Growth
Lilly Hall - Land Purchase 1,100,000 (347,000) 753,000 1,100,000 (347,000) 753,000 0 0 0 0
Lillyhall Development 9,000,000 0 9,000,000 5,000,000 (4,800,000) 200,000 4,000,000 4,800,000 8,800,000 0 0
Reedlands Road Development 1,700,000 850,000 2,550,000 1,700,000 (1,450,000) 250,000 0 1,450,000 850,000 2,300,000 0 0
Strategic Acquisitions 950,000 347,000 1,297,000 950,000 347,000 1,297,000 0 0 0 0
Kirkgate Centre Contribution 100,000 0 100,000 0 0 100,000 100,000 0 0
TOTAL - Economic Growth 12,850,000 850,000 13,700,000 8,750,000 (6,250,000) 0 0 2,500,000 4,100,000 6,250,000 850,000 0 11,200,000 0 0 0 0 0

22,697,569 803,850 23,641,419 12,792,569 (7,040,512) 183,000 0 5,935,057 7,715,000 7,040,512 1,240,000 (479,150) 15,516,362 2,190,000 0 0 0 2,190,000

FINANCING

DFG Housing Grant 3,345,926 0 3,345,926 1,345,926 (269,362) 1,076,564 1,000,000 269,362 1,269,362 1,000,000 1,000,000
SCP Housing Grant 381,985 0 381,985 318,985 0 318,985 50,000 0 50,000 13,000 13,000
Central Heating Fund Grant 494,113 0 494,113 494,113 0 494,113 0 0 0 0 0
ERDF grant 1,020,000 480,000 1,500,000 1,020,000 (1,020,000) 0 0 1,020,000 480,000 1,500,000 0 0
LEP Growth Deal funding 5,000,000 0 5,000,000 5,000,000 (4,800,000) 200,000 0 4,800,000 4,800,000 0 0
Solway Coast Pathway grants 1,729,150 (479,150) 1,250,000 304,150 (304,150) 0 1,425,000 304,150 (479,150) 1,250,000 0 0
Other grants & contributions - Harrington Res. 117,000 0 117,000 117,000 (117,000) 0 0 117,000 117,000 0 0

12,088,174 850 12,089,024 8,600,174 (6,510,512) 0 0 2,089,662 2,475,000 6,510,512 480,000 (479,150) 8,986,362 1,013,000 0 0 0 1,013,000

Capital Receipts 280,339 0 280,339 280,339 280,339 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue Earmarked Reserves 230,840 0 230,840 230,840 230,840 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue Receipt 12,860 0 12,860 12,860 12,860 0 0 0 0 0
General Fund Balances 729,856 250,000 979,856 729,856 729,856 0 0 250,000 250,000 0 0
Prudential Borrowing (Unfinanced Expenditure) 9,355,500 693,000 10,048,500 2,938,500 (530,000) 183,000 0 2,591,500 5,240,000 530,000 510,000 6,280,000 1,177,000 1,177,000

10,609,395 943,000 11,552,395 4,192,395 (530,000) 183,000 0 3,845,395 5,240,000 530,000 760,000 0 6,530,000 1,177,000 0 0 0 1,177,000

22,697,569 943,850 23,641,419 12,792,569 (7,040,512) 183,000 0 5,935,057 7,715,000 7,040,512 1,240,000 (479,150) 15,516,362 2,190,000 0 0 0 2,190,000

0

P
age 128



Re-profiling adjustments to Capital 

Capital Budget Re-Profile Impact on use of Resources

Service Description Reprofile
£

Borrowing

£

Capital
 Receipts

£

GF/EM
Reserves

£

Grants &
Contributions

£
Housing, Health & Wellbeing
The Mandatory Disabled Facilities
Grant 

The Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) budget covers the provision of adaptations to disabled people’s homes to help them to live
independently for longer. The Authority has a statutory duty to provide adaptations to the homes of disabled people who qualify for a
mandatory DFG.
The demand led nature of the service means expenditure on these grants is subject to significant levels of volatility. Despite the steps
being taken to promote awareness of the availability of these grants and accelerate the time taken to process applications and pay grants,
projected expenditure for the year is expected to fall below the £750,000current budget. At the end of quarter 2 forecasted outturn
expenditure of  £646,564  will result in an underspend of £144,362. This forecasted underspend will be re-profiled to 2017/18 for use
against either the mandatory or discretionary DFG schemes.

(144,362) 0 (144,362)

Discretionary Grants Processing of Discretionary Grants started in July 2017. A number of grant applications are currently n progress and further
communications promoting the availability of grants is programmed to start in September  2017. Despite this it is anticipated that the
budget will not be fully utilised until  2018/19. 

(125,000) 0 (125,000)

Healthy Homes (Empty Homes) The Healthy Homes scheme is aimed at securing improvements to sub-standard homes on an individual, block or area basis. Letters have
been sent to property owners whose properties have been empty for over two years promoting the availability of grants. However, take up
has limited.  Whilst a number of cases are currently progressing, previous experience has shown that processing applications through to
final payment stage can be challenging. It is anticipated that as a result of these issues the budget will not be fully utilised until 2018/19.

(50,000) (50,000) 0

Localities & Environmental Quality
Harrington reservoir The budget of £167k is to be partially financed by a number of external funding providers: To allow sufficient time to secure all of the

targeted funding the scheme is now expected to be delayed until 2018/19. This delay follows  an unsuccessful grant funding bid of £40k.
Although a plan is now in place to secure this balance a final decision on this is not expected until later in the current financial year.

(167,000) (50,000) (117,000)

Tourism & Culture
Solway Coast Pathway This scheme relates to the creation of a multi-user coastal pathway linking Silloth-on-Solway, the West Cumbria Cycle network and the

Hadrian’s cycle route. The overall scheme was expected to cost £1.7m (profiled over two financial years 2017/18 and 2018/19) and be fully
financed from a grant from the Coastal Communities Fund (CCF).
Of the £1.7 grant funding application only £1m was awarded. To deal with this funding gap the scheme has since been reviewed and
revisions made to the proposed programme of works. These have reduced the current projected cost of the scheme by £479k to £1.250m.
Work is currently on-going to secure the additional £250k from the RDPE Tourism Infrastructure Fund.
The profiling of scheme expenditure across financial years 2017/18 and 2018/19 has been adjusted to reflect the revised scheme costs
and expected delivery timetable.  

(304,150) (304,150)

Economic Growth
Lillyhall Development The 2017/18 capital programme includes a budget of £5m for the development of Lillyhall North to support economic growth within the

borough. A number of development options are currently under consideration and any decision to proceed with these options is subject to
completion of full a business case and financial appraisal.
Whilst the precise timing of this expenditure is not yet known, it unlikely that the budget will be fully utilised in 2017/18. The existing budget,
and associated financing has consequently been re-profiled to 2018/19 to reflect current expectations around the timing of expenditure on
this scheme. 

(4,800,000) 0 (4,800,000)

Reedlands Rd Ind Dev The scheme is  the subject to the outcome of a grant funding bid covering 60% of scheme expenditure. An announcement regarding the
outcome of the funding application is not expected until later in the financial year. As a result   if the scheme does go ahead it is unlikely
that any significant work would be undertaken until 2018/19. The previously approved budget which has been re-profiled to reflect this.

(1,450,000) (430,000) (1,020,000)

(7,040,512) (530,000) 0 0 (6,510,512)

P
age 129



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 130



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 8 November 2017

Budget Strategy 2018-19 and beyond

The Reason for the Decision This Budget Strategy sets out the guidelines for 
preparing the 2018-19 Budget.  The Strategy 
takes account of current and future financial 
issues, sets out assumptions and initial proposals 
and provides a timetable for delivering a balanced 
budget in 2018-19 

Summary of options considered Included in this report is an update on the current 
economic position and developments in national 
policy, which give rise to specific impacts on local 
government funding.  This, along with in year 
budget monitoring information and emerging 
issues, will inform the development of the budget 
and medium term financial plan.

Recommendations  That the significant financial challenges 
that the Council faces to be noted

 To note the planning assumptions for 
building the 2018-19 budget

 To undertake a public consultation on 
budget proposals

Financial /  Resource Implications As set out in the report.  The financial principles 
and key planning assumptions will form part of 
the calculation of the overall council tax level to 
be set.

Legal Implications Statutory requirement to set a balanced budget

Community Safety Implications None

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

The budget contains provision for the Council to 
discharge its obligations under health and safety 
legislation, and to maintain a reserve in order to 
manage risks.

There are also risks that the Council will not be 
able to operate within agreed budgetary 
provisions but this can be minimised by the  
financial monitoring process and by the prudent 

Page 131

Agenda Item 12



policy on the level of reserves and balances

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

As part of the budget growth and savings bids 
process

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The revenue budget is set to support the Council 
in achieving priorities through the Council Plan 
and to facilitate control of expenditure on its 
activities

Is this a Key Decision Yes

Portfolio Holder Councillor Barbara Cannon

Lead Officer Catherine Nicholson
Head of Financial Services
01900 702503 
catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial Y Employment (internal) N

Legal Y Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty Y Health and Safety N

Background papers:  Budget working papers in Financial Services, updates from DCLG 
etc.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This report is the first report of the Council’s budget setting process for 2018-19 
onwards.  It sets out the financial pressures that the Council is likely to face in the 
coming years and suggests and appropriate strategy to ensure that this authority 
remains financially stable over the long term.

1.2 The report is informed by the latest information from Government and from 
discussions with the Portfolio Holders and Heads of Service via the Star 
Chamber process.

Page 132



1.3 This Executive’s financial strategy over the last few years has worked 
successfully in increasing financial sustainability.   There is a well-planned 
approach to budget setting and the budget process considers:-

 The Council’s priorities – what does it want to do, to what standard and 
what results does it want to achieve

 The level of funding anticipated from Government funding

 Income that can be generated through fees and charges, such as new and 
increased prices

 The levels of balances required for financial prudence and to proactively 
manage the Council’s risks

 The methods of service delivery that will deliver value for money

 Stakeholder consultation

1.4 This report details the key assumptions that have been adopted as part of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan and the foundation for the detailed budget position 
for 2018-19, which will be considered by Executive in February 2018 and Council 
approval in March 2018.

1.5 The report does not however, take into account any of the future announcements 
Central Government are likely to announce as part of the Autumn Statement 
2017.  It briefly mentions the potential to pilot the 100% NNDR retention scheme, 
but at this stage this will only be built into the strategy when confirmed.

2.0 Financial Self-Sufficiency

2.1 In setting the budget from 2012 onwards, this Executive recognised the need to 
address both the short-term reduction in Government funding as well as the 
longer-term need to reduce its reliance on reserves.

2.2 The outcome of this was the development of a four year Self-Sufficiency 
programme, which aimed to address the deficit position forecast in the medium 
term financial plan.

2.3 Allerdale applied for the Government’s multi-year settlement.  This confirmed the 
Government’s intention to phase out RSG and other grants by 2020 when it was 
originally intended for the 100% retention of business rates to kick in and hence 
Council’s required to be financially self-sufficient.

Page 133



2.4 This Executive remains committed to becoming financially self-sufficient by 2020.

3.0 Financial Pressures – Income   

3.1 Government Grants:
Over recent years the amount of Government grants received has reduced 
significantly as the Government has changed its emphasis on how local 
authorities should be supported.  The provisional settlement for 2018-19 is not 
likely to be announced by Government until late December 2017 but as Allerdale 
have been awarded the multi-year settlement the grants receivable are not likely 
to change.  They are:-

2018-19 2019-20Settlement Funding 
Assessment £000 £000
Revenue Support Grant 652 196
Baseline funding 3,524 3,649
Total 4,176 3,845
Rural Services Delivery 
Grant 201 261

3.2 New Homes Bonus
The government started this new funding stream in 2011-12 with the intention 
that local authorities would be rewarded for new homes being built over a six-
year period.  Last year it was announced that this had changed – to only 5 years 
in 2017-18 and then 4 years from 2018-19 onwards.  In addition NHB will only be 
received on tax base growth above 0.4% instead of on all growth.

3.3 The Government decided not to take forward proposals linking the NHB to 
planning reforms in 2017-18, but confirmed that it would consider withholding the 
part of the Bonus from authorities not planning effectively for NHB from 2018-19.  
A consultation on this is currently taking place.

Page 134



3.4 The estimated amount receivable of NHB is as follows:-

Table 1: New Homes Bonus Grant
Year of Payment (Allerdale Borough Council Share)
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22Year

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1 222
2 469
3 277 277   
4 458 458 458  
5 178 178 178 178

Total 1,604 913 636 178 0

The amounts shown in table 1 are based on the legacy payments the Council expects to receive respect of 
allocations already secured. In setting the 2017/18 budget it was agreed that for budget setting purposes the 
Council would not seek to rely on any further New Homes Bonus money to support the Council’s general 
expenditure over and above the allocations already secured.

3.5 Council Tax
The reductions in income from central government funding means that there is 
now an increased importance on Council Tax as a means of raising income.  
This means that the decisions taken now in relation to Council Tax levels are 
critical to the delivery of a sustainable MTFP.

3.6 The tax base increases each year due to the general increase in the number of 
residential properties and future developments together with the ongoing work to 
ensure the validity of council tax discounts awarded.  The increased tax base 
results in additional Council Tax income.

3.7 The Council has the ability to set any level of Council Tax increase, however, the 
Government has proposed a trigger point for council tax referendums so that any 
excessive increases are put to the local electorate for approval.  Over recent 
years the Government has set the maximum increase in council tax before a 
referendum must be called, at 2%, and in the last two years this has been the 
higher of 2% or £5.00.

3.8 The assumption the medium term is that Council Tax will be increased year on 
year by 1.9% as Allerdale residents have supported this level of increase.

3.9 Retained Business Rates (NNDR)
Under the current business rates retention scheme, 40% of business rates 
(NNDR) collected is retained by the Council.  The remainder is paid to Central 
Government (50%) and Cumbria County Council (10%).  The scheme also 
provides that certain sums are to be treated as being outside the scheme and 

Page 135



retained in their entirety by the Council.  The Council is also able to retain the 
growth in the local share of business rates subject to the payment of a levy to 
central government designed to prevent disproportionate increases in the 
Council’s funding as a result of growth in business rates income.

3.10 A system of top-up and tariffs ensures the Council’s share of estimated business 
rates income (business rates baseline) does not exceed the level of funding to be 
provided through the business rates retention scheme (baseline funding).  Tariffs 
and Top-Ups and baseline funding levels are indexed each year in line with the 
small business rates multiplier.  

3.11 The amount of business rates income available to the general fund and taken 
into account when setting the budget is based on an estimate made in January 
preceding the start of the financial year.  This estimate of business rate income 
reported in the government return NNDR1, also determines how much the 
Council must pay to central government and the County Council during the 
course of the year.

3.12 Local authorities have the option of working with neighbouring authorities to form 
a business rates pool, and Allerdale has been part of the Cumbria Business rates 
pool since its inception.  

3.13 The Government have previously announced that they intend to bring in 100% 
Business Rates Retention as well as updating the relative needs formulae (the 
amount of resources that an authority will have if it collects at its Business Rates 
target).  However this legislation was not brought about in time due to the 
announcement of a snap election in June 2017.

3.14 In September an opportunity was announced to apply to be a Pilot of 100% 
retention for 2018-19 only.

3.15 At the time of writing this report, a pilot application is being drafted for submission 
to DCLG for a Cumbria wide scheme (County plus all six Districts). 

3.16 Interest Rates
Despite growing speculation of a near term increase in the Bank of England Base 
rate investment returns are likely to remain low during 2018/19 but to be on a 
gently rising trend over the next few years.

3.17 Capita Asset Services undertook its last review of interest rate forecasts on 9 August 
after the quarterly Bank of England Inflation Report.  There was no change in MPC 
policy at that meeting.  However, the MPC meeting of 14 September revealed a 
sharp change in sentiment whereby a majority of MPC members said they would be 
voting for an increase in Bank Rate “over the coming months”.  It is therefore possible 
that there will be an increase to 0.5% at the November MPC meeting but, if not, then 

Page 136



at the February 2018 meeting. If that happens, the question will then be as to 
whether the MPC will stop at just withdrawing the emergency Bank Rate cut of 
0.25% in August 2016, after the result of the EU withdrawal referendum, or whether 
they will embark on a series of further increases in Bank Rate during 2018. 

4.0 Financial Pressures – expenditure

4.1 Employee Pay
Back in 2015 the emergency budge announced that there would be public sector 
pay rises of 1% for the next four years – therefore the medium term plan built in 
1% increases up to 2019/20 and 2% afterwards.

4.2 The local government unions have called for a 5% increase in pay for 2018/19 
and is currently being negotiated.  It is unlikely to be finalised and resolved prior 
to this budget being approved.  Financial services staff will monitor the progress 
of the negotiations.  It should be noted that a 1% change in the pay would have 
an annual impact of between £75k and £80k.

4.3 Employee Pension Fund
The last pension fund triennial valuation by the scheme actuaries, took place in 
November 2016.  This set the Authority’s Employers Contribution Rate for the 
three years beginning 1 April 2017 at 14.5% (compared to 12.6% for the three 
years beginning 1 April 2014). It also established the Authority’s (employers) 
deficit funding contributions.

4.4 Rather than spread payment of the deficit funding contributions over the three 
years 2017-18 to 2019-20 the Authority chose to take up the option to pay these 
by way of a single payment in April 2017. This has enabled the Authority to make 
a cash saving over the three period of £168,600.

4.5 Contractual Risen Costs
In the MTFP inflation on contract prices has been uplifted by appropriate indices 
as stated in the relevant conditions of specific contracts.  

4.6 Inflation
CPI inflation has remained above the MPCs 2% target since March 2017 as rises 
in import prices, generated by the steep fall in the sterling exchange rate 
following the EU referendum, continue to pass through to consumer prices. In 
September the 'headline' CPI rate rose to 3%; it’s highest since March 2012. RPI 
inflation has similarly been on an upward path throughout 2017, hitting 4.1% in 
September; it’s highest since September 2011. 

                                                                                                                                             
4.7 In its August Inflation Report the MPC set out its expectations of further rises in 

CPI inflation in the coming months with a peak at around 3% in October, as the 
past depreciation of sterling continues to pass through to consumer prices. 

Page 137



However much depends on the future performance of sterling in the face of 
continued Brexit uncertainty over the United Kingdom’s trading relationships after 
Brexit and about the transition to those arrangements.

                                                                                                                                             
4.8 As well as the impact of imported costs associated with the sterling exchange 

rate, the path for inflation over the near term will depend on developments in 
domestically generated inflation.  These will reflect developments in domestic 
costs and in particular labour costs, as well as domestic profit margins.  Domestic 
inflationary pressures and in particular wage growth, have remained subdued in 
recent quarters but are  likely to increase over the course of the next two years 
as remaining slack in the economy is absorbed. This increase in domestic price 
pressures means CPI inflation is expected to stabilise towards the end of the 
BoEs forecast period, even as imported pressures associated with the recent fall 
in sterling have passed through. 

                                                                                                                                             
4.9 Conditional on the current market yield curve (market interest rate expectations), 

the Bank of England expects CPI inflation to remain around 2¾% until early next 
year. Thereafter it is projected to remain above the MPC’s target through 
2018 before falling back to near to its target rate of 2% in two years’ 
time.                                                               

                                                                                                                                            
4.10    No inflationary increases will be applied to operational services budgets.

4.11 Unavoidable service pressures
There is always the potential for unplanned for and unavoidable expenditure and 
there has to be a clear plan to how to manage these additional pressure 
throughout the year.

4.12 Heads of Service and Portfolio Holders will be responsible for monitoring and 
putting plans in place to limit or reduce any additional budget pressures and the 
Star Chambers will discuss these issues.

4.13 A general contingency provision of £112k will continue to be made in the 
recurring base budget.

Page 138



5.0 Updated Medium Term Financial Position

5.1 Following the revised budget, the updated MTFP is as follows:

2017/18 
revised 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£ £ £ £
Base Budget 12,213,526 11,932,559 12,027,759 12,867,859
Pension deficit funding (61,600) (17,300) (16,900) 0
Change in salary 76,531 205,000 205,000 225,000
Additional Capital Financing 
Costs 0 184,000 378,000 60,000

Recurring growth 875,351 244,000 289,000 40,000
Recurring savings (433,719) (15,000) (15,000) (15,000)
Self-sufficiency savings (737,530) (505,500) 0 0
Recurring (base) budget 11,932,559 12,027,759 12,867,859 13,177,859

    
Change in salary costs - non-
recurring (12,872) 0 0 0

Non-recurring growth 989,963 250,000 0 0
Non-recurring savings (194,073) 0 0 0
Net Service Expenditure budget 12,715,577 12,277,759 12,867,859 13,177,859

    
Expenditure on earmarked 
priorities 2,683,326 0 0 0

    
Proposed budget (excl. parish 
precepts) 15,398,903 12,277,759 12,867,859 13,177,859

    
Parish Precepts 1,913,535 0 0 0

    
Proposed Budget (incl. parish 
precepts) 17,312,438 12,277,759 12,867,859 13,177,859

    
Less: Planned use of earmarked 
balances (2,683,326) 0 0 0

    
Net Budget Requirement 14,629,112 12,277,759 12,867,859 13,177,859

Page 139



2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£ £ £ £
Revenue support grant 1,060,000 652,000 196,000 0
Rural Services Delivery Grant 261,000 201,000 261,000 0
Other government grants (New 
Homes Bonus) 1,603,999 961,000 684,000 226,000

Council tax – Allerdale only 4,919,548 5,013,000 5,106,000 5,206,000
Council tax – parish element 1,913,535 0 0 0
Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - 
Council Tax 139,050 49,206 0 0

NNDR funding 4,746,979 4,551,988 4,165,699 4,264,882
Self-sufficiency savings - 
Growth in Council Tax and 
NNDR

0 200,000 200,000 200,000

Total funding 14,644,112 11,628,194 10,612,699 9,896,882
  

Funding Gap/(surplus) 0 649,565 2,255,160 3,280,977

5.2 Whilst the Council has plans for further self-sufficiency savings in 2018-19, the 
forecast position is still identifying a potential deficit of approximately £650k.

5.3 This will be the starting position for the Star Chambers commencing in 
November.

6.0 Budget Consultation

6.1 The objectives for consulting on the 2018-19 budget proposals are to:

 Engage with local residents and key stakeholders
 Seek feedback on general spending and income generation priorities
 Seek feedback on specific budget proposals for 2018-19

6.2 The consultation will set out the financial challenge racing the Council and look at 
options for making the budget balance and our approach and strategy.  It will 
also take into account results from last year’s Residents Survey where we asked 
questions about prioritising spend and the approach to making savings and 
increasing income.

6.3 As well as asking specific questions around Council Tax and Fees and Charges 
increases, the consultation will focus on proposals around growth and a balanced 
approach to risk.

Page 140



7.0 Legal Implications and Risks

7.1 A summary of the perceived risks is as follows:-

Risk Impact Likelihood Mitigating Action
Assumptions may be 
inaccurate

4 2 Regular budget monitoring.
Review assumptions and national 
issues

Local Government 
Settlement different

4 1 Signed up to multi-year settlement 
and figures provided by Govt used.

100% retention of  
NNDR brought in

4 3 Currently applying for pilot status to 
test scheme

8.0 Recommendations

8.1 This report makes the following recommendations:-

 That the significant financial challenges that the Council faces be noted
 To note the planning assumptions for building the 2018-19 budget
 To undertake a public consultation on the budget proposals

9.0 Conclusion

9.1 The Council will continue to use a range of approaches to address the deficit in 
the short and medium term, including:-

 Pursuing alternative income streams
 Making the most of commercial opportunities
 Growing the local economy
 Using digital technologies to transform services
 Reviewing all services to generate efficiencies
 Consider the use of reserves to help manage year on year 

variations in income and expenditure

9.2 A review of the base budget for 2018-19 together with the six month outturn 
position will be undertaken by the leadership team with the relevant Portfolio 
Holders and Heads of Service.  This review will start with the next round of Star 
Chambers and aims to identify further potential savings and efficiencies in the 
recurring base budget.  A review of all current earmarked reserves will also be 
undertaken.

Catherine Nicholson
Head of Financial Services

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Wednesday 6 September 2017 of Executive
	2 Minutes of meeting Thursday 28 September 2017 of Executive
	7 Planning for the right homes in the right places consultation
	8 Local Discretionary Rate Relief 2017-2021
	9 Tender Evaluation Fleet
	10 Quarter 2 Finance Report - April to September 2017
	20171026143712_000543_0001111_RevenueAppendix
	20171026143712_000542_0001112_CapitalAppendix

	11 Revised Revenue & Capital Budget 2017-18
	20171026155702_000560_0001121_201718revisedbudgetAppendices

	12 2018/19 Budget Strategy & Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 to 2020/21

